
This Agenda is posted pursuant to Chapter 551, Texas Government Code 
 

Matters to Come Before a Meeting of the Board of Directors  
of Tarrant Regional Water District 

 
To Be Held the 17th Day of September 2024 at 9:00 a.m. 

Front Doors to the Main Admin Building at 800 East Northside Drive Will Open to the 
Public at 8:30 a.m. and Close Fifteen (15) Minutes After the Meeting Adjourns 

 
TRWD Board Room 

800 East Northside Drive 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102 

 
PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT A QUORUM OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TRWD 
WILL CONVENE ON THE ABOVE DATE AND TIME FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
CONSIDERING AND ACTING UPON THE MATTERS SET FORTH IN THIS AGENDA.  THE 
LINK TO VIEW AND LISTEN TO THE MEETING VIA INTERNET IS 
HTTPS://WWW.TRWD.COM/BOARDVIDEOS.  A RECORDING OF THE MEETING WILL 
ALSO BE AVAILABLE AT HTTPS://WWW.TRWD.COM/BOARDVIDEOS. 

              
 

1. Pledges of Allegiance 
 

2. Public Comment  
 

Citizens may present public comment at this time, limited to a total time of three 
(3) minutes per speaker, unless the speaker addresses the Board through a 
translator, in which case the limit is a total time of six (6) minutes. Each proposed 
speaker must have completed and submitted a speaker card prior to the 
commencement of the meeting, identifying any agenda item number(s) and 
topic(s) the speaker wishes to address with the Board. By law, the Board may not 
deliberate, debate, or take action on public comment but may place the item on a 
future agenda. 

 
3. Consider Approval of the Minutes from the Meetings Held on August 19, 2024, 

and August 20, 2024 
 
4. Consider Approval of Fiscal Year 2025 General Fund Budget - Sandy Newby, 

Chief Financial Officer 
 
5. Vote to Adopt a Tax Rate of $.0267/$100 for Tax Year 2024 - Sandy Newby, Chief 

Financial Officer 
 
6. Consider Approval of Fiscal Year 2025 Special Projects/Contingency Fund 

Budget - Sandy Newby, Chief Financial Officer 
 
7. Consider Approval of Fiscal Year 2025 Revenue Fund Budget - Sandy Newby, 

Chief Financial Officer 



8. Consider Approval of a Consent Agenda 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be regular, routine, and 
ministerial items that require little or no discussion. Therefore, in the interest of 
efficiency there will be no separate discussion of these items and the board will 
act on them through one motion and vote. If a board member wishes for an item 
to be discussed and considered individually, upon the board member’s request 
the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. 

  

• Consider Approval of Joint-Funding Agreement with U.S. Geological Survey 
for Gage Network Support Services  

• Consider Approval of Capital Expenditures 
• Consider Approval of Contract with kW Power Services, LLC for Annual 

Stand-by Generator Maintenance  

• Consider Approval of Contract with Presbyterian Night Shelter/UpSpire for 
Labor Services 

• Consider Approval of Contract with Whitmore and Sons for Grounds 
Maintenance 

• Consider Approval of Contracts with Republic, 3-P Trash Services, Frontier, 
and Waste Connections for Dumpster Service 
 

9. Consider Approval of Contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for Design of Section 
1D & 1E Pipelines and Arlington Outlet Improvements - Jason Gehrig, 
Infrastructure Engineering Director 

 
10. Consider Approval of Contract with V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. for Corrosion 

Control Engineering Design Services for the Section 1D and 1E Pipeline and 
Arlington Outlet Valve Improvements Project - Jason Gehrig, Infrastructure 
Engineering Director 

 
11. Consider Approval of a Pre-Purchase of HVAC Equipment from Texas Air 

Systems for Benbrook Lake Pump Station Electrical Room Cooling 
Improvements - Jason Gehrig, Infrastructure Engineering Director 

 
12. Staff Updates 
 

• Water Resources and Planning Update - Rachel Ickert, Chief Water Resources 
Officer 

• Grant and Other Cost Savings Initiatives - Jennifer Mitchell, Finance Director 
 

13. Executive Session under Texas Government Code:  
 

Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, for Private Consultation with its 
Attorney about Pending or Contemplated Litigation or on a Matter in which the 
Duty of the Attorney to the Governmental Body under the Texas Disciplinary 
Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas Clearly Conflicts with 
this Chapter; and 
 



Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, to Deliberate the Purchase, 
Exchange, Lease or Value of Real Property; and 
 
Section 551.074 Regarding Personnel Matters Related to the Annual General 
Manager Performance Review 

 
14. Consider Approval of Authorization to Acquire Real Property Interests by 

Purchase for the Cedar Creek Pipeline Rehab Project - Steve Christian, Real 
Property Director 

 
Parcels 24 - 29 
(JAS Holdings L.P.)  
 

Temporary easement interests across a 0.939-acre tract of land situated in the 
Allen Reeves Survey, Abstract No. 939 and the Ben F. Berry Survey, Abstract No. 
157, City of Midlothian, Ellis County, Texas;  across a 3.461-acre tract of land 
situated in the Allen Reeves Survey, Abstract No. 939 and the J. Morgan Survey, 
Abstract No.1224, City of Midlothian, Ellis County, Texas; across a 0.414-acre 
tract of land situated in the Allen Reeves Survey, Abstract No. 939, City of 
Midlothian, Ellis County, Texas; across a 0.622-acre tract of land situated in the 
Allen Reeves Survey, Abstract No. 939, City of Midlothian, Ellis County, Texas; 
across a 0.571-acre tract of land situated in the Allen Reeves Survey, Abstract 
No. 939 and the Ben F. Berry Survey, Abstract No. 157, City of Midlothian, Ellis 
County, Texas; and across a 3.144-acre tract of land situated in the Allen Reeves 
Survey, Abstract No. 939, City of Midlothian, Ellis County, Texas 

 
15. Future Agenda Items 
 
16. Schedule Next Board Meeting 
 
17. Adjourn 
 
 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 

HELD ON THE 19th DAY OF AUGUST 2024 AT 9:00 A.M. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

The call of the roll disclosed the presence of the Directors as follows:  
  

Present 
Leah King 
James Hill 

Mary Kelleher 
C.B. Team 

Paxton Motheral 
 

 Also present were Dan Buhman, Alan Thomas, Darrell Beason, Kate Beck, Lisa 

Cabrera, Linda Christie, Ellie Garcia, Zachary Huff, Randy Johnston, Courtney Kelly, 

Wendy Lockhart, Jennifer Mitchell, Sandy Newby, Rick Odom, and Stephen Tatum of the 

Tarrant Regional Water District (District or TRWD). 

1. 

 All present were given the opportunity to join in reciting the Pledges of Allegiance 

to the U.S. and Texas flags.  

2. 

There were no requests from the public to address the Board of Directors during 

the Public Comment portion of the agenda.  

3. 

The Board of Directors discussed the proposed Fiscal Year 2025 General Fund 

Budget and Fiscal Year 2025 Special Project/Contingency Fund Budget. 

 
The Board of Directors recessed for a break from 9:38 a.m. to 9:42 a.m. 

 

 



4. 

The Board next held an Executive Session commencing at 9:42 a.m. under Section 

551.071 of the Texas Government Code to Consult with Legal Counsel on a Matter in 

Which the Duty of Counsel Under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct 

Clearly Conflicts with Chapter 551, Texas Government Code; and Section 551.072 of the 

Texas Government Code, to Deliberate the Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real 

Property on Panther Island. 

Upon completion of the executive session at 10:45 a.m., the President reopened 

the meeting.  

5. 

The Board received Texas Open Government and Ethics Training from Stephen 

Tatum, General Counsel and Courtney Kelly, Public Information Coordinator. This training 

included the Texas Open Meetings Act, the Texas Public Information Act, and key ethics 

laws and policies. 

6. 

There were no future agenda items approved. 

7. 

The next board meetings were scheduled for August 20, 2024, at 9:00 a.m; 

September 12, 2024 at 11:00 a.m.; and September 17, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. 

8. 

There being no further business before the Board of Directors, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

                                   
President      Secretary 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 

HELD ON THE 20th DAY OF AUGUST 2024 AT 9:00 A.M. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

The call of the roll disclosed the presence of the Directors as follows:  
  

Present 
Leah King 
James Hill 
C.B. Team 

Paxton Motheral 
 

Absent 
Mary Kelleher 

 

 Also present were Dan Buhman, Alan Thomas, Darrel Andrews, Kate Beck, Rick 

Carroll, Steve Christian, Linda Christie, Dustan Compton, Ellie Garcia, Jason Gehrig, 

Zach Hatton, Zachary Huff, Rachel Ickert, Randy Johnston, Sandy Newby, Jennifer 

Owens, and Stephen Tatum of the Tarrant Regional Water District (District or TRWD). 

1. 

 All present were given the opportunity to join in reciting the Pledges of Allegiance 

to the U.S. and Texas flags.  

2. 

Public comment was received from Phillip Morphis who spoke regarding 

“Rockwood @ Churchill water flooding.” 

3. 

Director Hill moved to approve the minutes from the meetings held on July 16, 

2024, and July 25, 2024. Director Team seconded the motion, and the votes were 4 in 

favor, 0 against. It was accordingly ordered that these minutes be placed in the permanent 

files of the District. 



4. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Motheral moved to approve 

the consent agenda. Consent agenda items include:  

1) A change in the calculation of retainage being held to five percent of the contract 

price with Archer Western Construction, LLC for Richland-Chambers Lake Pump Station 

Backup Sodium Hypochlorite Feed Facility and Hydraulic Actuator Installation Project. 

The total current contract is $4,408,350 with retainage to be held in the amount of 

$220,417.50. All remaining contract payments are to be paid in full, the Board having 

found that over 50% of the work has been completed, that satisfactory progress is being 

made and that the amount retained is in excess of the amount adequate for the protection 

of the District. However, any changes to the contract price by change order or alternate 

base bid work for the project will require adjustment to the retainage schedule. The 

General Manager of TRWD or his designee is authorized to execute all documents 

associated with the contract. Funding for this item is included in the Bond Fund.  

2) Release of retainage in the amount of $172,664.50 with Hydro Resources Mid-

Continent, Inc. for ASR Well Demonstration Study - Well Drilling Project. Hydro 

Resources Mid-Continent, Inc. successfully completed construction of the project on June 

24, 2024, with no outstanding issues. Funding for this item is included in the Bond Fund. 

Director Team seconded the motion, and the votes were 4 in favor, 0 against. 

5. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Hill moved to approve a 

contract in an amount not-to-exceed $4,168,753 with Kennedy Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

for engineering design services for the removal and replacement of approximately 4.42 



miles of the Cedar Creek Pipeline. Funding for this item is included in the Bond Fund. 

Director Team seconded the motion, and the votes were 4 in favor, 0 against. 

6. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to approve a 

contract in an amount not-to-exceed $5,346,528 with CP&Y, Inc. dba STV Infrastructure 

for engineering design services for the removal and replacement of approximately 8.6 

miles of the Cedar Creek Pipeline. Funding for this item is included in the Bond Fund. 

Director Motheral seconded the motion, and the votes were 3 in favor, 0 against. 

President King was not present for the vote. 

7. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to approve a 

contract in an amount not-to-exceed $424,533 with HDR Engineering, Inc. for corrosion 

control engineering design services for approximately 4.42 miles of the Cedar Creek 

Section 2 Phase 2 pipeline replacement project along with the adjacent Richland-

Chambers pipeline, and 8.6 miles of the Cedar Creek Section 4 pipeline replacement 

project. Funding for this item is included in the Bond Fund. Director Motheral seconded 

the motion, and the votes were 3 in favor, 0 against. President King was not present for 

the vote. 

8. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Motheral moved to approve a 

contract in the amount of $421,345 with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for the environmental 

permitting of approximately 8 miles of the Cedar Creek pipeline replacement project. This 

contract covers both Section 2, Phase 2 at a cost of $212,653 and Section 1D/1E at a 



cost of $208,692. Funding for this item is included in the Bond Fund. Director Team 

seconded the motion, and the votes were 3 in favor, 0 against. President King was not 

present for the vote.  

9. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Motheral moved to approve a 

contract in the amount of $138,000 with Terracon for the environmental permitting of 

approximately 8 miles of the Cedar Creek pipeline replacement project. Funding for this 

item is included in the Bond Fund. Director Team seconded the motion, and the votes 

were 3 in favor, 0 against. President King was not present for the vote.  

10. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to approve 

reallocation of $46 million of the local Central City Flood Control Project budget, from non-

essential to essential flood control project purposes as recommended by the Trinity River 

Vision Authority Board of Directors on April 25, 2024. Director Motheral seconded the 

motion, and the votes were 4 in favor, 0 against.  

11. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Hill moved to approve a 

contract amendment in an amount not-to-exceed $110,123 with Freese and Nichols, Inc. 

to add Fort Worth Central City and Panther Island canals into the Regional Flood Plan as 

Flood Mitigation Projects. Funding for this item is included in the Fiscal Year 2024 Special 

Projects/Contingency Budget. Director Motheral seconded the motion, and the votes were 

4 in favor, 0 against.  

 



12. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to approve a 

facilities extension agreement in an amount not-to-exceed $21,500,000 with Oncor 

Electric Delivery Company LLC for design and construction of a 138-kilovolt electrical 

transmission line and metering substation for high voltage electric service to the Lake 

Palestine Pump Station. The General Manager of TRWD or his designee is authorized 

execute all documents associated with the agreement. Funding for this item is included 

in the Dallas Bond Fund. Director Motheral seconded the motion, and the votes were 4 in 

favor, 0 against.  

13. 

Director Team motioned to approve placing an agenda item on the September 17, 

2024 Board of Directors meeting agenda and establishing the date for a public meeting 

on the Tax Year 2024 Tax Rate on September 12, 2024. President King seconded the 

motion. Upon clarification of the vote, Director Team indicated his intention to rescind the 

motion to approve agenda item 13, and no action was taken on the motion. 

Director Hill then made a motion to continue the agenda item until after Executive 

Session and Director Team seconded the motion, and the votes were 4 in favor, 0 against. 

14. 

Staff Updates 

• Water Resources and Planning Update presented by Rachel Ickert, Chief 

Water Resources Officer  

• Water Conservation Strategic Plan Update presented by Linda Christie, 

Government Affairs Director 

 

The Board of Directors recessed for a break from 9:44 a.m. to 9:49 a.m. 



15. 

The Board next held an Executive Session commencing at 9:49 a.m. under Section 

551.071 of the Texas Government Code to Consult with Legal Counsel on a Matter in 

Which the Duty of Counsel Under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct 

Clearly Conflicts with Chapter 551, Texas Government Code; and Section 551.072 of the 

Texas Government Code to Deliberate the Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real 

Property Concerning the Richland-Chambers Wetlands Project and the Panther 

Island/Central City Flood Control Project.  

Upon completion of the executive session at 10:04 a.m., the President reopened 

the meeting.  

16. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to authorize the 

General Manager of TRWD or his designee to take all steps which may be reasonably 

necessary to convey to Legg Family Partners, LP, a Texas limited partnership, fee simple 

title to the surface estate only of a 6.839-acre tract of land, such tract of land to be 

conveyed by TRWD being more specifically described in the metes and bounds 

descriptions and survey plats attached hereto. The conveyance by TRWD is subject to 

the following: 1) TRWD’s reservation of all minerals; 2) Reservation by TRWD of a 

flowage easement; and 3) Payment by Legg Family Partners, LP of $60,000 to TRWD 

and the payment or reimbursement by Legg Family Partners, LP of all closing, appraisal 

and survey costs related to such conveyance. Director Motheral seconded the motion, 

and the votes were 4 in favor, 0 against. 

  



 

6 

EXHIBIT "A"

FIELD NOT ES
TRACT I

6.839 ACRES OF LAND

THE TCWC TRACT

R. YBARBO SURVEY

ABSTRACT NO. 606

KAUFMAN COUNTY, TEXAS

BEING ALLOFTHAT CERTAIN LOT, 'TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE R. YBARBO
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 606, KAUFMAN COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING ALL OF A CALLED 6.85
ACRE TRACT AS DESCRIBED IN DEED TO TARRANT COUNTY WATER CONTROL AND
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER ONE RECORDED IN VOLUME 481, PAGE 123 OF THE DEED
RECORDS OF KAUFMAN COUNTY, TEXAS (DRKCT). SAID LOT, TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING at a M" iron rod found in the west line of a called 9.286 acre tract of land described in Deed to
Armand Wiltz recorded in Volume 4580, Page 402 of the DR KCT and being S 013723" E, 145.34 feet from a" iron rod found at the northwest corner of said Wiltz tract and the southwest corner of a called 52.24 acre
tract of land as described in Deed to Eastern CCL LLC recorded in Volume 3242, Page 618 of the DRKCT and
being in the east line of the of a called 59.638 acre tract of land described in Deed to Legg Family Partners LP
tract of land described in Volume 5221, Page 505 of the DRKCT;

THENCE, S 0193723 E (Control Line), 281.01 feet along the west line of the said Wiltz tract to a" iron rod
found;

THENCE, long the common line of the Legg Family Partners LP tract as follows: N 2223'48" W, 126.72 feet
to a" iron rod set with a plastic cap stamped #4207; N 2225'55" W, 504,73 feet to a M" iron rod found in the
east line of a called 25.16 acre tract of land described in Deed to Howison Family Investment Trust recorded in
Volume 3475, Page 22 of the DRKCT;

THENCE, along the common line of the Howison tract and this tract as follows: N 1549'06" E, 51.75 feet to a
3/8" iron rod found; N 7424'43" W, 41.27 feet to a " iron rod found at the beginning of a curve to the left,
with a radius of 2732.63 feet, a chord that bears N 3205'17", 812.44 feet;

THENCE, long the common line of the Legg Family Partners LP tract as follows: with said curve to the left
an arc length of 815.46 feet to a '" iron rod set with a plastic cap stamped #4207; N 4024'11" W, 1564.11 feet
to a " iron rod found in the Deeded 325' elevation line of Cedar Creek Lake, the west line Legg Family
Partners LP tract, at the most western corner of this tract;

THENCE, long the said 325' elevation line as follows: N 2900'00, 29.03 feet; N 0800'00" W, 40.00 feet;
57700'00" E, 50.00 feet; S 6000'00" E, 75.00 feet; N 3800'00" W, 120.00 feet; N 760O00" E, 14.32 feet to a" iron rod set with a plastic cap stamped #4207 in the west line Legg Family Partners LP tract, at the
northwest corner of this tract;

THENCE, along the common line of the Legg Family Partners LP tract as follows: S 4024'11" E, 1628.87 feet
to a h" iron rod set with a plastic cap stamped #4207 at the beginning of a curve to the right with a radius of
2832.63 feet, a chord that bears S 31%23'55" E, 909.10 feet an arc length of 913.04 feet to a " iron rod set with
a plastic cap stamped #4207; S 22%23'35" E. 368.82 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and CONTAINING
6.839 ACRES OF LAND MORE OR LESS.

BASIS OF BEARING: TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM NORTH CENTRAL ZONE NAO 83

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
Date: March 8, 2024

To: LW Investments LLC

I, Gary L. Hardin, Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 4207, do hereby certify that the field notes
hereon represents the results of a survey made on the ground under my direction and super vision, the lines and
dimensions of said property being as indicated, This survey is based on deeds, easements and/or recorded plats
and other records when furnished by the client or the client's representative, as well as significant and visible
monuments found on the subject property and adjacent properties, field measurements and evidence of
boundaries found on the ground. However, this certification is not a representation of warranty of title or
guarantee of ownership. This survey was performed EXCLUSIVELY for the above mentioned parties. USE
OF THIS SURVEY FOR ANY OTHER PURPOSE OR BY OTHER PARTIES SHALL BE AT THEIR RISK
AND THE UNDERSIGNED IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY LOSS RESULTING THEREFROM.77a
GARY L. HARDIN, RPLS NO. 4207
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10114700
W.O.#+ 2404001 (SEE SURVEY)

kelly03
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"



 

7 

 

/
COAR CREEK

tAF

LAND TITLE SURVEY
nnstt ratrotor tract omarc.rt or taocanortR

98+0O $uv 1, A-t., KAUNAN Oun1, Jx,tor-$Bost0$Li 0Aauto¢3amar utoobeco wor rorotorv»wan
cowRotooiarnoratorsrcrNow owrncorp w votutra,AG tz3, notDotto NeCON0$KAAOoh,A$ 0on1. ~

~
_·_:""r\\

e o____, ~--.z. #
±±Ege EE-I

TxA.$C00paT
sY/Ea ORTH
CENTRAL 2ONE AD3



17. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to approve 

authorization to acquire interests in the following described land, which are necessary for 

the public use and purpose of construction and operation of the Richland-Chambers 

Wetlands Project.  

Management requests that the General Manager of TRWD or his designee be 

authorized to take all steps which may be reasonably necessary to complete the 

acquisition of the real property interests described below, including, but not limited to, the 

authority to institute and prosecute condemnation proceedings and to pay all reasonable 

and necessary costs incurred in connection with such acquisition. 

Permanent easement interest over and across a 1.078-acre of land located in the 
JOHN HENRY SURVEY, Abstract No. 398, Navarro County, Texas, and being a 
portion of the tract of land conveyed to Charles R. Paige, by the deed recorded in 
Instrument No. 2021-000955, of the Official Public Records of Navarro County, 
Texas, and being further described in accompanying resolution and in the survey 
plat attached hereto, for the negotiated purchase price of $20,750. 
 
  



EXHIBIT "A"
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PERMANENTACCESSEASEMENT

BEING 1.078 acres of land located in the JOHN HENRY SURVEY, Abstract No. 398, Navarro
County, Texas, and being a portion of the tract of land conveyed to Charles R. Paige, by the
deed recorded in Instrument No. 2021-000955, of the Official Public Records of Navarro
County, Texas. Said 1.078 acres of land being more particularly described by metes and
bounds as follows:

BEGINNING at a "60D" nail set at the North corner of aforesaid Paige Tract, from which a 2"
iron pipe found is located S 30° 56' 59" E 15.00 feet, and said POINT OF BEGINNING having
Texas State Plane Grid Coordinates N: 6,701,064.53681 and E: 2,719,603.93516;

THENCE S 00° 09' 32" W 232.76 feet, to a point lying in the East line of an existing
30' Easement for Ingress and Egress, according to the deed recorded in Instrument No.

2024-002277, of the Official Public Records of Navarro County, Texas;

THENCE along the East line of said 30' Ingress and Egress Easement as follows:

1. S 42° 09' 19" E 114.44 feet, to a point;
2. S 40° 26' 02" E 139.85 feet, to a point;
3. S 31 ° 13' 33" E 689.24 feet, to a point;
4. S 21° 09' 36" E 78.99 feet, to a point;
5. 12° 51'13"E 84.33 feet, to a point lying in the North boundary line of a tract of

land conveyed to Texas Parks and Wildlife Department, by the deed recorded in

Volume 1116, Page 286, of the Deed Records of Navarro County, Texas;

THENCE S 58° 18' 25" W 31.70 feet, along the North boundary line of said Texas
Parks and Wildlife Department Tract, to a point from which a Tarrant County Water Control
& Improvement District Number One monument found bears S 58° 18' 25" W 334.03 feet;

THENCE running along the West line of the aforesaid 30' Easement for Ingress and
Egress, as follows:

1. N 12° 51'13"W 92.39 feet, to a point;
2. N 21° 09' 36" W 74.17 feet, to a point;
3. N 31 ° 13' 33" W 684.18 feet, to a point;
4. N 40 26' 02" W 136.99 feet, to a point;
5. N 42° 09' 19" W 323.07 feet, to a point in the Northwest boundary line of aforesaid

Paige Tract and the approximate centerline of SE County Road No. 4250;

THENCE N 59° 02' 43" E 30.58 feet, along the Northwest boundary line of said
Paige Tract, to a point;

THENCE S 42° 09' 19" E 143.73 feet, along the East line of aforesaid 30' Easement
for Ingress and Egress, to a point;

THENCE N01°21'51"E 166.83 feet, to a point lying in the Northwest boundary line
of aforesaid Paige Tract and the approximate centerline of aforesaid SE County Road No.

4250;

THENCE N 59° 02' 43" E 42.62 feet, along the Northwest boundary line of said
Paige Tract and the approximate centerline of said SE County Road No. 4250, to the POINT
OF BEGINNING containing 1.078 acres (46,972 square feet) of land.

6/07/oz4
G:12024\EASEMENTSITRWD\Richland Chambers - Navarro County - Charles Paige Tract - Access - 1.078 Acres.doc



CEDAR CREEK HOLDINGS

INST.#2024-002277
O.P.R.N.C.T.

PERMANENT ACCESS
EASEMENT

1.078 ACRES

(46,972 SQ. FT.)

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF SURVEY LINE
ALONG CENTER OF COUNTY ROAD

/
63$q>.+06, TEXAS PARKS AND

WILDLIFE DEPARTMENT
VOL. 111 6, PG. 286

D.R.N.C.T.

\
\

TRACT 2
RIGHT OF ACCESS EASEMENT

CEDAR CREEK HOLDINGS

INST.#/2024-002277
O.P.R.N.C.T.

POINT OF BEGINNING
(60 D NAIL SET)

N =6701064.53681
E=2719603.93516

TCWC
MONUMENT

FOUND

\
\

\

\

TRACT 3
30' EASEMENT FOR INGRESS/EGRESS

CEDAR CREEK HOLDINGS

INST.#2024-002277
O.P.R.N.C.T.

AUGUST 7, 2024

Course Bearing Distance
L1 N 30°57'17° W 15.00'
L2 S 00°09'32" W 232.76'
L3 S 42°09'19" E 114.44'

% \L4 S 40°26'02" E 139.85' 2L5 s 31 ° 13 '33" E 689.24'
L6 S 21°09'36" E 78.99'

\~L7 S 12°51 '13" E 84.33' a
L8 S 58°18'25° W 31.70' CHARLES R. PAIGE ~L9 N 12°51'13 W 92.39' INST.#2021-000955

1:>,L10 N 21°09'36" W 74.17' O.P.R.N.C.T. ~L11 N 31°13'33" W 684.18' 0 \
L12 N 40°26'02" W 136.99' -1
L13 N 42°09' 19" W 323.07' % \
L14 N 59°02'43" E 30.58' 'O
L15 S 42°09' 19" E 143.73'
L16 N 01°21'51" E 166.83'
L17 N 59°02'43" E 42.62'

N\uRV£~ EXHIBIT
10l 54°• MS!<t NV:, 1ARar_cour wArg corRoL

4gSTR AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NUMBER ONE

\ VOL. 981, PG. 708
D.R.N.C.T.

TOMMY DWAYNE HUTTO AND
SHENA RENE HUTTO

INST.#2022-004082
O.P.R.N.C.T.

~\.
"

s2%ks
$$%°'

BRITTAIN CRAWFORD

[p] LAND SURVEYING &

lL7 TOPOGRAPHIC MAPPING

(817) 926-0211 - METRO (817) 429-5112
FAX No. (817) 926-9347

P.O. BOX 11374 • 3908 SOUTH FREEWAY

FORT WORTH, TEXAS 76110
EMAIL: admin@brittoin-crowford.com

EXHIBIT MAP
OF

PERMANENT ACCESS
EASEMENT

LOCATED IN
THE JOHN HENRY SURVEY ABSTRACT

No. 398, NAVARRO COUNTY, TEXAS SCALE 1"=150'
(TU) ...JEFF\PROJECTS\TRWD\NAVARRO COUNTY\ACCESS ESMT.dwg



1

M

TRWD Richland Chambers - Navarro - Paige -PAE - T.07 Ac[8/72024
Scale: 1inch= 146feet [File: TRWD Richland Chambers - Navarro-Paige-PE- 1.078 c.ndp
Tract 1: 1.0783 Acres (46972 Sq. Feet), Closure: n28.0220e 0.01 ft. (1/338267), Perimeter=3066 ft.

01 s00.0932w 232.76 11 n40.2602w 136.99
02 s42.0919e 114.44
03 s40.2602e 139.85
04 s31.1333e 689.24
05 s21.0936e 78.99
06 s12.5113e 84.33
07 s58.1825w 31.70
08 n12.5113w 92.39
09 n21.0936w 74.17
10 n31.1333w 684.18

12 n42.0919w 323.07
13 n59.0243e 30.58
14 s42.0919e 143.73
15 n01.2151e 166.83
16 n59.0243e 42.62



Funding for this item is included in the Bond Fund. Director Motheral seconded the 

motion, and the votes were 4 in favor, 0 against. 

18. 

The Board of Directors concluded the Texas Open Government and Ethics training 

on August 19, 2024, so no further training was needed. 

13. 

Director Team made a motion to rescind his previous motion for agenda item 13. 

Director Hill seconded the motion and the votes were 4 in favor, 0 against.  

Director Team then made a motion to place a proposal to adopt a Tax Year 2024 

Tax Rate of $.0267/$100 on the agenda of the September 17, 2024, Board of Directors 

Meeting and establish the date for a public hearing to be held September 12, 2024, at 

11:00am on the proposed Tax Year 2024 Tax Rate of $.0267/$100. Director Motheral 

seconded the motion and the votes were 4 in favor and 0 against. 

19. 

There were no future agenda items approved. 

20. 

The next board meetings were scheduled for September 12, 2024, at 11:00 a.m.; 

and September 17, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. 

21. 

There being no further business before the Board of Directors, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

                                   
President      Secretary 



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4 
 
DATE: September 17, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Fiscal Year 2025 General Fund Budget 
 
FUNDING: Fiscal Year 2025 General Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Management recommends approval of the proposed Fiscal Year 2025 General Fund 
budgeted expenditures of $29,119,555.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed General Fund Budget consists of Flood Control expenditures of 
$29,119,555. These expenditures are the result of a combination of long-term planning 
and constant evaluation of the current system needs. System improvements and capital 
equipment support the enhancement of the flood control infrastructure, while 
maintenance costs preserve the system that is already in place. Support services include 
the personnel, administrative support, professional services, and information technology 
needed to execute the District’s mission. 
 
The Board of Directors met on August 19,2024 for a budget workshop. No changes have 
been made since that time. 
 
The General Fund budget being recommended to the Board is shown on the next page. 
Please see attached General Fund budget book for further details.   
 
Submitted By: 
 
Sandy Newby 
Chief Financial Officer 



�����������	�
�����	���������������	��

�����	�����
����
������

�������	���
�������	

�������	���
�������	 �������� ������� 

#���������

$%&'(')'*+,-,./0123+,4%'2)*2%2&* 5, 67789:;,5, <89<98::=,5, <8:7=8;>=,5, <>?8@<=,<<A6:B

DE1'FG*2),-,$(**) , ?=78;<6,, >:68?<@,, ?:=8>=:,, 6=8@@?,<?A>:B

4%'2)*2%2&*,H1FF0/) , ?6=8@=:,, @=<8>:>,, <8==:8<6>,, ;=;8?>=,;>A;@B

H)/*%G,.%1I'2I,H)%)'02+ , ;>:89@:,, ;@78===,, <?786==,, J<<68<==K,J:<A>=KB

L0)%(,4%'2)*2%2&*, ;8>;687:6,, ;86><8?=9,, 98;@;8@:6,, 99<8;:?,<<A;;B

MN��O�PO�����O����Q��������
�R���O��

5, <87798?@6,5, :8>=78>==,5, :89@:8>==,5, J<;98===K,J;A79KB

�������O�����M�S��	�����Q�
��T����U������

V1W('&,X1)/*%&Y,-,DZ*2)+ 5, @>876=,5, 77;86=7,5, @9>8<6@,5, ?;8;6<, @A=?B

H)0/G[%)*/,V/0I/%G , :<87;6,, 7>8===,, <68>==,, J>>8>==K,J7:A==KB

D2Z'/02G*2)%(,H)*[%/3+Y'F , :98;?>,, >?8:==,, :7877=,, J@8?9=K,J<>A9=KB

\(*%/,$0/],L/%+Y,̂Y**( , _,, 9>=8===,, _,, J9>=8===K,J<==A==KB

L0)%(,D2Z'/02G*2)%(,H)*[%/3+Y'F,
%23,V1W('&,X1)/*%&Y

, <7=87@9,, <8;>:89=7,, 6=;8:?@,, J9><8@96K,J;@A=>KB

V/0F*/)̀,L%a*+,V%'3,)0,Lb$c+ 5, >?<8=>@,5, >@=89<:,5, >?@8;:6,5, J<;8=?>K,J;A=@KB

M������M�������

DGF(0̀**,d*(%)*3 5, 686@;8=66,5,<986@?8;6?,5,<:8?;?876@,5, ?:=8>=;, :A>@B

e3G'2'+)/%)'Z*,H1FF0/) , <8>968>;=,, ;8=;=8<:9,, ;8><=8=6<,, :@686:@,;:A;>B

V/0f*++'02%(,H*/Z'&*+ , <8?6;8>:;,, ;8=7<896>,, <86=9879:,, J<?78??<K,J@A=6KB

b2f0/G%)'02,L*&Y20(0Ì , ?@>8966,, <8=>:89;6,, 6:=8@?7,, J<<98:?;K,J<=A7?KB

L0)%(,H1FF0/),H*/Z'&*+, <98@668>?=,, <68<9;8<?9,, <686@<8:@6,, @:689;?, :A::B

g���������	�����h�Cijk��ji�l�h��ij���jiim�h��kjCCkj����h� nk�jnni� ��o��� 

stutvwxyz{u|

}~�~�������������~�� � � � � � � � � � � � �



General	Fund
Flood	Control

General Fund Budget             
1



TRWD	General	Fund	-	Flood	Control
FY25	Budget	Summary

TRWD	General	Fund	Purpose
Enriching	communities	and	improving	the	quality	of	life	through	water	supply,	flood	control,	and	recreation.

Flood	Control	Overview
The	District	has	approved	a	strategic	plan	to	invest	in	our	people,	meet	the	rapid	growth	in	our	communities,	
further	enhance	our	fiscal	responsibility,	and	improve	community	stewardship.		Additionally,	the	plan	includes	
pursuing	Federal	and	State	funding	to	reduce	costs,	updating	internal	processes	to	increase	efficiency,	and	
demonstrating	our	values	and	commitment	to	the	community.	

The	increase	in	the	General	Fund	budget	for	fiscal	year	2025	is	mostly	due	to	expenditures	for	the	personnel	that	
maintain	the	Fort	Worth	floodway	and	support	the	District	overall	plus	the	cost	for	the	General	Fund	to	lease	a	
portion	of	the	new	operations	compound	from	the	Revenue	Fund.				

The	General	Fund	budget	is	supported	by	tax	revenues.	The	tax	rate	used	to	estimate	the	expected	revenues	is	
$0.0267	per	$100	valuation.	

The	District	enriches	communities	and	improves	the	quality	of	life	through	flood	control	and	recreation	within	the	
District	boundaries,	and	this	budget	ensures	that	protection	for	the	foreseeable	future.	

Proposed	FY25	General	Fund	Budget

Expenditures
FY23

Actuals
FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Change	%

Operating	Expenditures $	 17,161,151	 $	 23,918,387	 $	 24,735,055	 	3.41	%
System	Improvements	&	Capital	Equipment 	 1,773,689	 	 4,507,500	 	 4,384,500	 	(2.73)	%

Total	Expenditures 	 18,934,840	 	 28,425,887	 	 29,119,555	 	2.44	%

Revenues
Taxes 	 25,984,634	 	 28,242,000	 	 29,100,000	 	3.04	%
Contributions 	 —	 	 310,000	 	 —	 	(100.00)	%

Total	Revenues 	 28,577,510	 	 28,552,000	 	 29,100,000	 	1.92	%

Budgeted	Net	Increase	to	Equity $	 9,642,670	 $	 126,113	 $	 (19,555)	 	(115.51)	%

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
2



General	Fund:	Expenditures

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
3



Summary
Expenditure	Budget

The	District’s	flood	control	mission	requires	a	combination	of	long-term	planning	and	constant	evaluation	of	the	
current	system	needs.		System	improvements	and	capital	equipment	support	the	enhancement	of	the	flood	
control	infrastructure,	while	maintenance	costs	preserve	the	system	that	is	already	in	place.	Support	Service	costs	
include	the	personnel,	administrative	support,	professional	services,	and	information	technology	needed	to	
execute	the	District's	mission.	Additional	details	are	provided	on	the	following	pages.

Budget	Categories
FY23

Actuals
FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance Change %

Maintenance $	 2,529,749	 $	 2,951,603	 $	 3,282,849	 $	 331,246	  11.22 %
System	Improvements	&	Capital	
Equipment

	 1,773,689	 	 4,507,500	 	 4,384,500	 	 (123,000)	  (2.73) %

Environmental	Stewardship	&	Public	
Outreach

	 170,783	 	 1,254,307	 	 902,468	 	 (351,839)	  (28.05) %

Property	Taxes	Paid	to	TIF's 	 561,058	 	 580,314	 	 568,249	 	 (12,065)	  (2.08) %
Support	Services 	 13,899,560	 	 19,132,163	 	 19,981,489	 	 849,326	  4.44 %

Total	Expenditures $	 18,934,840	 $	 28,425,887	 $	 29,119,555	 $	 693,668	  2.44 %

FY25 General Fund Expenditures

Support Services 69%

Maintenance 11%

Environmental 
Stewardship & Public 
Outreach 3%

System Improvements & 
Capital Equipment 15%

Property Taxes Paid to TIF's 2%

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
4



Maintenance	Expenditures

Facilities	&	grounds	maintenance	increased	in	fiscal	year	2025	due	to	an	increase	in	the	cost	of	mowing	and	
maintaining	the	floodway,	both	due	to	higher	pricing	as	well	as	an	increase	in	the	public	use	of	the	floodway.	Fleet	
increased	due	to	the	increase	in	costs	needed	to	maintain	an	aging	fleet.			The	increase	in	maintenance	support	is	
primarily	due	to	an	increase	in	contract	labor	costs	needed	to	support	the	additional	cleanup	and	maintenance	
requirements	along	the	floodway.

FY23
Actuals

FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance

Facilities	&	Grounds	Maintenance $	 977,342	 $	 1,313,440	 $	 1,470,250	 $	 156,810	

Equipment	&	Fleet 	 607,219	 	 549,618	 	 640,504	 	 90,886	

Maintenance	Support 	 690,804	 	 801,545	 	 1,004,195	 	 202,650	

Stream	Gauging	Stations 	 254,384	 	 287,000	 	 167,900	 	 (119,100)	

Total $	 2,529,749	 $	 2,951,603	 $	 3,282,849	 $	 331,246	

Maintenance Expenditures

Facilities & Grounds Maintenance Equipment & Fleet

Maintenance Support Stream Gauging Stations

FY23
Actuals

FY24 Budget 
Approved

FY25 Budget 
Proposed

—

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
5



System	Improvements	and	Capital	Equipment	Expenditures

System	improvement	and	capital	equipment	expenditures	for	the	General	Fund	serve	to	support	the	District's	
flood	control	and	recreation	missions	by	improving	and	repairing	the	existing	infrastructure.	

The	largest	System	Study	&	Design	Project	relates	to	upstream	flood	mitigation.	The	District	is	also	implementing	a	
new	Enterprise	Resource	Planning/Human	Resources	Information	System	(ERP/HRIS),	which	will	replace	the	
current	financial	and	human	resource	applications	as	well	as	other	systems	for	more	efficient	processing	and	up-
to-date	data	analysis.	Construction	&	Repair	projects	include	erosion	repairs	along	the	floodway	and	the	
maintenance	and	construction	of	new	trails	and	trailheads	in	alignment	with	the	District’s	recreation	master	plan.			

Capital	equipment	purchases	are	asset-management	driven,	allowing	the	District	to	own	the	heavy	equipment	
needed	to	maintain	and	improve	the	floodway.	

Additional	details	are	shown	on	the	following	page.	

FY23
Actuals

FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance

System	Study	&	Design	Projects* $	 304,137	 $	 818,000	 $	 1,585,150	 $	 767,150	
Construction	&	Repair	Projects* 	 469,120	 	 2,324,500	 	 1,995,350	 	 (329,150)	
Capital	Equipment* 	 1,000,432	 	 1,365,000	 	 804,000	 	 (561,000)	

Total $	 1,773,689	 $	 4,507,500	 $	 4,384,500	 $	 (123,000)	

System Improvements & Capital Equipment

System Study & Design 
Projects* 36%

Construction & Repair 
Projects* 46%

Capital Equipment* 18%

*Additional	details	available	on	the	following	page.

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
6



System	Improvements	and	Capital	Equipment	Expenditures

FY25	Budget	
Proposed

System	Study	&	Design	Projects

Upstream	Flood	Mitigation $	 900,000	

ERP/HRIS	Software	Implementation 	 237,500	

Recreation	Master	Plan	-	Design	Phase 	 100,000	

Miscellaneous	System	Study	&	Design	Projects* 	 347,650	

$	 1,585,150	

Construction	&	Repair	Projects

Erosion	Repairs 	 800,000	

Maintenance	Road/Trail	Replacement 	 500,000	

Recreation	Master	Plan	Implementation 	 200,000	

Building	Improvement	at	The	Woodshed 	 100,000	

Miscellaneous	Construction	&	Repair	Projects* 	 395,350	

$	 1,995,350	

Capital	Equipment**

Heavy	Duty	Mini	Excavator 	 145,000	

Pickup	Trucks 	 279,000	

Heavy	Duty	Compact	Track	Loader 	 120,000	

Lifecycle	Video	Archiver	Servers 	 75,000	

Miscellaneous	Capital	Equipment* 	 185,000	

$	 804,000	

Total	System	Improvements	&	Capital	Equipment $	 4,384,500	

*All	individual	items	listed	under	“Miscellaneous”	are	less	than	$100	thousand.	
**	The	District	classifies	any	machinery	or	equipment	purchases	of	$10	thousand	or	more	as	capital	equipment.	

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
7



Environmental	Stewardship	and	Public	Outreach	Expenditures

TRWD	acts	as	a	steward	of	the	natural	environment	and	the	communities	it	serves.		As	owners	and	operators	of	
the	Fort	Worth	floodway,	protecting	the	quality	of	the	water	in	the	Trinity	River	is	a	priority	of	the	District.	In	fiscal	
year	2024	the	District	realigned	its	public	outreach	events	with	its	core	mission,	and	moved	these	events	from	the	
Special	Projects/Contingency	Fund	to	the	General	Fund.	The	trash	wheel	is	not	rebudgeted	because	it	was	a	one-
time	project.	

FY23
Actuals

FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance

Public	Outreach	&	Events* $	 85,790	 $	 772,907	 $	 835,198	 $	 62,291	
Stormwater	Program 	 41,729	 	 75,000	 	 19,500	 	 (55,500)	
Environmental	Stewardship 	 43,265	 	 56,400	 	 47,770	 	 (8,630)	
Clear	Fork	Trash	Wheel 	 —	 	 350,000	 	 —	 	 (350,000)	

Total $	 170,783	 $	 1,254,307	 $	 902,468	 $	 (351,839)	

The	District’s	public	outreach	events	bring	the	community	to	the	floodway,	allowing	them	to	enjoy	the	beauty	of	
the	natural	environment	within	the	local	neighborhoods.		Fort	Worth’s	Fourth	is	a	time-honored	tradition,	which	
is	budgeted	to	include	a	drone	show	in	fiscal	year	2025.		The	semi-annual	Trash	Bash	events	bring	communities	
together	to	care	for	these	natural	environments	while	getting	to	know	the	District.	

*Public	Outreach	&	Events	Detail
FY25	Budget	
Proposed

FY25	Proposed	Revenues	in	
the	Special	Projects/
Contingency	Fund

Fort	Worth's	Fourth $	 481,700	 $	 225,000	
Trash	Bash 	 117,350	
Flyfest	&	Trout	Stocking  77,000  4,000 
Community	Sponsorships 	 42,800	
Mayfest  29,000 
Other	Public	Outreach	&	Events 	 87,348	
Total $	 835,198	 $	 229,000	

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
8



Property	Taxes	Paid	to	TIF’s

TRWD	has	agreed	to	participate	in	a	number	of	tax	increment	financing	(TIF)	agreements	to	reinvest	a	portion	of	
property	taxes	collected	in	programs	that	support	economic	development	within	District	communities.		The	
decrease	in	the	overall	taxes	to	contribute	to	TIF's	in	fiscal	year	2025	is	mostly	due	to	the	ending	of	TIF	#3	
Downtown.	

Property	Taxes	Paid	to	TIF's
FY23

Actuals
FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance

TIF	#3	Downtown $	 82,908	 $	 102,164	 $	 —	 $	 (102,164)	
TIF	#8	Lancaster 	 59,444	 	 59,444	 	 70,148	 	 10,704	
TIF	#9	Trinity	River	Vision 	 173,780	 	 173,780	 	 189,581	 	 15,801	
TIF	#10	Lone	Star 	 13,067	 	 13,067	 	 14,531	 	 1,464	
TIF	#12	East	Berry 	 34,285	 	 34,285	 	 38,400	 	 4,115	
TIF	#13	Woodway 	 99,286	 	 99,286	 	 121,326	 	 22,040	
TIF	#14	Trinity	Lakes 	 63,974	 	 63,974	 	 78,005	 	 14,031	
TIF	#15	Stockyards 	 34,314	 	 34,314	 	 56,257	 	 21,943	

Total $	 561,058	 $	 580,314	 $	 568,249	 $	 (12,065)	

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
9



Support	Services
Summary

Support	services	makes	up	70%	of	the	fiscal	year	2025	General	Fund	budget	and	serves	to	support	TRWD’s	efforts	
in	providing	flood	control	to	the	communities	served	by	the	District.		The	largest	portion	of	this	cost	is	TRWD’s	
investment	in	its	people,	resulting	in	strong	employee	retention,	low	turnover	rates,	high	employee	engagement,	
and	a	stable	culture.

FY23
Actuals

FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance

Employee	Related* $	 9,982,099	 $	 13,986,296	 $	 14,626,798	 $	 640,502	
Administrative	Support* 	 1,539,520	 	 2,020,143	 	 2,510,091	 	 489,948	
Professional	Services* 	 1,692,542	 	 2,071,395	 	 1,903,734	 	 (167,661)	
Information	Technology 	 685,399	 	 1,054,329	 	 940,867	 	 (113,462)	

Total $	 13,899,560	 $	 19,132,163	 $	 19,981,489	 $	 849,326	

*Additional	details	are	given	on	the	following	pages.

FY25 General Fund Support Services

Employee Related* 73%

Administrative Support* 13%

Professional Services* 10%

Information Technology 5%

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
10



Support	Services
Employee-Related	Expenditures

TRWD’s	strategic	plan	includes	intentional	investment	in	its	people.		The	District	plans	to	invest	in	a	diverse	
workforce	through	training,	a	focus	on	safety,	and	the	planning	and	support	needed	to	live	TRWD	values.	The	
overall	increase	in	employee-related	expenditures	is	mainly	due	to	budgeting	6%	for	raises	and	promotions.		The	
increase	since	fiscal	year	2023	actuals	is	due	to	the	filling	of	many	vacancies	and	adding	additional	positions	to	
keep	up	with	community	growth.			The	District	is	self-insured	for	the	employee	group	health	plan,	and	since	claims	
have	been	lower	than	budget	for	the	past	couple	of	years,	no	increase	is	budgeted	for	fiscal	year	2025.		A	10%	
increase	in	the	Other	Post	Employment	Benefits	(OPEB)	budget	will	be	seen	each	year	until	75%	of	the	OPEB	
liability	is	funded.		As	of	fiscal	year-end	2023,	OPEB	contribution	was	funded	at	60%.	

FY23
Actuals

FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance Change	%

Salaries	and	Taxes $	 7,030,988	 $	 9,410,922	 $	 9,940,237	 $	 529,315	 	5.62	%
Group	Health	Insurance 	 1,392,229	 	 2,511,311	 	 2,511,311	 	 —	 	—	%
Retirement	Contribution 	 781,489	 	 1,051,805	 	 1,099,951	 	 48,146	 	4.58	%
Other	Post	Employment	Benefits 	 385,846	 	 448,010	 	 492,811	 	 44,801	 	10.00	%
Other	Employee-Related	
Expenditures 	 391,548	 	 564,247	 	 582,488	 	 18,241	 	3.23	%

Total $	 9,982,099	 $	 13,986,295	 $	 14,626,798	 $	 640,503	 	4.58	%

FY25 Employee-Related Expenditures

68%

17%

8%

3%

4%

Salaries and Taxes

Group Health Insurance

Retirement Contribution

Other Post Employment Benefits

Other Employee-Related*

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
11



Support	Services
Administrative	Support	Expenditures

Administrative	support	services	consist	of	a	variety	of	overhead	expenditures	that	support	the	District’s	flood	
control	system	as	a	whole.		The	new	operations	facilities	lease	is	for	the	General	Fund	lease	of	a	portion	of	the	
new	operations	compound.		Building	maintenance	costs	decreased	as	compared	to	the	fiscal	year	2024	budget	
because	the	HVAC	replacements	in	last	year’s	budget	are	expected	to	be	complete	before	the	end	of	the	year.	
Insurance	costs	increased	due	to	the	District's	need	to	protect	additional	capital	assets.

FY23
Actuals

FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance

Property	Tax	Collection $	 825,105	 $	 950,000	 $	 950,000	 $	 —	
New	Operations	Facility	Lease 	 —	 	 —	 	 500,000	 	 500,000	
Utility	Costs 	 216,085	 	 332,390	 	 336,380	 	 3,990	
Insurance 	 217,766	 	 234,400	 	 279,219	 	 44,819	
Communication	Equipment 	 81,633	 	 65,730	 	 74,080	 	 8,350	
Administrative	Building	Maintenance 	 61,923	 	 142,411	 	 77,621	 	 (64,790)	
Memberships 	 30,922	 	 40,848	 	 43,342	 	 2,494	
Legal	Notices 	 3,869	 	 4,100	 	 1,820	 	 (2,280)	
Other	Administrative	Support 	 102,216	 	 250,265	 	 247,629	 	 (2,636)	

Total $	 1,539,520	 $	 2,020,144	 $	 2,510,091	 $	 489,947	

Administrative Support Expenditures

FY23 Actuals FY24 Budget Approved FY25 Budget Proposed

Property Tax Collection

New Ops Facility Lease
Utility Costs

Insurance

Communication Equipment

Administrative Building Maintenance

Memberships

Legal Notices

Other Administrative Support
—

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

800,000

900,000

1,000,000

1,100,000

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
12



Support	Services
Professional Services

Professional	services	are	provided	by	external	vendors	with	specialized	technical	expertise	to	support	the	District's	
flood	control	efforts.		Administrative	consulting	provides	professional	support	for	financial,	human	resource,	and	
other	administrative	efforts.		

FY23
Actuals

FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance

Engineering	Consulting $	 73,554	 $	 331,780	 $	 322,280	 $	 (9,500)	
Administrative	Consulting 	 223,439	 	 363,084	 	 314,138	 	 (48,946)	
IT	&	Cybersecurity	Consulting 	 98,606	 	 214,320	 	 170,810	 	 (43,510)	
Legislative	Consulting 	 40,292	 	 39,900	 	 39,900	 	 —	
Subtotal	Consulting	Fees $	 435,891	 $	 949,084	 $	 847,128	 $	 (101,956)	

Legal	Fees 	 827,742	 	 782,600	 	 778,800	 	 (3,800)	
Miscellaneous	Professional	Fees 	 428,910	 	 339,711	 	 277,806	 	 (61,905)	

Total	Professional	Services $	 1,692,542	 $	 2,071,395	 $	 1,903,734	 $	 (167,661)	

FY25 Professional Services

17%

17%

9%

2%

41%

15%

Engineering	Consulting

Administrative	Consulting

IT	&	Cybersecurity	Consulting

Legislative	Consulting

Legal	Fees

Miscellaneous	Professional	Fees

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
13



General	Fund:	Revenues

General Fund Budget             
14



Sources	of	Revenue
Summary

The	flood	control	mission	of	the	District	is	funded	by	the	collection	of	property	taxes.	Previously,	in	fiscal	year	
2024,	contribution	revenues	were	budgeted	for	specific	reimbursable	projects	that	are	not	in	the	fiscal	year	2025	
proposed	budget.
	

FY23
Actuals

FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance

Taxes $	 25,984,634	 $	 28,242,000	 $	 29,100,000	 $	 858,000	
Contribution	Revenues 	 —	 	 310,000	 	 —	 	 (310,000)	

Total	Revenues $	 25,984,634	 $	 28,552,000	 $	 29,100,000	 $	 548,000	

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
15



Sources	of	Revenue
Tax	Revenues

As	a	governmental	entity,	the	District	is	empowered	to	levy	and	collect	ad	valorem	taxes	to	meet	the	
maintenance,	operations,	and	capital	expenses	of	its	flood	control	function.	The	proposed	budget	for	fiscal	year	
2025	estimates	the	tax	revenues	to	be	collected,	using	the	2024	fiscal	year’s	ad	valorem	tax	rate	of	$0.0267	per	
$100	valuation,	to	be	approximately	$29.1	million.	This	is	based	on	a	net	taxable	value	of	approximately	$109	
billion	and	represents	a	projected	tax	burden	of	approximately	$77.41	for	an	average	home	valued	at	$289,918.		
The	official	tax	rate	will	be	discussed	and	approved	by	the	Board	subsequent	to	approval	of	the	fiscal	year	2025	
budgeted	expenditures.

Tax	Revenues
FY23

Actuals
FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance

Property	Taxes	Collected $	 25,984,634	 $	 28,242,000	 $	 29,100,000	 $	 858,000	

R
at

e 
/ $

10
0

Tax Rate History

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
2025*

0.0100

0.0200

0.0300

0.0400

0.0500

*Budgeted tax rate

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
16



General	Fund	-	Flood	Control	FY25	Budget

Expenditures
FY23

Actuals
FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance Change	% Notes*

Maintenance
Facilities	&	Grounds	Maintenance $	 977,342	 $	 1,313,440	 $	 1,470,250	 $	 156,810	 11.94% 1
Equipment	&	Fleet 	 607,219	 	 549,618	 	 640,504	 	 90,886	 16.54% 1
Maintenance	Support 	 690,804	 	 801,545	 	 1,004,195	 	 202,650	 25.28% 1
Stream	Gauging	Stations 	 254,384	 	 287,000	 	 167,900	 	 (119,100)	 (41.50)%

Total	Maintenance 	 2,529,749	 	 2,951,603	 	 3,282,849	 	 331,246	 11.22%

System	Improvements	&	Capital	
Equipment

$	 1,773,689	 $	 4,507,500	 $	 4,384,500	 $	 (123,000)	 (2.73)%

Environmental	Stewardship	&	
Public	Outreach
Public	Outreach	&	Events $	 85,790	 $	 772,907	 $	 835,198	 $	 62,291	 8.06%
Stormwater	Program 	 41,729	 	 75,000	 	 19,500	 	 (55,500)	 (74.00)% 2
Environmental	Stewardship 	 43,265	 	 56,400	 	 47,770	 	 (8,630)	 (15.30)%
Clear	Fork	Trash	Wheel 	 —	 	 350,000	 	 —	 	 (350,000)	 (100.00)% 2
Total	Environmental	Stewardship	

and	Public	Outreach
	 170,783	 	 1,254,307	 	 902,468	 	 (351,839)	 (28.05)%

Property	Taxes	Paid	to	TIF's $	 561,058	 $	 580,314	 $	 568,249	 $	 (12,065)	 (2.08)%

Support	Services
Employee	Related $	 9,982,099	 $	 13,986,296	 $	 14,626,798	 $	 640,502	 4.58%
Administrative	Support 	 1,539,520	 	 2,020,143	 	 2,510,091	 	 489,948	 24.25% 3
Professional	Services 	 1,692,542	 	 2,071,395	 	 1,903,734	 	 (167,661)	 (8.09)%
Information	Technology 	 685,399	 	 1,054,329	 	 940,867	 	 (113,462)	 (10.76)%

Total	Support	Services 	 13,899,560	 	 19,132,163	 	 19,981,489	 	 849,326	 4.44%

Total	Expenditures $	 18,934,840	 $	 28,425,887	 $	 29,119,555	 $	 693,668	 	2.44	%

Revenues
FY23

Actuals
FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance Change	%

Taxes $	 25,984,634	 $	 28,242,000	 $	 29,100,000	 $	 858,000	 3.04%
Contributions 	 —	 	 310,000	 	 —	 	 (310,000)	 (100.00)%

Total	Revenues $	 25,984,634	 $	 28,552,000	 $	 29,100,000	 $	 548,000	 	1.92	%

Net	Increase	to	Equity $	 7,049,794	 $	 126,113	 $	 (19,555)	$	 (145,668)	 	(115.51)	%

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
17



Variance	Explanations

1. Maintenance	-	Facilities	&	grounds	maintenance	increased	in	fiscal	year	2025	due	to	an	increase	in	the	
cost	of	mowing	and	maintaining	the	floodway,	both	due	to	higher	pricing	as	well	as	an	increase	in	the	
public	use	of	the	floodway.	Fleet	increased	due	to	the	increase	in	costs	needed	to	maintain	an	aging	fleet.			
The	increase	in	maintenance	support	is	primarily	due	to	an	increase	in	contract	labor	costs	needed	to	
support	the	additional	cleanup	and	maintenance	requirements	along	the	floodway.

2. Environmental	Stewardship	and	Public	Outreach	–	The	primary	cause	for	the	decrease	in	the	
environmental	stewardship	budget	is	the	removal	of	the	trash	wheel	and	a	decrease	in	the	stormwater	
program.		The	trash	wheel	is	not	re-budgeted	because	it	was	a	one-time	project.		

3. Administrative	Support	-	The	main	increase	is	due	to	the	General	Fund’s	lease	of	a	portion	of	the	new	
operations	compound.	

General	Fund

General Fund Budget             
18



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
 
DATE:    September 17, 2024  
 
SUBJECT:   Vote to Adopt a Tax Rate of $.0267/$100 for Tax Year 2024  
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    
 
Management recommends formal adoption of an ad valorem tax rate of $.0267/$100 
valuation, for tax year 2024. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The Board must adopt a tax rate by official action and set it out in a written resolution, 
ordinance, or order. The tax rate must be adopted after the adoption of the FY 2025 
General Fund Budget.  
 
The public hearing was held September 12, 2024, at 11:00 AM on the proposed tax 
year 2024 tax rate of $.0267/$100.  
 
Submitted By: 
 
Sandra Newby 
Chief Finance Director  
 



ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  

TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING AD VALOREM TAX 

 

 

 On the 17th day of September, at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of 
Directors of Tarrant Regional Water District, upon motion duly made and seconded, the 
Board of Directors unanimously entered the following order: 
 
 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Tarrant Regional Water District adopt for tax year 
2024 an ad valorem tax rate of $.0267 per $100 of taxable value as appraised by the 
Tarrant County Appraisal District and that the Water District staff take the necessary steps 
to implement collection of the tax so adopted. 
 
 
 
       
 

   Leah M. King, President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
Mary Kelleher, Secretary  
 
 
 
 
 
 



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6 
 
DATE: September 17, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Fiscal Year 2025 Special Projects/Contingency 

Fund Budget 
 
FUNDING: Fiscal Year 2025 Special Projects/Contingency Fund  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Management recommends approval of the proposed Fiscal Year 2025 Special 
Projects/Contingency Fund budgeted expenditures of $54,446,348. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed Special Projects/Contingency Fund budget consists of special projects 
expenditures of $45,650,000 and expenditures for the Central City Flood Control project 
of $8,796,348. These expenditures are offset by expected revenues of $18,903,969 
resulting in an expected decrease to equity of $35,542,379. 
 
The Board of Directors met on August 19, 2024, for a budget workshop. Since that time 
no changes have been made.  
 
The Special Projects/Contingency Fund budget being recommended to the Board is 
shown on the next page. Please see attached Special Projects/Contingency Fund budget 
book for further details.   
 
Submitted By: 
 
Sandy Newby 
Chief Financial Officer 

 

 



���������	
������
����������������������������

����� !"#$�%
&'()
*+"#,-%

&'(./0# 1�"/
*��$23� 

&'(4/0# 1�"/
5$2�2%� 6,$!,�+� 78,�1�/9

;<=<>? @A BCDEBBA@A CDFFFDFFFA@AGHDFFFDFFFA@AGIDFFFDFFFAABGFFJFFAK

M<=NOPQAR?><=SA;T=?U>NV=WA XAA XAA CHFDFFFAA CHFDFFFA ABFFJFFAK

Y<AZQ<[PA\N<SVU]A
P̂]T>VNVT=

A XAA BEHDFFFAA IFFDFFFAA HDFFFA AIJH_AK

Y<=SA\NQ<NPẀ A BGaDG_BAA BFFDFFFAA BFFDFFFAA XA AXAK

b2",-/����� !"#$�%c/ Ld(e)f(/c/ )e(g4ehhh/c/.4ed4hehhh/c/.(e)44ehhh//L(i4j.)/9

k�3��#�%
&'()
*+"#,-%

&'(./0# 1�"/
*��$23� 

&'(4/0# 1�"/
5$2�2%� 6,$!,�+� 78,�1�/9

lV>A<=SAZ<? @A HDaIBDaamA@A aDFFFDFFFA@A HDFFFDFFFA@A nCDFFFDFFFoA AnCmJHFoAK

R=NPQP?NAR=pT]P A IDHmCDFGHAA BD_FFD mHFDFFFAA BDBHFDFFFA AmBJaaAK

qPpQP<NVT=AqP[P=UP? A amCDmCHAA mE_DFFFAA BDFGEDE_aAA IHCDE_aA ACBJEBAK

YP<?P?DAMPQ]VN?DArA
lNOPQAR=pT]P

A BDmBCDIHmAA BDGFHDaGmAA BDCFmD_HCAA nEaDBEGoA An_JEaoAK

b2",-/k�3��#�%c/LhegiLeg(4/c/LLeihLei.f/c/LheLhfed(L/c/ sLedg.e((dt/ /sL.j)dt/9

u�v"/w�$3!+�/x/7��"$,-/7!"y/
5$2z�+"

&'()
*+"#,-%

&'(./0# 1�"/
*��$23� 

&'(4/0# 1�"/
5$2�2%� 6,$!,�+� 78,�1�/9

P̂{NA\PQ[VpPA|AMQT}PpNA;T?N?@A aDBGEDGEIA@A mDHmmDGG_A@A aDGG_DCGaA@A a_aDEFIA ABBJGmAK

~;�;lZA�QVSWPAM<̀]P=N A CHFDFFFAA CHFDFFFAA CHFDFFFAA XA AXAK

�R�AqP[P=UP? A naDBBFDECaoAA nmDEImDGG_oAA naDmE_DCGaoAA na_aDEFIoA ABFJE_AK

:�"/5$2z�+"/�����%�%c/ s)iie44.t/c/ �/c/ �/c/ �/ /Lhhjhh/9

:�"/��+$�,%�/"2/��#!"yc/ fefd(ef)g/c/ ie4hdei.f/c/s)4e4.(e)fgt/c/s..eh.ge((dt//s4LfjiLt/9

���������������������������������

\�PpV<>AMQT}PpN?A|A;T=NV=WP=p̀A�U=SA�USWPNAA A A A A A A A A

FFFA ID



���������	
�����
�
��������������

������������� �!���� 

"#$%&'()*+,-$%./)0)1,2.&23$2%4)5627)8673$.)) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
1



���������	
������
��������������
�����������������	�

����� �!"#$�%&'(�!)*+,'-)"-.�-!/�01-2�"-!$12�*�&�3�-1�*�4&'5�-'-6' �&#)"-.�"-!'5��)'�*1  '&)�* �!"#$� &'(�!)*�
#  &'3�2�7/�)���8'#&29�:22")"'-#$$/;��<0�&�3�-1�*�4'&�)���,�-)&#$�,")/�0$''2�,'-)&'$�%&'(�!)�#-2�&�$#)�2�2�7)�
*�&3"!��#&��712.�)�2���&�9�<-�4"*!#$�/�#&�=>=?�)���@"*)&"!)�&�#$".-�2�")*�&�!&�#)"'-��3�-)*�A")��")*�!'&��5"**"'-;�#-2�
5'3�2�)��*���3�-)*�4&'5�)���� �!"#$�%&'(�!)*+,'-)"-.�-!/�01-2�)'�)���B�-�&#$�01-29�@�)#"$*�'4�)���#5'1-)*�
7�$'A�!#-�7��4'1-2�'-�)���4'$$'A"-.� #.�*9

CD�������	�
���E
F�����

���G��������
F��	
H��

������������
�	
�
�� I�	�����

,#-#$* J� KL;MKK�J� L;>>>;>>>�J�?N;>>>;>>>�J�?=;>>>;>>>�

%#-)��&�<*$#-2�,'-*1$)"-. � O�� O�� LN>;>>>�� LN>;>>>�

P#�B&#3���)#2"15�@�5'$")"'- � O�� KMN;>>>�� =>>;>>>�� N;>>>�

P#-2��)&#)�./ � K?Q;?RK�� K>>;>>>�� K>>;>>>�� O�

S
����CD�������	�T� UV�WEX��T� EW�Y�WZZZ�T�G�WV�ZWZZZ�T�G�WE��WZZZ�

[�H����
���E
F�����

���G��������
F��	
H��

������������
�	
�
�� I�	�����

\"$�#-2�B#* J� N;Q=K;QQ]�J� Q;>>>;>>>�J� N;>>>;>>>�J� L̂;>>>;>>>_�

<-)�&�*)�<-!'5� � =;N]L;>?N�� K;R>>;>>>�� =;]N>;>>>�� K;KN>;>>>�

�̀!&�#)"'-�̀�3�-1�* � Q]L;]LN�� ]MR;>>>�� K;>?M;MRQ�� =NL;MRQ�

P�#*�*;�%�&5")*;�a�\)��&�<-!'5� � K;]KL;=N]�� K;?>N;Q?]�� K;L>];RNL�� M̂Q;KM?_�

S
����[�H����T�UZWYbUWY���T�UUWbZUWbGX�T�UZWUZXWV�U�T� cUWVYGW��Vd�

e�f����	H����������	���������	
����
���E
F�����

���G��������
F��	
H��

������������
�	
�
�� I�	�����

@�7)���&3"!��+�%&'(�!)�,'*)* J� Q;K?M;?M=�J� ];N]];??R�J� Q;??R;L?Q�J� QRQ;M>=�

g,�,\B�8&"2.��%#/5�-) � LN>;>>>�� LN>;>>>�� LN>;>>>�� O�

�<0�̀�3�-1�* � Q̂;KK>;MLQ_�� ]̂;M=];??R_�� Q̂;]MR;L?Q_�� Q̂RQ;M>=_�

h����i��������e�f����	H����Cj����T� cEbbW��Gd�T� k�T� k�T� k�

���������h���l��	�����
�Cj����T� XWXV�WXEY�T� bW�ZVWbGX�T�cE�W�G�WEXYd�T�cGGWZGYW��Vd�

mnopqrstuvwxopyz{|w}yq}~o}p�t��}�

�������������������������������������������� � � � � � � � �
2



�

��������	
����������������������
��������
��

������ !"#$%��&'()$*&�*+�*�,!-.*/

0123456�789:23;<�=�>9?;4?@2?3A�BC?D�ECD@2;�� � � � � � � � �
3



���������	�
����	�

�������������������� !�"��"#�"�$�%&"'����(�'�����)&"'�"#�����&��������&��������������������(�'�*$�����+���'�
������&����������)���'���"�����,�����"���)�����-��������.����&��&��"#���/�)&"'�"#0�����������)������$����12134�5��
6��(�����'�&,��/��"'��&����.�������'��&���)�����6�"�����%&"'0��7��������)�����)���'���"�����,�����"4��89-�.����
"��'����*&��'���"�����&���"������)�'�."��."�:��"�����;���"'<������.����)&"����"����)���'���"������"'�����,.�����
���"�,�����"�:����,����"���#��1=<0����"�����;���"'���"�&���"#�)��������)���������������'������"�����;���"'�
'�(����,�"�0�

>?@A
BCDEFGH

>?@IJKELMNDJ
BOOPQRNL

>?@SJKELMNDJ
TPQOQHNL UFPVFWCN

XYZY[\ ]̂ _̀ab__̂ ]̂ àcccaccĉ ]̂ deacccaccĉ ]̂ dfacccaccĉ

gYZhijk̂l\[YZm̂XnZ\o[hpZq ^ r^̂ r^̂ ècaccĉ^ ècaccĉ

sŶtkYuĵvhYmpoŵxjwn[phpnZ ^ r^̂ _beaccĉ^ fccaccĉ^ eaccĉ

sYZm̂vhkYhjqy ^ _dzad{_̂^ _ccaccĉ^ _ccaccĉ^ r^

|QDFGJ}~ONWLVDEPNH�J @��A���A@J�J A�@�S����J�JIS��S�����J�JI@�ASS����J

���������������������������������

v�j�pY[̂gkn�j�h\̂�̂XnZhpZqjZ�ŷ�oZm̂ omqjĥ̂ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^
4



����������	�


����������������������������� 

!"#$%&'()*+,#$-.(/(0+1-%12#1$3(4516(7562#-(( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
5



���������	
������
���������������
�������

������� !"#$��%&'(#)%�)*�)�+ ,-).

/0123456789:12;<6=6>9?;3?@1?2A6BC?D6ECD@1;66 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
6



�����������	�
����
������

����������������������������������� ���!�"��#����������������#� �����#�$������#�����#��������������!�������������%��
��������������������� !��������$������&$���� �'��(����)*�����"���+�,��!������$$����$��(������$�������  +��$$����!�
-+�����.���!%�

/012
3456789

/01:;<6=>?5;
3@@ABC?=

/01D;<6=>?5;
EAB@B9?= F7AG7H4?

IJKLMNOLPMQ RL STUVWTUUXLRL UTYYYTYYYLRL STYYYTYYYLRL Z[TYYYTYYY\L

]N̂_̀_Q̂L]Nabc_ L VTSX[TYdSLL WTeYYTYYYLL VTXSYTYYYLL WTWSYTYYYL

f_à_M̂JbNLf_g_Nh_Q L UX[TX[SLL XieTYYYLL WTYdiTieULL VS[TieUL

j_MQ_QTLk_̀cĴQTLlLÎm_̀L]Nabc_ L WTXW[TVSXLL WTdYSTUdXLL WT[YXTeS[LL ZiUTWid\L

nB578;o?C?H6?9p;qrstuqst1D;p;qqsurqsu:v;p;qrsqrvsw1q;p; xqswt:s11wy;

L

LLL

z{VSL|hO}_̂_OLf_g_Nh_Q

di~

VX~
W[~

WY~�� ���!����

���������������

������#�'������#���������������

�������������������

���������������������������������

��_aJMKLk̀b�_âQL�L�bN̂JN}_Na LzhNOL|hO}_̂LL L L L L L L L L
7



�����������	�
����
���������	�������

�������������� ���!�"#�� ������$��"%�&�'�����$���'��'�&�"�����%� ������"���$��"����'�'�$�(���%��"�)�'�*�+�(,��"%�
�����"��(�#"���'�#"%����"%�'#���#"%�"&�-�,��.��%&�/�����"%�0�&$��1�#"���"�-�,�2�3#�����#"(�����"���� ���$��"%�
&�'�/��%#(���"*����'����!�"#�'�����'����'�%���'���(�"��"&�"(�2�

����(�����4�$�5��$$#'�����'������(�#�$���!�"#�'���(��!�%� ������$��"%�&�'�����$���'� �������/�'��67�����'�5��������
4#%&���%���!�"#�'� ��� �'(�$������7879��"%� �'(�$������787:2�;�������� �'(�$������7878*���$��"%�&�'���!�"#�'�5�����"�
����<�"���$�=#"%2�>"� �'(�$������7878����'����!�"#�'�5������!�%�������������?/�(��$�;����(�'@A�"��"&�"(��=#"%�
%#���������!����4�$����� ����'����!�"#��'�#�(�'2��3#�������%��/��"���$��"%�&�'���!�"#�'*����� �'(�$������787:�4#%&���
��'�4��"���%#(�%2

BCDEFEGHIEJKLKMNKI

ONPQKRKPEBCDEFEGHIEJKLKMNKI STRNHDEBCDEFEGHIEJKLKMNKI

UVWU UVWX UVWY UVWZ UVW[ UVW\ UVW] UVŴ UVUV UVUW UVUU UVUX UVUY UVUZ

_̀

_ZaVVVaVVV

_WVaVVVaVVV

_WZaVVVaVVV

_UVaVVVaVVV

_UZaVVVaVVV

_XVaVVVaVVV

_XZaVVVaVVV

bcdefghijklmdenopqlrnfrsdretiuvrw

xyKTCHDEz{|}KTRIE~E�|MRCMQKMT�E�NMPEONPQKREE E E E E E E E E
8



�����������	�
����
�������������

�������������������������������������� �!� ����"�#�$�!�����������%������� ��&�''� �����������������(�� '�
)����������*����������+��'�,�����-���#�'���� �� �� $��%��� �%���"��#�.�"� ��/�0%�������� '#��#�����-���#�'������
�"-�� ''"��������!��������������������������������0�� � �' 0'���#����!�!,�����0��������� ����/�����������������
 ��%����� �1,23����������� ������#��� '�"� ��1412,�5!!����� ''"/�����������������#��������)���� '�6%�!�& ������!�
���#��� '�"� ��1417���������-��� '�+��8����9:���������"�6%�!�!%���������%�-��!��� 0�'��"� �� ������%����%���,�*��
#��� '�"� ��141.�)���� '�6%�!������������������ ���!��������)���� '�6%�!�& ��;1,<���''���,�

=>?@
ABCDEFG

=>?HIJDKLMCI
ANNOPQMK

=>?RIJDKLMCI
SOPNPGMK TEOUEVBM

WXYXZ[\]̂_Ỳ]aYbXZXcb]aYdefX g] h]g] ijjkjjj]g] lkjjjkjjj]g]ijjkjjj]

WemXZYfXYb[\]neYboYpXYdq]̂_Ỳ]aYbXZXcb]aYdefX] rkistkjui]] lkljjkjjj]] lksijkjjj]] vijkjjj]

wPCEFIxVCMOMGCIxVBPyMzI ?{R|@{}HRIzI ~{�}}{}}}IzI ?{|R}{}}}IzI~{~R}{}}}I

aYbXZXcb]aYdefX

WXYXZ[\]̂_Ỳ]aYbXZXcb]aYdefX]�̀ X̀̀]oY]̂�ru
��Xdo[\]�Ze�Xdbc�neYboYpXYdq]̂_Ỳ]aYbXZXcb]aYdefX

rjrl rjrr rjrt rjru� rjri�
gh

gtijkjjj

gsjjkjjj

glkjijkjjj

glkujjkjjj

glksijkjjj

grkljjkjjj

grkuijkjjj

grk�jjkjjj

gtklijkjjj

gtkijjkjjj

��_̀pXbX̀][fe_Ybc

���������������������������������

��Xdo[\]�Ze�Xdbc]�]neYboYpXYdq]̂_Ỳ]�_̀pXb]] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ]
9



�����������	�
����
�����������������������������

���������� �� !""� �����#�$%���&�!'�"�(����($)�*��'����*(�)��!�%��������� ��*�!*���+,��-���!�� (""+.�������#�$%���
&�!'�"�(����!&�/!+!������#�0�$.�1!!)���)�2���(%�($��($)�!�����"! (��!$��!$�3��)4�*!���($)�5(4"��6!%$�(�$�"(7���
8����%��)��!�!&&������ ��(��!$0�+*���9*�$)��%���,�:$�&�� ("�+�(��;<;=���������"(��)��9*�$)��%����8����'!#�)��!�
����>�$��("�?%$)��!�@������("�4$�8�������������� �A�� !���'����!$.�8��"����������#�$%�����'(�$�)��$�����B*� �("�
C�!D� ��E/!$��$4�$ +�?%$),��

�

�����������������������������
FGHI
J���K�

FGHL�M�NO���
JPP��
�N

FGHQ�M�NO���
���P���N R�����

S$$�9�5(��.�1����($)�>(�(4��T�(�� U� V<;.WX;�U� V<;.WXY�U� V<;.WXY�U� Z�

/!+!������#�0:$����(����T�(�� � Y[[.V\V�� Y[\.<<<�� Y[\.<<<�� Z�

1!!)���)�2���(%�($� � YX;.VY[�� Y[\.<<<�� Y[\.<<<�� Z�

3��)4�*!��E5(4"��6!%$�(�$�T�(��� � ;<\.\\=�� YV\.[;\�� YV\.[;\�� Z�

]�����?"!!)8(+�T�(����̂�C��'��� � Y=Y.=\;�� Y=[.\WY�� Y\[.<W[�� X.\<V�

T($).�5_%�*'�$�.�̂�B($)�B("�� U� W[V.VV̀�U� YYW.\<<�U� Y;.\<<�U� aY<Y.<<<b�

6�� �""($�!%��2�#�$%�� � YV.XYX�� ;V.[<<�� ;<.<<<�� aV.[<<b�

c��Kd� e�feI�HQf�d� e�LgQ�hLf�d� e�Igf�iQI�d� jkh�ekLl�

	���������	�
�����

2� ��(��!$���#�$%���(�����#�$%����(�$�)��$���"(��!$��!��� ��(��!$0�+*��( ��#������!$������� ��*�!*���+,������
'(D!���+�!&���������#�$%���(���@!(���('*�($)�*(�7��$��+�&����&�!'��8�$�C!�$���C(�7,�������$ ��(����$�C($�����
:�"($)�#�$%��&�������@(��)�!$�($��$ ��(����$�� ��)%"�)��#�$���&!��&�� ("�+�(��;<;=.�'($+�!&�8�� ��(���($�� �*(��)�
�!�!  %��(4(�$��$�&�� ("�+�(��;<;\,�������� ��(��!$��#�$�����#�$%���(����(�$�)�!$��#�$���"�7��?!���1!���A��?!%����
($)�?"+&���.�����@%"7�!&�8�� ��(�������'(��)��!�@���(�$�)�!$�?!���1!���A��?!%���,�

	���������	�
�����
mnop
qrstuvw

mnoxyzt{|}sy
q~~���}{

mno�yzt{|}sy
���~�w}{ �u��u�r}

�8�$�C!�$���C(�7�?��� � \[\.V̀;�� \\<.<<<�� \\<.<<<�� Z�

C($�����:�"($)���$%��?��� � ;Y;.XVY�� Y\<.<<<�� ;[<.XV̀�� Y;<.XV̀�

2� ��(��!$�5#�$�� � \̀.<X;�� XV.<<<�� ;;X.<<<�� YWW.<<<�

c��Kd� hfI�fIQ�d� fki�ggg�d� e�gLk�kih�d� HQI�kih�

���������������������������������

�� ¡¢£¤¥¦§̈© ¡ª«¥¬¥̈ ®ª¢®̄ ®¡°¥±²®³¥́²³̄ ª¥¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥
10



���������	
������
���������������
�������	������	
������
�

������ !"#$%��&'()$*&�*+�*�,!-.*/

0123456789:;23<=7>7?:@<4@A2@3B7CD@E7FDEA2<77 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
11



�����������	�
��������������������
����������������������������

������� !"#���$%&'(�)�*+�,�&)&'-(+��.�$�/&),���,��%%0+1&,�*��-/&�1+-&0$�-+�($$2&�3 4!�5())(+��(��*+�,$�-+�6(���'&�
-/&�0&5�(�(�7�+2-$-��,(�7�)+'�)�$/�0&�+6�-/&�8&�-0�)�8(-��9)++,�8+�-0+)�:0+;&'-<�=/($�3 4!�5())(+��.())�*&�0&%�(,�*��
-/&�8(-��+6�9+0-�>+0-/�=�?���'0&5&�-�@&(5*20$&5&�-�A+�&�B25*&0�B(�&�C=�9DE�(���''+0,��'&�.(-/�-/&�%0+;&'-�
'+$-$�62�,(�7��70&&5&�-F�/&�'&F�*+-/�-/&�=�9�0&1&�2&���,�,&*-�$&01('&�&?%&�$&��0&�$/+.��(��-/&�G%&'(�)�:0+;&'-$H
8+�-(�7&�'��92�,<�=/&�-�*)&�*&)+.�())2$-0�-&$�/+.�-/&�=�9�@&1&�2&$�'+))&'-&,�.())�,(0&'-)��+66$&-�-/&�*2,7&-&,�
,&*-�&?%&�,(-20&$�6+0�6($'�)��&�0� ! 4<

IJKLMNJOPQRJ
STUV
WRLXYZ[

STU\M]X̂_JLM
Ẁ ÒaPĴ

STUbM]X̂_JLM
cOàa[Ĵ dYOQYeRJ

f&*-�G&01('&�H�:0+;&'-�8+$-$ 3� #F"gDFgD �3� hF4hhFggi�3� #FggiFjg#�3� #i#FD! �

B8=8kl�m0(,7&�:��5&�- � j4!F!!!�� j4!F!!!�� j4!F!!!�� n�

=�9�@&1&�2&$ � C#F""!FDj#E�� ChFD hFggiE�� C#FhDiFjg#E�� C#i#FD! E�

o�����
�p���������q�������rs����t� uvwwxyyz{�t� |�t� |�t� |�

}~�������������������������������

��������������� �¡�¢�£��£¤�£�¥�¦§£̈�©§̈¤���� � � � � � � � �
12



�����������	�
��������������������
��������
����������

���� 
������������������

���� !�"#� $ %&%''&''' 

()*��� +,#�- .��/0 12030�"/4�5 (/4360 70�4658  9&9':&%9; 

+�53 <#=>4�4"4,5  ?&:9:&9@A 

2/,6/�B !�5�60B05"  @&'@%&A9% 

C0-,#�"4,5  D'%&?A% 

70B,-4"4,5  E;?&%'E 

F5G4/,5B05"�-  ?&%E'&''' 

H�I�JK (/4360 C0*�)B05"  A%'&''' 

(,53 L��>�5#0 �,�"�  A'&''' 

M�N���������� O� �PQRR�QSRT�

���	��U�
��������V 
������������������

.0W0/ X Y�"0/ C0-,#�"4,5 C04BZ>/�0B05" $ :'&'@:&9?@ 

.",/B Y�"0/ C0-,#�"4,5  @9&9''&AA% 

[/�5#�4�0 \"4-4"40�  @&D@%&:@; 

]̂ _̀â bcd̂ef gc hiijkilc

M�N���������	��U�
��������V O� SmQn�PQ�nn�

�����������������	�
������������������� O� o�QPn�QnRS�

pqrstuvwxyz{rs|}~�z�|t��r�s�w����

��̀��̂�cde��̀�_�c�c���_���̀��bc����c����̀_cc c c c c c c c c
13



���������	
������
����������������������������

����� !"#$�%
&'()
*+"#,-%

&'(./0# 1�"/
*��$23� 

&'(4/0# 1�"/
5$2�2%� 6,$!,�+� 78,�1�/9 :2"�%

;<=<>? @A BCDEBBA@A CDFFFDFFFA@AGHDFFFDFFFA@AGIDFFFDFFFAABGFFJFFAK L

M<=NOPQAR?><=SA;T=?U>NV=WA XAA XAA CHFDFFFAA CHFDFFFA ABFFJFFAK (

Y<AZQ<[PA\N<SVU]A
P̂]T>VNVT=

A XAA BEHDFFFAA IFFDFFFAA HDFFFA AIJH_AK

Y<=SA\NQ<NPẀ A BGaDG_BAA BFFDFFFAA BFFDFFFAA XA AXAK

b2",-/����� !"#$�%c/ Ld(e)f(/c/ )e(g4ehhh/c/.4ed4hehhh/c/.(e)44ehhh//L(i4j.)/9

k�3��#�%
&'()
*+"#,-%

&'(./0# 1�"/
*��$23� 

&'(4/0# 1�"/
5$2�2%� 6,$!,�+� 78,�1�/9 :2"�%

lV>A<=SAZ<? @A HDaIBDaamA@A aDFFFDFFFA@A HDFFFDFFFA@A nCDFFFDFFFoA AnCmJHFoAK )

R=NPQP?NAR=pT]P A IDHmCDFGHAA BD_FFDFFFAA IDmHFDFFFAA BDBHFDFFFA AmBJaaAK .

qPpQP<NVT=AqP[P=UP? A amCDmCHAA mE_DFFFAA BDFGEDE_aAA IHCDE_aA ACBJEBAK 4

YP<?P?DAMPQ]VN?DArA
lNOPQAR=pT]P

A BDmBCDIHmAA BDGFHDaGmAA BDCFmD_HCAA nEaDBEGoA An_JEaoAK

b2",-/k�3��#�%c/LhegiLeg(4/c/LLeihLei.f/c/LheLhfed(L/c/ sLedg.e((dt/ /sL.j)dt/9

u�v"/w�$3!+�/x/7��"$,-/7!"y/
5$2z�+"

&'()
*+"#,-%

&'(./0# 1�"/
*��$23� 

&'(4/0# 1�"/
5$2�2%� 6,$!,�+� 78,�1�/9 :2"�%

P̂{NA\PQ[VpPA|AMQT}PpNA;T?N?@A aDBGEDGEIA@A mDHmmDGG_A@A aDGG_DCGaA@A a_aDEFIA ABBJGmAK

~;�;lZA�QVSWPAM<̀]P=N A CHFDFFFAA CHFDFFFAA CHFDFFFAA XA AXAK

�R�AqP[P=UP? A naDBBFDECaoAA nmDEImDGG_oAA naDmE_DCGaoAA na_aDEFIoA ABFJE_AK

:�"/5$2z�+"/�����%�%c/ s)iie44.t/c/ �/c/ �/c/ �/ /Lhhjhh/9

:�"/��+$�,%�/"2/��#!"yc/ fefd(ef)g/c/ ie4hdei.f/c/s)4e4.(e)fgt/c/s..eh.ge((dt//s4LfjiLt/9

���������������������������������

\�PpV<>AMQT}PpN?A|A;T=NV=WP=p̀A�U=SA�USWPNAA A A A A A A A A
14



����������	
��������

���������������������������������� �����!����� "�#$%&�'���� ((�����)*������ ����+*��� ���,������' ��' �
-.� �,(��/��� �0��,���'�����* ���� ������������ ������ ������!'��(����� �!����� 1��

2�3���4���5����6����7����8���.� �,(��/��� ���� �*��� 9��((����(������������(���(�����.� �,(��/��� ��
�(:(���!( �1�

;�<�����6�=���>�?��7�����&*(������������ ������ ��9����(:( *(�"��,(��������@(���ABAC�)*�9(��,���)(( �
�(�*�(�1���

D�5��������5��E����#��)(��� �(�:���:("��,(�&��������������*!� 9���A1CF�� �(�(������(������,�����(�!�
� :(��!( ��������������@(���ABAC1�

G�>���������>�?��7�����#,(�!�+����@�����,���� ��(��(�����*(����� ��(��(����� ����,����(:( *(�����  (������
H����%���,I��H�*��,�� ��� �� ��(��(�� ���,(�*�(������:���(������,(�.� �,(��/��� ��.�:���� 1

�

�

JKLMNOPQRSTULMVWXYTZVNZ[LZM\Q]̂Z_

àbcdefghijkbclmgngojpldpqbpcrgstpugvtuqblgg g g g g g g g g
15



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
DATE: September 17, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Fiscal Year 2025 Revenue Fund Budget 
 
FUNDING: Fiscal Year 2025 Revenue Fund  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Management recommends approval of the proposed Fiscal Year 2025 Revenue Fund 
budgeted expenditures of $186,585,960. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The proposed Revenue Fund Budget consists of Water Supply expenditures of 
$186,585,960 offset by projected non-contract revenues of $10,095,000 for a proposed 
net revenue requirement from contract customers of $176,490,960. 
 
The resulting proposed budgeted water rate for FY 2025 is $1.40014.  
 
The Board of Directors met on July 25, 2024, for the proposed Revenue Fund budget 
workshop. Since that time no changes have been made.  

 
The Customer Advisory Committee met on September 9, 2024, and recommends the 
proposed FY 2025 Revenue Fund budget for Water Supply to the TRWD Board of 
Directors. 
 
The Revenue Fund budget being recommended to the Board is shown on the next page. 
Please see attached Revenue Fund budget book for further details.   
 
Submitted By: 
 
Sandy Newby 
Chief Financial Officer 



Revenue	Fund	FY25	Budget

Expenditures
FY23

Actuals
FY24	Budget
Approved

FY25	Budget
Proposed 	Variance	 Change	%

Debt	Service $	 73,355,233	 $	 83,204,886	 $	 89,713,179	 $	 6,508,293	 	7.82	%
Pumping	Power 	 20,272,037	 	 18,000,000	 	 19,000,000	 	 1,000,000	 	5.56	%

Maintenance
Pipeline	&	Pump	Station $	 3,896,414	 $	 5,335,000	 $	 5,490,500	 $	 155,500	 	2.91	%
Pipeline	Chemicals 	 1,354,880	 	 2,210,000	 	 1,830,000	 	 (380,000)	 	(17.19)	%
Facilities	&	Grounds	Maintenance 	 1,651,661	 	 2,352,605	 	 3,293,430	 	 940,825	 	39.99	%
Equipment	&	Fleet 	 895,465	 	 978,266	 	 1,240,440	 	 262,174	 	26.80	%
Maintenance	Support 	 826,600	 	 964,965	 	 971,950	 	 6,985	 	0.72	%
Benbrook	Reservoir	O&M 	 676,339	 	 650,000	 	 650,000	 	 —	 	—	%
Stream	Gauging	Stations 	 178,200	 	 195,000	 	 315,000	 	 120,000	 	61.54	%

Total	Maintenance 	 9,479,559	 	 12,685,836	 	 13,791,320	 	 1,105,484	 	8.71	%

System	Improvements	&	Capital	
Equipment

$	 13,729,797	 $	 10,546,929	 $	 13,875,245	 $	 3,328,316	 	31.56	%

Water	Quality	Programs	&	
Watershed	Protection
Water	Conservation	Program $	 2,606,398	 $	 3,096,002	 $	 3,410,502	 $	 314,500	 	10.16	%
Watershed	Protection 	 154,315	 	 405,650	 	 405,650	 	 —	 	—	%
Water	Quality	Programs 	 299,699	 	 437,960	 	 416,961	 	 (20,999)	 	(4.79)	%
Public	Outreach	&	Events 	 72,701	 	 84,843	 	 130,429	 	 45,586	 	53.73	%

Total	Watershed	Protection	&	
Environmental	Stewardship

	 3,133,111	 	 4,024,455	 	 4,363,542	 	 339,087	 	8.43	%

Support	Services
Employee	Related $	 28,128,990	 $	 33,801,466	 $	 36,350,953	 $	 2,549,487	 	7.54	%
Professional	Services 	 2,367,791	 	 3,611,903	 	 4,136,404	 	 524,501	 	14.52	%
Administrative	Support 	 2,549,365	 	 2,982,282	 	 2,840,243	 	 (142,039)	 	(4.76)	%
Information	Technology 	 2,175,609	 	 2,905,933	 	 2,515,074	 	 (390,860)	 	(13.45)	%

Total	Support	Services 	 35,221,755	 	 43,301,584	 	 45,842,673	 	 2,541,089	 	5.87	%

Total	Expenditures $	155,191,492	 $	171,763,691	 $	186,585,960	 $	 14,822,269	 	8.63	%

Revenue	Fund

Revenue Fund Budget           



System	Rate	Calculation

The	sale	of	water	revenue	is	estimated	using	the	budgeted	raw	water	rate	multiplied	by	the	estimated	water	
usage	for	fiscal	year	2025.	This	budgeted	rate,	expressed	in	dollars	per	1,000	gallons,	is	calculated	by	taking	the	
budgeted	expenditures	for	fiscal	year	2025,	subtracting	other	income	sources,	and	dividing	that	number	by	the	
estimated	usage	in	gallons.	Each	fiscal	year,	the	four	primary	customers	provide	their	estimated	usage	for	the	
year.	The	other	customers'	estimated	usage	is	based	on	historical	data	combined	with	overall	customer	trends.	

Net	System	Revenue	Requirements
FY23	

Actuals
FY24	Budget	
Approved

FY25	Budget	
Proposed Variance Change	%

Total	Expenditures $ 155,191,492 $	 171,763,691	 $	 186,585,960	 $	 14,822,269	 	8.63	%
Less:	Other	Revenues	Not	Through	
Sale	of	Water

 (9,384,504) 	 (7,672,317)	 	 (10,095,000)	 	 (2,422,683)	 	31.58	%

Net	System	Revenue	Requirement $	 145,806,988	 $	 164,091,374	 $	 176,490,960	 $	 12,399,586	 	7.56	%

Projected	Usage	Gallonage	(000's)
FY23	Actual
Water	Usage

FY24	Budgeted
	Water	Usage

FY25	Budgeted
Water	Usage Variance Change	%

Fort	Worth  81,801,560 	 72,796,920	 	 75,138,820	 	 2,341,900	 	3.22	%
Arlington  20,887,751 	 19,064,016	 	 19,863,483	 	 799,467	 	4.19	%
Trinity	River	Authority  13,344,656 	 11,670,485	 	 12,511,573	 	 841,088	 	7.21	%
Mansfield  6,490,665 	 6,163,193	 	 6,656,180	 	 492,987	 	8.00	%
Other	Customers  13,960,697 	 11,425,000	 	 11,882,000	 	 457,000	 	4.00	%

Total	Gallonage	(000's) 	 136,485,329	 	 121,119,614	 	 126,052,056	 	 4,932,442	 	4.07	%

Calculated	System	Rate
FY23

Actual	Rate
FY24	Budgeted
	Approved	Rate

FY25	Budgeted
Proposed	Rate 	Variance	 Change	%

District	Rate $	 1.06830	 $	 1.35479	 $	 1.40014	 $	 0.04535	 	3.35	%

Revenue	Fund

Revenue Fund Budget           



������������
�	
��������

�������������������� � � � � � � � � � �



�������������	��
��������������
	������
������������

������ !"#$%&��'!(� #�!)%* �%+ !,- .#!)%* �%+ -/!#0%* *! &!#��%+.!+&112�% %#*!��3!%14�&5#! .#!62�'% 7!&8!'%8#!
 .�&2$.!9� #�!*244'7!��3!8'&&3!+&� �&':!�.#!)%* �%+ !.�*!�44�&5#3!�!* �� #$%+!4'��! &!%�5#* !%�!&2�!4#&4'#;!1## !
 .#!��4%3!$�&9 .!%�!&2�!+&112�% %#*;!82� .#�!#�.��+#!&2�!8%*+�'!�#*4&�*%<%'% 7;!��3!%14�&5#!+&112�% 7!
* #9��3*.%4:!

�.#!"#5#�2#!=2�3!<23$# !8&�!8%*+�'!7#��!>?>@!*.&9*!��!%�+�#�*#!%�! .#!9� #�!�� #!32#! &!AB!<%''%&�!&8!'��$#!+�4% �'!
4�&C#+ *!&5#�! .#!�#0 !@!7#��*!��3!.%$.#�!1�%� #���+#!��3!*244&� !*#�5%+#*!+&* *:!!!D''!&8! .#*#!+&* !%�+�#�*#*!��#!
3#*+�%<#3!%�!1&�#!3# �%'!%�! .#!#04#�*#!4&� %&�!&8! .#!<23$# :!

E&1#!&8! .#!1�C&�!4�&C#+ *!%�!+2��#� !FGH!��#!*.&9�!<#'&9:!

I J�
���J���K������
�!L!�.%*!9# '��3!8�+%'% 7!%*!4'���#3! &!�''&9!9� #�!�#+'�1� %&�!��3!#�.��+#!* &��$#!
*244'7!��3!7%#'3!&8!F#3��!F�##M!"#*#�5&%�:!!

I N�����O�P�����Q���������Q�R���!L!�.#!F#3��!F�##M!H%4#'%�#!"#4'�+#1#� !4�&C#+ !%*!�#4'�+%�$!
3%* �#**#3!4%4#!&�! .#!@?!7#��!&'3!4%4#'%�#!,*##!FGH!4�#*#� � %&�!8&�!�$#/:!!�.#!&'3#�!4%4#!%*!<#%�$!�#4'�+#3!
9% .!'��$#�!S?T!��3!B?>T!9#'3#3!* ##'!4%4#*!9.%+.!9%''!4�&5%3#!%�+�#�*#3!9� #�!3#'%5#�!+�4�+% 7:

I UV���
�
������Q����������W��!J���Q������.#!XY"!H.�*#!Z!4�&C#+ !%*!�33%�$!�!�#9!B[@\1%''%&�\$�''&�! .%�3!
+#''!� !XY"!4�&5%3%�$!�33% %&��'!#1#�$#�+7!* &��$#!��3!&4 %1%]#3! %1#\&8\3�7!+�4�<%'% 7:

^ _�����W���	�Q����!\!�.#!&'3#�!&4#�� %&�*!8�+%'% 7!�&!'&�$#�!1# !9&�M!�##3*!&8!* �88!��3!1� #�%�'!* &��$#!
9�*!<#7&�3!1�0%121!+�4�+% 7̀! .#!�#9!+&14&2�3!9%''!�++&11&3� #! .#!+2��#� !9&�M'&�3!��3!�''&9!8&�!
82 2�#!$�&9 .:

^ Oab�JW���Q�W��W���Q����
�J��Rc�����!�.#!�#9!E#+ %&�!B[!GHd!H%4#'%�#!9%''!+&��#+ ! .#!82 2�#!e"FB!
4214!* � %&�!&�!"%+.'��3!F.�1<#�*!�#*#�5&%�! &! .#!�#* !&8! .#!GHd!9� #�! ���*1%**%&�!*7* #1:

!

fghgijgkljim

nopoqrostrqusvruwoxs s s s s s s s s s s
1



�������������	��
��������������
	������
����������

������������
���� !��"# $%%&��'�()#*�+#�%,�$-��"#'!(#.&*/�'0#$1#/�1(#'!�$&"!#2*'(�#)&,,/03#1/$$+# $�'�$/3#*�+#�( �(*'�$�4

������������5����6�7
89:;#)&,,/�()#2*'(�#'$#%$�(#'!*�#<#%�//�$�#,($,/(#��#*�#==> $&�'0#)(�-� (#*�(*3#%*?��"#�'#$�(#$1#'!(#/*�"()'#
2*'(�#)&,,/�(�)#��#'!(#)'*'(4#8!(#;�)'�� '#,�$-�+()#�*2#2*'(�#'$#%$�(#'!*�#@A#+��( '#2!$/()*/(# &)'$%(�)#��#�$�'!#
 (�'�*/#8(B*)3#'!(#/*�"()'#$1#2!� !#�� /&+(#C$�'#:$�'!3#D�/��"'$�3#E*�)1�(/+3#*�+#'!(#8����'0#9�-(�#D&'!$��'04

8!(#;�)'�� 'F)#)(�-� (#*�(*#,$,&/*'�$�#�)#,�$G( '(+#'$#�(*�/0#+$&H/(#��#'!(#�(B'#@A#0(*�)4#I�#*�'� �,*'�$�#$1#'!�)#
"�$2'!3#'!(#;�)'�� '#!*)#H("&�#,/*����"#1$�#(�$&"!#�(2#2*'(�#)&,,/0#)$&� ()#'$#,�$-�+(#2*'(�#)&,,/0#�(/�*H�/�'0#
'!�$&"!#'!(#0(*�#<A@A4##89:;#�)#+(-(/$,��"#*#/$�">�*�"(#2*'(�#)&,,/0#�()�/�(� (#*�+#+�-(�)�1� *'�$�#,/*�#'$#
(�)&�(#*#�(/�*H/(#2*'(�#)&,,/0#��#(B'�(%(#*�+# !*//(�"��"# $�+�'�$�)3#�� /&+��"#,$2(�#$&'*"()#*�+# /�%*'(#
 !*�"(4##89:;#�)#*/)$#,�$�((���"#'!(#2$�?#'$#+('(�%��(#!$2#'$#$,'�%�J(#�("�$�*/#2*'(�#)&,,/0#* �$))#�$�'!#
 (�'�*/#8(B*)4##

K(/$2#�)#'!(#,�$,$)(+#9(-(�&(#C&�+#H&+"('#1$�#1�) */#0(*�#<A<@4#8!(#9(-(�&(#C&�+#�)#)&,,$�'(+#H0#*��&*/#
�(-(�&()#1�$%#2*'(�#)*/()#*�+#$'!(�#%�) (//*�($&)#�� $%(#�'(%)#'!*'# $-(�#=AAL#$1#'!(#*��&*/# $)'#$1#H&�/+��"3#
$,(�*'��"3#*�+#%*��'*����"#'!(#:*'(�#M&,,/0#M0)'(%4#

D++�'�$�*//03#'!(#;�)'�� '#!*)#*#N$�'��"(� 0#C&�+#O()'*H/�)!(+#,(�#K$�+#N$-(�*�')P#��#'!(#(-(�'#$1#*�#&�(B,( '(+#
)0)'(%# $)'3#'!*'#%&)'#!*-(#*#%���%&%#$1#Q=4=#%�//�$�4##8!(#D+-�)$�0#N$%%�''((#!*)#+��( '(+#'!*'#*//# &)'$%(�#
H&0>��#,�(%�&%)#*�+#�(/*'(+#��'(�()'#�� $%(#*/)$#H(#+(,$)�'(+#'$#'!�)#1&�+4#8!(#N$�'��"(� 0#C&�+# &��(�'/0#!*)#*#
H*/*� (#$1#*,,�$B�%*'(/0#Q=R#%�//�$�4

ST���
6����
	��U
VW����

	��X���
��
V������


	������
��
�������
 YZ[\]̂_̀

a,(�*'��"#�B,(�+�'&�() Q#bc3=Ab3db<#Q#ec3A==3ce@#Q#c<3RRe3@fb# #b4fR#L

M0)'(%#I%,�$-(%(�')#g#N*,�'*/#�.&�,%(�' # =f3e<R3eRe## =A3@db3R<R## =f3ce@3<d@# #f=4@b#L

;(H'#M(�-� ( # ef3f@@3<ff## cf3<Ad3ccb## cR3e=f3=eR# #e4c<#L

�����ST���
6����h�i��jikijXk��h�ilijlmUjmki�h�inmj�n�jkmo� �npmU�q

�������
�	������������	��
���
��

��������
	��U
VW����

	��X���
���
V������


	������
���
�������
 rs�����q

M*/(#$1#:*'(� Q#=d@3cAb3Rfb#Q#=bd3AR=3fed#Q#=eb3dRA3RbA# #e4@b#L

;*//*)#:*'(�#t'�/�'0#>#Iuv # <3<<@3<@f## f3@RA3@ec## f3Re@3AAA# #=A4e=#L

I�'(�()'#I� $%( # f3e=c3<ec## =3bAA3AAA## f3@AA3AAA# #==c4e@#L

:*'(�#N$�)(�-*'�$�#N$�'��H&'�$�) # =3=eR3<Rb## =3<<R3ebc## =3<<R3ebc# #w#L

a'!(�#I� $%( # <3<b=3e<R## =3<@=3Re=## =3fRA3<f<# #==4Ad#L

�������������h�i��jikijXk��h�ilijlmUjmki�h�inmj�n�jkmo� �npmU�q

	��U
VW�������

	��X���
���

�V������
����

	������
���

�������
���� rs�����q

M0)'(%#9*'( Q# =4AbcfA#Q# =4f@deR#Q# =4dAA=d# #f4f@#L

xyzy{|y}~|{�

�������������������� � � � � � � � � � �
2



����������	
�������

���������������������� �!��"����������� ���#�����!�#���!�$��������!���$����%&�������#�����'��!��&�����%���
��������&���(����'���&�����#%��$!�$��������!����!���� ���)�*�������%������#�����!���#��"��%�#������������������
�������)�+%���!���!#��#���!����������#�������������������"!�!� ������������������!�$������%������������������)��

+%��$���%�"������%�������������$�������%�������,-� ���������"��$��������$�������!�#��� �����,-,.�����,-,/)�+%��
�!���!#��!��#������� �������!�$��������������������" ��0����!�$�������!��!���� �����!��������#����&���'����!�$�
��������#����������� &����������#!�$��$!�$�!��������#����)��

1�����%����%���!�!�$�������������������� �����#�������������!��!���� ������0����!���!��"�����������2�#�!��������
�� 3 �������$���������������4������ �����#���#!� ���������#������������!�$��%���� ����)5�6���%��$���%�"����&��%��
 �����,--7&�,-88&�,-,,&�����,-,9������0������������ � ������!�%�%!$%������������$�)5�+%�������������%����� ����
��� �����!��#���!�������������'!����'����"���!����������%����������%������2�#����������� 3 ��������������� ������)5�

:;<=>?@A?BC;DEF>G?HIIIJ;?=<KKEL;M

N����O���% *��!�$��� +P* Q����!��� R�%��

ST
?U
II
V

ST
?U
II
W

ST
?U
II
X

ST
?U
II
Y

ST
?U
II
Z

ST
?U
II
[

ST
?U
I\
I

ST
?U
I\
\

ST
?U
I\
U

ST
?U
I\
]

ST
?U
I\
V

ST
?U
I\
W

ST
?U
I\
X

ST
?U
I\
Y

ST
?U
I\
Z

ST
?U
I\
[

ST
?U
IU
I

ST
?U
IU
\

ST
?U
IU
U

ST
?U
IU
]

ST
?U
IU
V̂

ST
?U
IU
Ŵ

_

UẀIIÌIII

WÌIIÌIII

YẀIIÌIII

\IÌIIÌIII

\UẀIIÌIII

\WÌIIÌIII

âCb=>D>b?:;<=>

cdedfgdhigfj

k>l>LC>?SCLb?aCb=>D? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ? ?
3



������������	�
��
����

��������������������������������� ���!�����"�����#�!"���!���������������� ����$���!�#%��������� ���!�������
���"���������&���%����'(')*������#�!"���!�����+��,$�����!����!�������$���-+(((�"������+����&��&�����!�#%���.��"�����
#�!"���!��,$��!��������������&���%����'(')+���#���&���"���������&� ������&��+���!�!���!��"�������� #���#%�����
���� ���!����"�����"������*�/�&�����&���%���+����������$�� ��%�&���� ����$����!������������ ���!����"����������
%���*�����������&���� ���0����� ���!����"�����#���!�����������&���!����&� #���!��������������&���� �������!�*�

1������������2�������3�4������
5678�
9����
�

567:�;�<=���
9>>4�2�<

567?�;�<=���
@4�>���< A�4���� 	B��=��C

������/,$��!������ DEFGGHFIFHJIKEL�-M-+MNO+NP-�L�-QN+)Q)+PN(�L�-R+Q''+'NP� �Q*NO�S

T���U�V�����W��������X��������"��
Y�������Z����

E [IH\]JHĜJ_E� M̀+NM'+O-Ma�� -̀(+(P)+(((a�� '̀+R''+NQOa� �O-*)Q�S

1������������2�������3�4�����b�c:?defgdhee�b�cg:dfhcd8i:�b�cigd:hfdhgf�b�c7d8hhd?eg� �ij?g�C

@4�k����<�l��=��m�

���=��nfffo�p
5678�9����

q���4�l��=�

567:�;�<=���<
�q���4�l��=�

567?�;�<=���<
q���4�l��=� A�4���� 	B��=��C

r����Z���� E ]FH]̂FHGŝE� M'+MPN+P'(�� M)+-OQ+Q'(�� '+OR-+P((� �O*''�S

t����"��� E K̂H]]uHuGFE� -P+(NR+(-N�� -P+QNO+RQO�� MPP+RNM� �R*-P�S

������%�W�����t�������% E F\H\JJHsGsE� --+NM(+RQ)�� -'+)--+)MO�� QR-+(QQ� �M*'-�S

v�������! E sHJÎHssGE� N+-NO+-PO�� N+N)N+-Q(�� RP'+PQM� �Q*((�S

V�����w���� ��� E F\HIŝHsIuE� --+R')+(((�� --+QQ'+(((�� R)M+(((� �R*((�S

x���
�m�

���=��nfffo�p�c8gd:e?d87h��c7cdcchdgc:��c7gdf?7df?g�� :dh87d::7� �:jfi�C

	�
��
���<������������
5678

9����
�����
567:�;�<=���<
�9>>4�2�<�����

567?�;�<=���<
@4�>���<����� �A�4����� 	B��=��C

y�����&��W��� L� -*(NQO(�L� -*O)RMP�L� -*R((-R�L� (*(R)O)� �O*O)�S

z{|{}~{��~}�

�������E����E������E E E E E E E E E E E
4



������������	
����
��������������������������������������������� ������!����������"������������#������������!����������$��%��&��������
���'�&���!�������������&�� �����!�!��������(���������������������������!���������� ��� ������$����"��)���������
*�������&���&��+��&��&�&����%��&����������������������&�������,-.������$���/�!�����)����&(�)�!����&��
0������12$�����3����4���&�������(�&�����$�����������$"��5��(�����������&�� ��� ������$����6-67��������4�����'$�
�������������"�5��(�� ��� ������$������������(�������� �������������������&�����������$8$�������������������&�"�

9:;<�=>>?
@�� 9:;A�B?
>
��� 9:;C�B?
D�E��� 9:;F�B?
D�E���

2G2H+�*)HIJ3*K2

*�������&���&��+��&��&�&�� L� M-/,-N/,6M� L� MO/PPN/7OM� L� N-/OPN/6QP� L� NN/RON/-,Q�

)����&(�)�!�� � ,Q/---/---� � ,P/---/---� � ,P/---/---� � ,P/---/---�

0�������S�2$�����3����4���&�� � ,-/R7,/MNP� � ,O/QN7/6R7� � ,-/---/---� � ,-/---/---�

TUT=V��:�TW	�UBW�=TXUY� � ZZ[AAZ[Z\A� � ]C[ZF;[FẐ� � ]][_]F[;Z]� � \̂C[<_F[\̂Z�

05IIHK��H̀�2HIa30H L� NN/R,N/PQM� L� NP/PQ7/6-R� L� NP/PMN/NRN� L� Q-/-,M/RPM�

)I*)*2H��̀*K���H̀�2HIa30H

H0)�̀�&�� � 7/N7N/P--� � 7/7M7/---� � O/---/---� � O/---/---�

6-67�3�����8�L,7-���� � R/,OO/M67� � ,-/MR,/ON7� � ,-/MR,/7--�

6-6M�3�����8�L,7-���� � R/,OO/M67� � ,-/MR,/ON7�

6-6N�3�����8�L6N-���� � N/6-6/QN7�

6-6Q�3�����8�L6N-����

6-6P�3�����8�L6N-����

6-O-�3�����8�L6R-����

*̀K��)JG3Kb�JbHK�cHH2 � 6P/---� � 6P/O7-� � 6P/N--� � O-/-7-�

*Jd�)I*)*2H��̀*K���H̀�2HIa30H � 7/NQM/P--� � P/N6N/PN7� � ,N/Q-R/N--� � O,/7,7/Q--�

TUT=V�eWfT��W�gXhW � Z_[;\<[ZZC� � Z][F̂_[̂F]� � ]F[FF;[<<F� � ^̂ [̂A_;[;]C�

TUT=V�WiBWYeXTj�W� k� F̂̂[FC_[C]̂� k� ẐC[AZA[]C\� k� ]̂F[̂C][F_C� k�;̂F[]C][_̂<�

VW��l�UTmW��XYhU	W k� F[CF;[_̂F� k� \̂[\]A[\\\� k� \̂[<;\[\\\� k� ^̂[̂;\[\\\�

YWT��:�TW	��WnjX�W	WYT� k� Ĉ<[\]̂[_F<� k� F̂C[<]\[]C\� k� ẐC[F<][F_C� k�;\C[Z<][_̂<�

B�UoWhTWe�p=TW��j�W�q̂\\\�r=Vst ;\;< ;\;A ;\;C ;\;F

c*I�u*Iv � N6/NPM/P6-� � N7/,OQ/Q6-� � N7/RO6/NM-� � NP/P-7/OR6�

JId3Kb*K � ,P/-MR/-,M� � ,P/QMO/RQO� � 6,/,PN/MNM� � 6,/R7M/QQN�

I3K3G�I3aHI�J5v*I3G � ,,/MN-/RQ7� � ,6/7,,/7NO� � ,6/N6Q/RO6� � ,6/QRP/QPN�

+JK2c3Hd� � M/,MO/,PO� � M/M7M/,Q-� � M/NQP/O-R� � M/P67/-P-�

*vHI � ,,/R67/---� � ,,/QQ6/---� � ,6/,--/---� � ,6/O--/---�

TUT=V�j�=rW � ;̂̂[̂̂ ][Ĉ<� � ;̂C[\A;[\AC� � ;̂Z[;<Z[̂F;� � _̂_[<_F[;̂C�

)I*wH0H��2G2H+�uJHI�IJH2�xL1,---�bJd"y

����������� k� ŝ_A<F]� k� ŝ<\\̂<� k� ŝ<AĈC� k� ŝAA\̂C�

B�UoWhTWe��:�TW	��WgWYjWl�qkt

c*I�u*Iv L� PQ/M6R/ONQ� L�,-7/6-7/,6M� L�,-P/QR6/-PM� L�,6O/QMM/6O6�

JId3Kb*K � 67/Q6N/MPM� � 6N/Q,,/N67� � O-/QMN/,QQ� � OO/6M,/M7O�

I3K3G�I3aHI�J5v*I3G � ,7/Q,,/-O,� � ,N/7,N/PPN� � ,Q/7OR/M6,� � ,P/P,P/R6O�

+JK2c3Hd� � Q/ORP/Q,P� � P/O,P/M-N� � P/QQM/O-M� � ,-/NO7/-,6�

*vHI � ,7/RNQ/R7-� � ,M/MOM/7-R� � ,N/M,P/767� � ,P/-MM/PPR�

TUT=V��:�TW	��WgWYjW k� Ĉ<[\]̂[_F<� k� F̂C[<]\[]C\� k� ẐC[F<][F_C� k�;\C[Z<][_̂<�

z{|}~�}����|}�}��~������

������������

����}�����}�������~� � � � � � � � � � �
5



������������	
���

������
������ ������
������ ������
������

���������� !�"�#�

�$%&'()*+,�'+-��')+(%+'+.% /� 0123042564� /� 78259:2663� /�34127712014�

�;<$)+=��*>%& � 3724442444� � 3724442444� � 3724442444�

?'$)('@�A��B,(%<�"<$&*C%<%+(, � 3424442444� � 3424442444� � 3424442444�

DEDFG����DH	�E�H�FDIEJ� � KKLMK��MN��� � K��MNO�M��K� � K�LM��PM�P��

?Q  �#��R�S���� T"?� /� 572738279:� /� 5720962669� /� 5129:72884�

� �����R�S�#R�R�S���� T"?�

�?��S*+-, � :24442444� � :24442444� � :24442444�

6461�",,;%�U�/314�<)@ � 3429842614� � 3429862614� � 3429862361�

6469�",,;%�U�/314�<)@ � 3429832144� � 3429842614� � 3429862614�

6465�",,;%�U�/654�<)@ � 3021:72514� � 3021862614� � 30218:2144�

6460�",,;%�U�/654�<)@ � 526462051� � 3021:72514� � 3021862614�

6467�",,;%�U�/654�<)@ � 526462051� � 3021:72514�

64:4�",,;%�U�/684�<)@ � 9285:2444�

S�#R��!�"#V�!V�#��W��� � :42844� � :42514� � :32344�

���!X�� �����R�S�#R�R�S���� T"?� � 1424182551� � 9021702361� � 09283:2751�

DEDFG�YHZD��H�[I\H � K��M�O�MN��� � KL�MLO�M�PK� � KO�M�P�MLKP�

DEDFG�H]�HJYID̂�H� _��LLMKP�MLP�� _��N�M���MPN�� _���NM�L�M�OP�

GH��̀�EDaH��IJ\E	H _� KKM���M���� _� K�M���M���� _� K�M���M����

JHD����DH	��Hb̂ I�H	HJD� _����M���MLP�� _��O�M���MPN�� _���LM���M�OP�

��EcH\DHY�dFDH��̂�H�eK����fFGgh ���� ���� ����

W� ��i� �j � 032:6024:9� � 0625142567� � 08235:2866�

! X"#V��# � 6325392470� � 6327512:47� � 6626:82164�

� "#"��� "T� �!Q�j� "�� � 3627502:79� � 3:23:02319� � 3:26:02319�

�!#�W"�XR � 5249:2176� � 526482098� � 52:482098�

��j� � 3621442444� � 3625442444� � 3627442444�

DEDFG�̂�FfH � K�PMP�OMK��� � K�NMNO�M�P�� � K��M�P�M�O��

� �k�?��R��������i!�� � !����l/m3444�V!Xno

����������� _� KgNK�P�� _� Kg���O�� _� �g��OOO�

��EcH\DHY����DH	��H[HĴ H̀�e_h

W� ��i� �j /�3:72:152556� /�3192674257:� /�35328:62001�

! X"#V��# � :526332335� � 83214829:3� � 8126082666�

� "#"��� "T� �!Q�j� "�� � 6626:020:4� � 68203:2718� � 6927932993�

�!#�W"�XR � 36234:2918� � 3:29452506� � 3820552181�

��j� � 6328372401� � 6:27092836� � 6926562713�

DEDFG����DH	��H[HĴ H _����M���MLP�� _��O�M���MPN�� _���LM���M�OP�

pqrqstquvtsw

xyzy{|y}~|{�}�|��y�} } } } } } } } } } }
6



������������	�
����
��

�������������������������� ����������!���������������"����#����!�$�%�&'��&!�(�&����%)!��&)��������&�� �*�+���
$������� !����+�)���&����������������������'����������������������� ���,���������'���������������������������������)�
���&'����������%�)��������������)����'�,�

-�..
�����/000123
4567�8��9�.
�����������

456:�;9<����<
������������

456=�;9<����<
����������� >������ ?@�����A

"����#���� � BC!BDC!EFD�� GH!GIF!IHD�� GE!CJB!BHD��H!JKC!IDD� �J,HH�L

$�%�&'��& � HD!BBG!GEC�� CI!DFK!DCF�� CI!BFJ!KBJ��GII!KFG� �K,CI�L

���&�� �*�+���$������� � CJ!JKK!FEF�� CC!FGD!KBE�� CH!ECC!EGJ��BKC!DBB� �G,HC�L

(�&����%) � F!KID!FFE�� F!CFJ!CIJ�� F!FEF!CBD��KIH!IBG� �B,DD�L

M�����N�������� � CJ!IFD!FIG�� CC!KHE!DDD�� CC!BBH!DDD��KEG!DDD� �K,DD�L

O
��.�-�..
�����/0001�3� P7QR:S=R76T�� P6PRPPTRQP:�� P6QR0=6R0=Q��:RT76R::6� �:U0V�A

WXYZ[\]̂_̀à̂ [bcàd[efc_̀

gah̀d[i]fajk̀ df[lm

ncofpq̀r̂[Zm

sdqoqat[uqv̀d[w]ahjdqat[xym

wdrqo_ajo[xzm

Wjda[bjdah[zym

{|}|~�|���~�

ù v̀o]̀[W]ô[\]̂_̀a[ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [
7



��������������	
���������

�������������������� � � � � � � � � � �
8



���������	�
����	�

��������������������������������������������  �!��"�"����#�$����"��%���"$������&��������%"$������"��"'��"��(���$�
 ������������%"���������������"��"'��)��%��������!���$������*��+�$ ���� "��������$��������%�� �"�������
%"�����������  �!�"'��������)�"��)��)���,��������!���$-��)���������������%���'"��������%� ����� �".�%��-��!���$�
�$ �"��$����-�����%� ������&�� $�������"���)��������%���"�%"�����������������)���!���$���������"�$�����)���� ���
��"��)�����)��%"$$����!*��/��'��%���!����#0#1-�����"'��)������������������������"���%�����������"�������%� �����
 �".�%��-���������'������%����-������!���$���������'"���"��(���$� �������������''�%���%���*���

2)���!���$������  "������)�"��)���$���������������� �"'����"���������%��-���'"�$���"����%)�"�"�!-��������������-�
����(���������"�3'"�%��%"$$�������"�����������!��)����)�� ����%��������)�$�$"��*��2)��'��%���!����#0#1��������
��%��������%����������)���%"����������%)�"�"�!��"�$��%)��)����%���������!���$���4�*�

5��6���7���68	��

9:;<
=>���?


9:;@�5��6��
=��	8A��

9:;B�5��6��
C	8�8
�� �D�	���>��

�����E����%� F� GH-H11-#HH�F� IH-#0J-IIK�F� IL-GMH-MGL�F� K-10I-#LH�

+�$ ����+"��� � #0-#G#-0HG�� MI-000-000�� ML-000-000�� M-000-000�

N��������%� � L-JGL-11L�� M#-KI1-IHK�� MH-GLM-H#0�� M-M01-JIJ�

E!���$�/$ �"��$�����O�P� �����Q&�� $��� � MH-G#L-GLG�� M0-1JK-L#L�� MH-IG1-#J1�� H-H#I-HMK�

R�����S�����!�+�"���$��O�R�����)���+�"��%��"� � H-MHH-MMM�� J-0#J-J11�� J-HKH-1J#�� HHL-0IG�

E�  "���E����%�� � H1-##M-G11�� JH-H0M-1IJ�� J1-IJ#-KGH�� #-1JM-0IL�

T8��?����������	�
U�VBBWVXVW@X;�U�VYVWYZ<WZXV�U�V[ZWB[BWXZ\�U� V@W[;;W;ZX�

]̂ _̂ à̂bcàdbefĝ d̀hiaĵk

lmnopqmrstum vwxytz{pv|}mr

~�tzomz�zum q��omxp�xyr|smxmzo�p�p��yto��p��wtyxmzo

��omrp�w��to�pvr|{r�x�p�p��omr��m�pvr|omuot|z qwyy|ropqmrstum�

�� ����������� ����������� ����������� ������������ ������������ ������������ ������������ ������������

�����

�����

����

����

����

����

����

����

�����������$"����

������� ¡��¢

£msmzwmp¤wz�p¥w�{mop p p p p p p p p p p
9



����������	��
����������

������������������������������������������� �!��"����������"����#��$������%��� ������&""�!����������������'����
�((��#�%��������)��*���+�!�(���������+��"��$����� ������&""�!�������� �����������&������(�#�%�,� �����#�����%&����
������%�� �����&��������#�(&�&��������"�!���)�

����-.)/�'�������������������#�%�������������#&���������-011�'�������2123�%��#����&�������#�����������"���#�-0/1�
'�������212/�%��#����&���������&""�������$����"�����"��4����,�����&#��$������� �5�#���5���+� �����#�,�
��"����'�����(��$��$���(�����&��&��,��6"��#�#�%�������$�������������"����!,����� ��"���������(������!,���#�����
�������(�����789���������������:������#�5��'%���)�

;<=>
?	��@A�

;<=B�C��D��
?���E���

;<=F�C��D��
G�E�E��� �H@��@	��

I��#��8�!�%�� -� 31,2//,111�-� 30,0/1,111�-� 31,JK/,111�-� L2//,111M�

7��������N6"���� � OO,1P0,P33�� O.,2P0,OO.�� 3O,22O,J2K�� .,K/2,3KO�

N58�I��#� � Q�� /,P/P,K11�� /,/./,111�� L0K2,K11M�

I��#�7��&�����N6"���� � 2O,111�� 21,111�� 2O,111�� O,111�

8�!��$�R$����S��� � /,3JK�� /,./1�� .,O/1�� P11�

TE�@A�����������	�U� V>W>FFW=>>�U� X>W=YBWXXZ�U� X[WV\>W\V[�U� ZWFYXW=[>�

]̂
G
�]
E
��
�

_
@��
��̀
@��

5�"�����7'"����'�����%!�a����b�R#�"��#�578

R��&���5�"�����8��4����5���� N'"��!���c�8&%����d�(��!

R$��$�7�(�����&��&��,�7�������#�5�"����!�e�*"����������S��6�%����! f� �*"���������S������!

N'��$���!�8��"���#�������#�:��������� g�� ���b�h�����d&""�!���#������'������

I&#$���#e8��4����#�h�����:���

ij
kl
ml

ij
kl
mm

ij
kl
mk

ij
kl
mn

ij
kl
mo

ij
kl
mp

ij
kl
mq

ij
kl
mr

ij
kl
ms

ij
kl
mt

ij
kl
kl

ij
kl
km

ij
kl
kk

ij
kl
kn

ij
kl
ko

ij
kl
kp

ij
kl
kq

ij
kl
kr

ij
kl
ks

ij
kl
kt

ij
kl
nl

ul

uplvlllvlll

umllvlllvlll

umplvlllvlll

ukllvlllvlll

ukplvlllvlll

unllvlllvlll

ulwll

ulwpl

umwll

umwpl

ukwll

ukwpl

xyzy{|y}~|{�

��������i����������� � � � � � � � � � �
10



�����������	
����
������
�

��������������������� �����!��"� ��� ��#����$�$����$�"�%����&�����������'����� �(�� ��������)���*&������&���&�$�
 �����$������&"�&#���&%��&�$��� �� ����"&����)�+����!�� &"�#�&��,-./����!�� &"�#�&��,-.0�����& ��&"��&������&���
��&#�$�!&��"#�"�%�"1�2������� �����!�������$�����$�!����34-���""�������3.-���""���)��5������&�������& �����& ��&"�
 ������������&�������!��&��!&""�"�&$�������������!�� &"�#�&��&�$������%��&""������ �����!��"� ��� ��#)����

�'���������������$� �&2�"��#��!��&��!&""�&�$������� ����1�����'����� ��&�$�����6��������7$%����#�6����������&%��
&����$�����&���&���&����&$#���������������2�$���������$� ��2�$����%�"&��"��#���� ������&�������!��&�������2��
�����$��& ��#�&�� &��!"� ��&������&�"#)�5����"���!!���� ��������#�&�����������������������������������&��2�$���1�
���� ���������&"���&����%�$�&��������������� �������� #�!��$���&����� ������"#�!�""#�!��$�$�&��38���""���)�
9���%��1������#�&������'����� ������� �����$����&�3.���""������ ��&������������������������2�$����$������&�
�����!� &����� ��&������������� ���!��"� ��� ��#)

:;<=
>?��@A�

:;<B�C���
�
>����D
�

:;<E�C���
�
������
� �F@��@�?
�

������������� 3� ,-1,G,1-4G�3� .H1---1---�3� .I1---1---�3� .1---1---�

J
�&
��
�K
��
��
�
�
�
�&
�
$
��
&"
"�
�
�L

�
�
�
���6
�
��

������6����%��*&����J�&��

MNOPQRSTQOUVSWXQYU MNOPQRSZ[XOX

\]
Ŝ
__̀

\]
Ŝ
__
a

\]
Ŝ
__
b

\]
Ŝ
__
c

\]
Ŝ
__
d

\]
Ŝ
_e
_

\]
Ŝ
_e
e

\]
Ŝ
_ê

\]
Ŝ
_e
f

\]
Ŝ
_e
g

\]
Ŝ
_è

\]
Ŝ
_e
a

\]
Ŝ
_e
b

\]
Ŝ
_e
c

\]
Ŝ
_e
d

\]
Ŝ
_̂
_

\]
Ŝ
_̂
e

\]
Ŝ
_̂
^

\]
Ŝ
_̂
f

h\
]Ŝ
_̂
g

h\
]Ŝ
_̂
`

_

_̂i___i___

g_i___i___

a_i___i___

c_i___i___

e__i___i___

ê_i___i___

eg_i___i___

ea_i___i___

j_

j̀i___i___

je_i___i___

jèi___i___

ĵ_i___i___

ĵ ì___i___

jf_i___i___

jf̀i___i___

hkPlYUOUlSQm[PnOX

opqprsptusrv

wUxUnPUS\PnlSkPlYUOS S S S S S S S S S S
11



�������������	
��������

����������������������������� �!"����#�������#$������#�������!�!��#�%���������&�����"���������������������
$�����#���"���������!�!'��(#�����������$�#$�����)�������*���������������#��������$#������������"����������������!�
����������#���������#+��������$�#�����������+#�����#���������#����'����
�
,����������-�.�#��!��(�������������������!����$�����������/0/1�!����#���������������������#���#$��#���"���!�
����������"����������������"���#$����� #���!����#���"����������"�����������������"���������#�����������#�����������
��������#��������#��#$�����234���� ���"����������!5������+#�����������������"����������"��!��5���!�6789�
����������������������������������$���������'��
�
3��������9���������#����������������!� ���+�������"�������"�!����!���#:����#�����!���#:����!����%����#����$#��
����������!��+��� ����!������!����!�'������!���������������������������������� �!"������!���������"��������#���
�������!�#�����������������������������'���

;<��������-�,�����������������!�!����#������#���#$�����������"��!!���#����+�������5��������������!�!�!����#����
����������������#����'��

=>?@
A����B�

=>?C�D��E��
A

FG��

=>?H�D��E��
IF
F��� �J�������

KLMNOLPNQRQKSTMQUVWVLXP YQ Z[\]̂[_̀_QYQ a[ZZa[bbbQYQ a[_]b[abbQYQ àa[abbQ

KLMNOLPNQcdNTLeWOf Q [̀Za_[\\bQQ g[g̀b[bbbQQ [̀\Zb[bbbQQ hZ\b[bbbiQ

jWeLOLVLNfQRQklXSPmfQnWLPVNPWPeN Q [̀̂à[̂̂ Q̀Q g[Zag[̂baQQ Z[g]Z[_ZbQQ ]_b[\gaQ

opSLMTNPVQRQjONNV Q \]a[_̂aQQ ]q\[ĝ Q̂Q [̀g_b[__bQQ ĝg[̀q_Q

nWLPVNPWPeNQUSMMXlV Q \ĝ[̂bbQQ ]̂_[]̂aQQ ]q̀[]abQQ [̂]\aQ

rNPslXXtQuNfNlvXLlQwRn Q q̂̂[ZZ]QQ âb[bbbQQ âb[bbbQQ xQ

UVlNWTQkWSyLPyQUVWVLXPf Q q̀\[gbbQQ ]̀a[bbbQQ Z̀a[bbbQQ g̀b[bbbQ

zF��B{� |}C~|}HH|�{��?}��H}�@��{��@}~|�}@?��{� �}��H}C�C�

������������

uNvNPSNQjSPmQrSmyNVQ Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Q
12



����������	
������������������������������������	��

����������������� ! "�#�$#%&'��#��" �(���)(%$"(*��+�$%#��"�,��-�"�)'� $ " �'.� �'&"�&/"�&#�%&'0�)" �"�("�
���(�)��(���&��(,$*$"("��"���)�&&��"� ! "�#�(���"���)(%$"(*��+�$%#��"��������"'� �%%'&"�"��� ! "�#1�

2(%$"(*��+�$%#��"�$�)&�( ���.'&�.$ )(*�!�(&�3435�%&$#(&$*!�����"'�6788�"�'� (���$��)' " �"'�&�%*()��(-$�-���"9'&:�
(��� �&��&��+�$%#��"�(���6;<=�"�'� (���"'�%�&)�( ��=;�(��$"$'�(*�%$):�%�"&�): >�9�$)��(&���������"'�&�%*()��

(-$�-����$)*� �(����+�$%���9�%�& '���*1���

����#($��$�)&�( ��$�� ! "�#� "��!�(����� $-��%&'0�)" �$ �"���$#%*�#��"("$'��'.�"�����9�?�"�&%&$ ���� '�&)��
@*(��$�-AB�#(���� '�&)� �C�.'&#("$'��D! "�#�E?�@AB�CDF>�9�$)��9$**�&�%*()��"���)�&&��"�.$�(�)$(*�(�����#(��

&� '�&)��(%%*$)("$'� �( �9�**�( �'"��&� ! "�# �.'&�#'&���..$)$��"�%&')�  $�-�(����%/"'/�("���("(�(�(*! $ 1��
C#%*�#��"("$'��,�-(��$��.$ )(*�!�(&�343<�(���$ � )����*���"'�)'�)*����$��.$ )(*�!�(&�34351���

@�#%�(����(*���%&'0�)" �$�)&�( ���6=1G�#$**$'��%&$#(&$*!�����"'�6858�"�'� (���$��&�%($& ��������"'�HIG�%�#%�
 "("$'��(����(&$(,*��.&�+���)!��&$����%�("� �(���%�#%�&�.�&,$ �#��" ��������'��%�#% �("�I��,&'':�(���$��"���

J�"*(�� 1��K��$"$'�(*�$#%&'��#��" �(���&� "'&("$'� �(&��(* '�%*(�����.'&�"����$)�*(���2�(#,�& ��#,(�:#��">�
&''.�&�%($& �'��#�*"$%*��.()$*$"$� >�(���&�%($& �'.�&�"($�$�-�(���,&�(:�&�9(** �$���(&$'� �*')("$'� 1��L'9�"�("�"���
C�"�-&("���@$%�*$���$ �'�*$��>�"���M$ "&$)"�)(��,�-$��%&'0�)" �"�("��(��,����%' "%'����,�)(� ��"��!�&�+�$&���
"(:$�-�%'&"$'� �'.�"����N$ "$�-�%$%�*$���'..*$���.'&�#'&���N"�� $��� ! "�#�$#%&'��#��" 1

����9("�&� �%%*!�)'�"&()"�,��-�"�$ �(�%'"��"$(*�)'�"&()"�9$"��"����&$�$"!��$��&�K�"�'&$"!�E��KF�"'� �)�&��"���&$-�" �

"'�(��$"$'�(*�9("�&� �%%*!1��

�K��$"$'�(*���"($* �(&�� �'9��'��"���.'**'9$�-�%(-�1�

OPQR
ST����

OPQU�V��W��
S��	
���

OPQX�V��W��
Y	
�
��� �Z	��T��

2(%$"(*�?+�$%#��"[ 6� 84=><<;�6� \G8>444�6� 3>=54>444�6� =>3=3>444�

D! "�#�D"��!�]�M� $-��@&'0�)" � =>5<4>G;;�� G>5<;><3\�� G>835>\74�� 37\>5<=�

@�#%�]�̂(*���@&'0�)" � =>534>78G�� 3>534>444�� G>8;8>\44�� =>G<8>\44�

2'� "&�)"$'��]���%($&�@&'0�)" � \>8;7>34G�� 3>\73>544�� G><;4>G75�� <87>875�

J("�&�D�%%*!�2'�"&()" � _�� 574>444�� 574>444�� _�


̀��a� bRcdQecdef�a� bgcXUhceQe�a� bRcfdXcQUX�a� RcRQfcRbh�

[����M$ "&$)"�)'� $��& �#()�$��&!�'&��+�$%#��"�%�&)�( � �'.�6=4�"�'� (���'&�#'&��)(%$"(*��+�$%#��"1�

ijkjlmjnomlp

qrsrturvwutxvyuxzr{v v v v v v v v v v v
13



����������	
�������������������������������������

���������������

������������
�	
�
���

��� !"#$%!� &#'()* # )+(,---#

.�/0�1�20#30"24�05067#8/#907:;% #<;%0#=>!�"5067 # ?@A,---#

B04C1#D!71#$%4� #.;4E0% # +@?,---#

.�/0�1�20#F�E0;#G%�H�C0%#I0%C0%& # @)-,---#

$:;JK41#34E�;#=L"46&�;6 # (M?,---#

N�&�022460;!&#<4"�742#=>!�"5067O # (@(,---#

P� �QR�SQSSS�

�������������T���������	
U�V��

=3�WB3XI#I;/7:4%0#X5"20506747�;6 # )?),@?-#

I1&705#8"0%47�6Y#�0%5�7#=C42!47�;6 # ?--,---#

I<GDG#N4&70%#�246 # Z--,---#

X670Y%470E#K470%#I!""21#�246 # @?-,---#

=4Y20#N;!674�6#I"�22:41#<;55!6��47�;6#�%;[0�7 # @@?,---#
<=\]G.JK@#N;E02�6Y # @(?,Z+?#
<<#K07246E&#<;224̂;%47�;6#:�7H#9$NKD#I7!E1 # @--,---#

9$NKDWDK]#X670%�;660�7�;6#8"7�5�_47�;6#I7!E1 # @--,---#

I!2"H!%#3�C0%#̀4&�6#I7!E1 # (?-,---#

]$G#30&04%�HWI7!E1#̀!770%/21#F42!0 # (?-,---#

G%�#a24&H#]"E470& # (?-,---#

K470%#$%46&5�&&�;6#<;6&!27467#N;E02�6Y # (@?,---#

3��H246E#<H45̂ 0%&#b#<0E4%#<%00 #a2;;E#<;67%;2#N;E02�6Y # (@?,---#

cIX#X5"20506747�;6#;6#$3KD#�%;"0%7�0& # (-?,---#

=4Y20#N;!674�6#.4 0#B�YH#a2;:#8"0%47�;6&#G&&0&&5067 # (-?,---#
N�&�022460;!&#I1&705#I7!E1#b#D0&�Y6#�%;[0�7&O # Z)d,ZM?#

P� eQf��QghS�

�����T�i�����	
U�V��

j̀Z#�!5"#I747�;6#30"4�%& # A?M,d--#

F4%�4̂20#a%0>!06�1#D%�C0#]"Y%4E0& # M?-,---#

�!5"#30/!%̂�&H5067& # )A-,---#

<;67%;2#F42C0#G�7!47;%#<;6C0%&�;6#47#3<Z. # +?-,---#

<;5"%0H06&�C0#X6E!&7%�42#<;67%;2#I1&705#]"Y%4E0#47#̀̀ (Ẁ @̀ # Z?-,---#

a!02#I1&705#]"Y%4E0& # ZZ-,---#

8C0%H04E#<%460#30"24�05067 # @(),---#

=550%&;6#F�̂%47�;6#]6�7#]"Y%4E0#47#3<@B # (Z?,---#

B;%�_;6742#�!5"#30H4̂#G7#3<Z. # (--,---#

P� eQfkfQgSS�

lmnmopmqrpos

tuvuwxuyzxw{y|x{}u~y y y y y y y y y y y
14



������������	
	�����	��������
����	������	
�������

�������� !"��"���#"$$ $�%���"$&' � ()*++)+++�

��,#�"$&�-#"�.�/'�0�."$1��$��23( � 4++)+++�

��,#�"$&�-#"�.�/'�5�-�&"/�-/��1��  6���7�",���$�' � 84+)+++�

9/�"1�/�%"�����7"�/�"$&�-�&"/�-/��1�:",������'�;"�$��$"$,� � (<4)+++�

=98�>/�!�?"@���7"�/ � (<+)+++�

A�?���,#�"$&�-#"�.�/'�%"��/�BC"���@�9C��&�$D � (E+)+++�

��,#�"$&�-#"�.�/'����"�$�$D�%"�����7"�/ � (4+)+++�

=98�-  ��$D�F ?�/�G�7/ !���$�' � (4+)+++�

-�&"/�-/��1�>"�������6�%����;"�$��$"$,� � (++)+++�

;�',���"$� C'�- $'�/C,�� $�5���7"�/�2/ H�,�'I � 8*4)8<4�

J	 KLMNOLKP�	

Q����	R�ST	�������� J	 �POLOOO	

U���S	RT���V	WV��X�V����	
	�����S	YZ��V���J	 [KL\P�L�M�	

I]����$&�!�&C"������'���'��&�C$&�/�̂;�',���"$� C'_�"/��̀(++��# C'"$&� /���''a��

bcdcefcghfei

jklkmnkopnmqornqskto o o o o o o o o o o
15



����������	�
�����
�����������������	�
����������������

��������� !!�""#$�" �%& '�$�()�"*#�%+,-����"��#&'#��.�"*�/��-#/(0�%-#("�1+-�./"#&��+%%-2�/($�,#�()�/�)  $��"#./&$�
 1� +&�./"#&�*#$��/($�"*#�#('�& (!#("3��*#��/"#&�4 (�#&'/"� (�5& )&/!�*/��#(/,-#$������" �$#1#&��/%�"/-�
� �"��/��%# %-#�+�#�-#���./"#&�"*/(��(�"�/--2�%& 6#�"#$3��*#�%& )&/!�*/��/-� �#7%/($#$��#&'��#��/($�%/&"���%/"� (�
*/���"#/$�-2�)& .(�2#/&� '#&�2#/&3��*#�/%%& '#$�#7%#($�"+&#��(�&#/�#�.�--�/-- .�"*#����"&��"�" �+%$/"#�"*#�
� (�#&'/"� (��"&/"#)���%-/(�.�"*�*#-%�1& !�/�� (�+-"/("�/��.#�#()/)#�/($��(' -'#� +&��+�" !#&���"�#��"*& +)*�
!+-"�%-#�%+,-����(%+"�!##"�()�0�.*�-#�.#�� ("�(+#�" �%& '�$#�/$$�"� (/-��+�" !#&���"2��-/��#�0�. &8�* %��/($�
#'#("�0�&#��$#("�/-��%&�(8-#&��2�"#!�#'/-+/"� (��/($�-/($��/%#�� (�+-"/"� (�0�/($� +"&#/�*�&#� +&�#�3��

9:;<
=������

9:;>�?�����
=���
@��

9:;A�?�����
	�
�
��� �B�������

�/"#&�4 (�#&'/"� (�5& )&/!C D� E0FGF0HIJ�D� H0GIF0GGE�D� H0KLG0MGE�D� HLK0MGG�

�/"#&�*#$�5& "#�"� ( � LMK0HLM�� KGM0FMG�� KGM0FMG�� N�

�/"#&�O+/-�"2�5& )&/!� � EII0FII�� KHP0IFG�� KLF0IFL�� QEG0IIIR�

5+,-���S+"&#/�*�T�U'#("� � PE0PGL�� JK0JKH�� LHG0KEI�� KM0MJF�

V
���W� <XY<<XYYY�W� >XZ;>X>AA�W� >X<[<XA>;�W� <<\XZ]̂�

C�_##�(#7"�%/)#�1 &��/"#&�4 (�#&'/"� (�5& )&/!�$#"/�-�3

àbcdefghijkldmenghfhmegjodhpdepdeijneqjdrsdtudjijpgodmjndljendvhgwdgwjd̀abcdxgnjeyd̀nehkjnz

{|}|~�|���~�

ajijp�jd��p�d���qjgd d d d d d d d d d d
16



���������	��
���������������
����	����������������	�

������������
� !"�#$%��&�%
'()�*%+&$��,

� !-�#$%��&�%
'()�*%+&$��,

� !-�#$%��&�%
�.�*&�+/$&+�*, 0123����&+�*

456789:;<:=>8<?@84:A6@B6;CD E: FGHIJGHHF:E: FGHIJGHHF:E: KGKLLGLLM:E: MLMGIIN:

O9?C96@:PQBB?97:R8S6TQ67;?D<G:
>6789;DC:6US;V8G:87VWX

: JYHGJHH:: MMJGHHH:: FHGHHH:: MLJGHHH:

PVZ??T:[UQV67;?D:O9?C96@ : IKIGHHH:: IKIGHHH:: \:: IKIGHHH:

];U8?:6DU:O9?@?7;?D6T:̂78@< : MMGJHH:: MMGJHH:: \:: MMGJHH:

_6;D:̀6998T:a:AQ<7?@89:A;7b:
5?9c<Z?B<

: LJGHHH:: LJGHHH:: FNGKHH:: NHGdHH:

_8C;?D6T:Pb@B?<;Q@< : FNGHHH:: FNGHHH:: KdGHHH:: JGHHH:

O9?C96@:[eZ;f;7< : \:: \:: \:: \:

0�&�gh� ijklmjkk!�h� ij"nkj-k!�h� nj!!ljomp�h� !jnpkjoi"�

56789:A?D<89S67;?D:Z6<:<QVV8<<qQTTb:U8S8T?B8U:6DU:@6D6C8U:8qq8V7;S8:?Q7986VZ:6DU:8UQV67;?D:B9?C96@<W:
A?D<89S67;?D:;<:q?VQ<8U:?D:VQ<7?@89:V;7b:6DU:V?@@QD;7b:<QBB?97:7?:Z8TB:fQ;TU:98<;T;8D7:6DU:98T;6fT8:T?DCr789@:
>6789:<QBBT;8<:6DU:6US6DV8:7Z8:;@B?976DV8:?q:>6789:6DU:98T678U:;Dq96<79QV7Q98W:56789:A?D<89S67;?D:?Q7986VZ:
8qq?97<:8@BZ6<;s8:7Z8:;@B?976DV8:?q:VQ<7?@89:V;7b:<QBB?97G:6UQT7:8UQV67;?DG:b?Q7Z:8UQV67;?DG:98UQV;DC:>6<78:
q9?@:<B9;DcT89<G:U;98V7:V?DD8V7;?D<:>;7Z:98<;U8D7;6T:>6789:Q<89<:6DU:98C;?D6T:V??9U;D67;?DW::

t6TT6<:6DU:uvw5t:86VZ:V?D79;fQ78:EJMI:7Z?Q<6DU:B89:b869:7?:7Z8:98C;?D6T:x56789:;<:=>8<?@8y:A6@B6;CDG:>Z;VZ:
V?S89<:f9?6UV6<7:v]G:96U;?G:U;C;76TG:6DU:?7Z89:q?9@<:?q:?Q7986VZW::vZ8:EFMJ:7Z?Q<6DU:U;qq898DV8:f87>88D:7Z8;9:
B?97;?D<:6DU:v_5tz<:V?S89<:T?V6T:V?<7<:q?9:<B8V;q;V:6US897;<;DC:6DU:B9?@?7;?D<:>;7Z;D:?Q9:<89S;V8:6986:6DU:
;DVTQU8<:f;TTf?69U<G:T?V6T:B9;D7:6U<G:T?V6T:V6fT8:6U<G:T?V6T:96U;?:6U<G:87VW:=UU;7;?D6T:U876;T<:98C69U;DC:7Z8:fQUC878U:
V?D79;fQ7;?D:98S8DQ8<:698:<Z?>D:?D:B6C8:IHW::

��
�����{���

|}~}��}����������}�� � � � � � � � � � �
17



������������	
��
������

���������������������������� ��!��"�������##�$���%���&�%'�(�')����%'��������������������"��*�������+���!!������%�
����#,�%)�-�����������������.��/"��#��)����������%��!��"������������"��*�������+���%������%���%���������#�0�����#��%)��%�
����%)����#�,�������%���%0�#�-����%����������0�"�)"����#�,����%)�)���%�0��%'������(#����#����.�1''����%�#�
'����#������)���%��%��"��!�##�-�%)���)��.��

2345
6
��7�

2348�9�:;���
6������:

234<�9�:;���
=������: >�	?
�

@��#�,���$�#���'A B� �C0D�C0EEF�B� GG0CFD0HII�B� GI0G�F0E�G�B� �0�HE0HCJ�

K��!�����%�#���������A � �0GIJ0JED�� G0IDD0EFG�� H0DGI0HFH�� ��H0�FD�

1'��%�����������������A � �0�HE0GI��� �0EC�0�C��� �0CHF0�HG�� LDH�0FGEM�

N%!�������%�/��"%�#�), � �0DJ�0IFE�� �0EF�0EGG�� �0�D�0FJH�� LGEF0CIFM�

O��7�������������	
��P� 5<Q44RQS<<�P� 85Q5TRQ<U8�P� 8<QU84QVS5�P� 4Q<8RQTUW�

A�1''����%�#�'����#���%�!�##�-�%)���)��.

&X���$���%���&�%'�����������������

JE 

E 

I 

I 

YZ[\]̂__̀a_\bc_de

fg]h_iij]kb\̀l_gmjn_ie

odZjkjicgbcjm_̀lp[[]gce

qkh]gZbcj]k̀r_nsk]\]t̂

uvwvxyvz{yx|

a_m_kp_̀}pkd̀~pdt_c̀ ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` `
18



������������	
��
����������������������	�����

������������ !"#�$%�&�"&#%'( ��"&� &�")&�%�"&* ��+ &��"&�"���$ )$% ,���- ��"���"#��$%�&���)�"&* ���"&���("* �� �
.)�/0)�# ��-�)'!-����"&"&!1���0)#'��)&���0 �21��&(��- �$%�&&"&!��&(��'$$)���&  ( (��)�%"* ������*�%' �,���- �
)* ��%%�"&#� �� �"&���%��" ���&(���3 ��"��(' �+�"&%2��)��(("�")&���)�$"$ %"& �)$ ���")&��4561�"&0�����'#�'� �
 &!"&  �"&!�4761��"�/�+�&�! + &��486��&(��)+ ��(+"&"�����"* �$)�"�")&�1��%%�)0�.-"#-��� �� %�� (��)�!�).�-��&(�
�!"&!�"&0�����'#�'� 1��&(���"� ���&(�$�)+)�")&�,���-"��!�).�-�.����&�"#"$�� (��&(�"&#%'( (�"&��- �9:;2 ������ �
+)( %������$����)0�)$ ���"&!��&(�+�"&� &�&# � 3$ &("�'� �,��- ��"���"#��"��� %0;"&�'� (�0)���- � +$%)2  �!�)'$�
- �%�-�$%�&1��&(��"&# �#%�"+��-�* �<  &�%). ���-�&�<'(! ��0)���- �$����#)'$% �)0�2 ���1�&)�"&#� �� �"��<'(! � (�
0)��0"�#�%�2 ���=:=>,

?@AB
C
�����

?@AD�E��F��
C�������

?@AG�E��F��
H������� �I��	��
��

J�%��" ���&(���3 � K� 951>LM19N5�K� ==1NM=1>L>�K� =71L7=195N�K� =19N51N99�

O�)'$�P �%�-�Q&�'��&# � 815M>1>:N�� >1L=L1N7M�� >1L=L1N7M�� R�

� �"� + &��S)&��"<'�")& � =1=8915N7�� =17L715L5�� =1M==1=78�� =8M1=>7�

T�- ��U)���V+$%)2+ &��W & 0"�� � 9198N19:=�� 91=751M9=�� 918N91M9>�� 99=1::8�

T�- ��V+$%)2  ;� %�� (�V3$ &("�'� � � 9195L1=75�� 91>N>1>88�� 91>5N19>9�� 8:1N9L�

X����Y� AZ[\AZ[]]̂�Y� BB[Ẑ\[D__�Y� B_[BĜ[]GB�Y� A[GD][DZ̀�

abcdefghijkllmnlioplqefrhlsqtpuvlw

xyz

{xz

yz

|z

|z

}oiovtlweosqe~orlw

�vjuhe�loip�e�swuvos�l

nlptvlglspe�jspvt�uptjs

�p�lve�jwpefghijkglspe�lsl�tpw

�p�lvefghijkllmnlioplqefrhlsqtpuvlw

������������

nl�lsuleausqe�uq�lpe e e e e e e e e e e
19



������������	
��
������	���������	
���������	�����

������������������ �������!����"�"�#$��%&���������"����'�&(��!� ����)�"�&� (�� ����%!��&����&���*!!��&�+��&�� &�
�����&�,��-(�����.��&� �&�.��$����!����������������� ��������.�������.� ���*�&��./�'(� (��� �����"�!��0����$�"*��&��
����� �������&�"�&�����"��&�* &����!�!��&��&��./�-123�'�&�����.(&��0��"0��&�����/�'�&�������� ��!��� $�
 ����"���&����/���"����!� &�������"�0���&����.����&(��"�0���&�4��".�!��&/�1�"���1���5/���"�6� (���"�1(�0#���,��
7"0����&��&���� ���*�&��.�!����"���!�������������*!!��&���������� ���/�(*0�������*� �/���"��&(����"0����&��&����
�����&�,��

8888888888

9:;<
=
�����

9:;>�?��@��
=�������

9:;A�?��@��
�������� �B��	��
��

2�.�������.�1���*�&��. C� DEE/FGD�C� H/IIE/DJE�C� H/KGD/ELE�C� LKM/HKE�

7"0����&��&����1���*�&��. � GDH/IHE�� MEJ/FFJ�� MFM/KKF�� FH/LFD�

N-�O�1$#���� *��&$�1���*�&��. � GKE/IID�� LKM/DFE�� FMH/KML�� PHGL/DJLQ�

R�.����&����1���*�&��. � LIG/MLI�� GKH/IEE�� GKE/GLE�� PH/ELEQ�

S*#&�&���1���*�&��.�T��� � H/KEF/DGK�� G/KGJ/FFJ�� I/FID/GJK�� LHH/DGI�

R�.���T��� � FGD/EEF�� LMJ/LEE�� JHL/MLE�� IK/GLE�

U�� �������*���������������T��� � IF/KLD�� HED/KLM�� DG/IDL�� PGJ/LMGQ�

V�����������	���������	
��W� ;X<YZXZ[\�W� <XY\\X[]<�W� >X\<YX>]>�W� A;>XA]\�

88888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888

8888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888

_̂̀a8bcdefgghdijk8lfcmhnfg

opq

rsq

rrq

pq

raq

q̀

tiuhiffchiu8vdigwkxhiu

yz{hihgxcjxhmf8vdigwkxhiu

|}8~8v��fcgfnwchx�8vdigwkxhiu

�fuhgkjxhmf8vdigwkxhiu

�fujk8̂ffg

�hgnfkkjifdwg8bcdefgghdijk8̂ffg

������������

�fmfiwf8̂wiz8�wzufx8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
20



������������	
��
��	�	�����	����������������	�����

�����������������  !��������"���"!������!#���������$�!#�!���%�����& �����������%�����  !����%��'�����"�(��)�����
��  *$��$����������)%!*�+��,%����"���-!�����������!����������*�����*$����.*��#�!��$�����!�$���+��,%��-��������
��"������#!��#��"�*�$����/0/1�������.��*���-����������"�2������!��%��"!� *���!��!#��%�����������������.��*���-�
34�5��� *�"����������#��"�*�$����/0/6+��7������"��"!����%������"������������!��%��'�����"�8��������!� �!��"��
������!��*�"� ���*�������+�

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

9:;<
�
���=�

9:;>�?�@��
�������

9:;A�?�@��
B������ �C��	��
��

D��*��$�5!��� E� 1FF26G1�E� F662HI0�E� F1I2F00�E� JK2F/0�

7������"� � F6J2/0J�� F1K2I10�� GGJ21/G�� JJG2FGG�

L��.���%� � � 60K2K01�� 6662FKJ�� 61G216I�� J/2HJG�

���������������M��*���-�N����� � 6GH2GHF�� 6GH2GHF�� KHJ2116�� OII2/6/P�

���������������M��*���-�L��������"�� JI/2JG0�� KHG2/1J�� /JG2HGI�� OJGH2/GKP�

5!�����"���!��QR�� ���� � JJ02GKJ�� J/120J0�� J/02I00�� O62/J0P�

N�-�*�S!��"�� � H2H0G�� I2610�� /20G1�� OF2KG1P�

T�%������������������U�  !�� � J112GGI�� //I2KJ1�� //02JFJ�� OI2J16P�

V���=W� ;XA>YX<Z>�W� ;XY[;X;[<�W� ;X[>\X;><�W� ]̂>;X\>\_�

àbcdcefghfcijklmnnogfkpqnjdacfmgje

rfcscftkuoefe vdemghdwj

xjbyjgezcne àbcdcefghfcijk{mcsacd|k}jheje

àbcdcefghfcijk{mcsacd|kxhcdfjdhdwj uobbmdcwhfcodkp~mcnbjdf

}j|hsk�ofcwje �fzjgk̀abcdcefghfcijklmnnogf

����
ẁfmhse

����k{ma|jf
ǹngoija

����k{ma|jf
�gonoeja

��

��������

����������

����������

����������

����������

����������

����������

������������

�jijdmjk�mdak{ma|jfk k k k k k k k k k k
21



���������������������	


����������������� � � � � � � � � � �
22



�����������	�
����
������

�������������������������� ��!���� �����������!��"��������!��!���#�$�����%�������!���������"�&�!��'�&�����
��(������)*+��"�!���!�!���,�� �!�����$������"���"�����������-.-/0��1�!����!�������������$��!���!�'����!��,�!�����
!��!���&�!���������$�!������� ���'������!�����������2������'������!���$�����'������!����&�!��������3����������
�����4���!����*+��"�!���,�� �!�����$������"���"�����������-.-/0�������������� �-+�������!���"�����!����������!��
�������&�!��5������6�!���7!���!�������!���1�!� ��!���8��������21893����:��!0

�������
;<=>
?�@�A�

;<=B�C�DE�@
?FF��
�D

;<=G�C�DE�@
H��F���D �I�J���� KL�E��M

N�����"�6�!��O P�Q*/'R.S')TS�P�QS*'.)Q'TU*�P�QUS'*).')S.�P�Q-'T))'/RS� �U0/S�+

5������6�!���7!���!��V�189O � -'--/'-/T�� T'/).'/UR�� T')U/'...�� TR*'*--� �Q.0UQ�+

1�!����!�1�����O � T'UQR'-UR�� Q'S..'...�� T'/..'...�� Q')..'...� �QQR0U/�+

6�!���W�����$�!����
W��!��,�!����O

� Q'QU)'-)S�� Q'--)'USR�� Q'--)'USR�� X� �X�+

Y!����1����� � -'-SQ'U-)�� Q'-/Q')UQ�� Q'T).'-T-�� QTR'-SQ� �QQ0.*�+

Z�@A�	�
�����[�\GG]\̂\]B̂=�[�\_\]_̀>]̀̂ \�[�\à]GaG]̂̀ b�[�\B]a==]=̀ �̂ �ac̀>�M

Od���!������5�!��������!���"����&�� ��� ��

efghijklmnonlipnqnrkns

N�����"�6�!���V�)*+

5������6�!���7!���!��V�189�V�-+

1�!����!�1������V�-+

6�!���W�����$�!����W��!��,�!�����V�Q+

Y!����1������V�Q+

tuvuwxuyzxw{

pnqnrkniekrlijklmnoi i i i i i i i i i i
23



�����������	�
����
������������

������������������������

���������� ��������
��������	�
���
��������� ��������

���� �!�"#$%&'$()�*#'+(�,   -#. /!012303� 1403520632 1�0!110!/2 505!5013 

�7�898:�	����;���<=999�>���� ?� <@A99<A�?� <@A99<A�?� <@A99<A�?� <@A99<A�

�78:�B��������	�
�����	�C�������� ?�<9:=89:=<8D�?�8E=F<<=E8:�?�<E=:<E=GGE�?� G=H<G=D9E�

���6�IJ)+($()�K(L(MJ(�K(NJ%O(&(M$ P�4305�602/3�P��!03�/0545�P�1!03110 2 �P� 302640314�

�������	�C����������78: ?� F=EDE=9GA�?� 8=H<E=DAA�?� <=A:G=FHH�?� EED=DHA�

QRM$STU�K(NJ%O(&(M$����6 P� 30�130543�P� �01!�02 3�P� 1021/0!35�P� 54!0313�

VWXYZ[ZX\]̂ _[̀ab\cWd[̂eZf\ghbeZ_[d

]̂ _[̀ab\iZjWkfZeZ_[\lmno ]̂ _[̀ab\iZjWkfZeZ_[\lmnp

l̂f[\q f̂[̀ rfak_Y[̂_ sfk_k[b\iktZf\
rW[̀̂ fk[b

]h_dukZaX
v

wxyyyxyyy

nxyyyxyyy

zxyyyxyyy

oxyyyxyyy

pxyyyxyyy

{xyyyxyyy

|xyyyxyyy

}xyyyxyyy

~xyyyxyyy

������������

iZtZ_WZ\lW_X\VWXYZ[\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \
24



�����������	�
����
����������������������������������������������

����� !"# $"�%&'��%((%!�)%"�#�*" ( " �!�+�)*,�!�%#��$-!"!�-&�$�#"% &�.-#" -&!�-/�"���0&"�1#%"�'�2 .�( &��.#-3�$"4��
����$-!"!�!�-5&�6�(-5�%#��%''�'�%!�#�7�&8�!�"-�"���9�7�&8��:8&'�68'1�"�"-�-//!�"�%�.-#" -&�-/�$8##�&"�
-.�#%" &1�%&'�;% &"�&%&$��+<=>,�%&'�$%. "%(�#�.(%$�;�&"�$-!"!4�

�� #�$"�<=>�$-!"!�%#�� &$8##�'�!.�$ / $%((?�-&�3- &"�-#��%((%!@-&(?�!�$" -&!�-/�"���. .�( &��!?!"�;4�� #�$"�(%6-#�
�-8#!�%#��%(!-�6 ((�'�' #�$"(?�"-�!.�$ / $�.-#" -&!�-/�"���. .�( &�4��0&' #�$"�<=>�$-!"!�%&'�A%. "%(�9�.(%$�;�&"�
$-!"!�6�&�/ "�"���� !"# $"�5%"�#�!8..(?�!?!"�;�%!�%�5�-(��%&'�%#��%((-$%"�'�6�"5��&�"���� !"# $"�%&'��)*�6%!�'�
-&��%$���&" "?B!�%..( $%6(��!�%#��-/�!?!"�;�%!!�"�7%(8�4�

0&' #�$"�(%6-#�$-!"!�! ; (%#(?�%#��/-#�'�.%#";�&"!�%&'�.�#!-&&�(�"�%"�.#-7 '��!8..-#"�"-�"���5%"�#�!8..(?�!?!"�;�
-7�#%((C�%&'�"��#�/-#��"�� #�.�#!-&&�(�$-!"!�%#��!.( "�6%!�'�-&�"���!?!"�;�%!!�"�7%(8�4��

�

DEFG�
H�����

DEFI�J������
H����
��

DEFK�J������
��������

L�����

� #�$"�<=>�A-!"! M� NOPCQRP�M� SQQCPTR�M� SUTCTTT�M�+OQCPTR,�

� #�$"�<=>�V%6-# � ROWCROX�� SUUCUWO�� SNUCTTT��+OTCUWO,�

Y�����������Z��������[����� G\G]̂KK�� ÎI]_\I�� \̀K]aaa��bĉ]_\Id�

0&' #�$"�<=>�A-!"! � XSNCXXU�� RCNWSCTON�� RCUTTCTTT��NNUCXPQ�

0&' #�$"�<=>�V%6-# � PSOCOOO�� RCTXUCXUN�� RCTTTCTTT��+XUCXUN,�

A%. "%(�9�.(%$�;�&"�A-!"! � NPSCXRW�� NWPCSNT�� PTTCTTT��ONOCUQT�

Y�������������Z��������[����e� _]̀K_]FIK�e� F]cIc]IaI�e� G]_aa]aaa�e�IKG]K̂c�

Y��������J��������	�
�����e� F]FFK]Faa�e� G]K̂a]K\̀�e� G]̂\K]aaa�e�G̀I]IFF�

fghgijgkljim

nopoqrostrqusvruwoxs s s s s s s s s s s
25



�����������	�
����
�������������

�������������������������������������� !�����"�������������������#����$� !����� %��#������������������#��
&�""�#������' ����������������#������%����� ���%� �����(�����!#) ���*� $�������� !��� !���$� !�������������
�����&������ "���#��#"#�����+�#"�� �����"#������#���#"��������������%#*!���,�%���� ���� ���#�����+����!����,�
&������#�����������������" ����-���!�������!����(�

.����������� !������/%������� ������#���� !%#����� �����$���#"�*�#��0102������������� �#������������������#���
����� �!���(�� ����� �����#����,�����3�����������#���!����#�0(45�����������#���$ ���� ��-���!�������!��������$���#"�
*�#��0104(�����3�������������������67�� ����!����#���#����*�$�/������ !�������������#��&�""�#��������!��������
8 �#"�9 ����!����.�����!����:  "�(�

������#%����" &��""����#��������#���#"�����������#����� ��������!�����$ ������%#���;1�*�#���#��&�""�#�����������
������������ !��$ ��$���#"�*�#���010<�#���0102(�

.��������.�� !�

0,=>=,21?

;,@?<,122

0,;@<,@<2

0>0,401

;,4=@,1;=

<,?2@,?=>

>,??>,010

4,?1>,4;>

4,<20,?=>

>,?2=,0?>

2,=>@,<1@

;,;<4,@0?
@=4,;?4

<,?;@,0?@

;,>11,111

<,411,111

01
;1
01
;;
01
;0
01
;<
01
;2
01
;4
01
;>
01
;?
01
;@
01
;=
01
01
01
0;
01
00
01
0<
01
02
A
01
04
A

B1

B0,111,111

B2,111,111

B>,111,111

B@,111,111

A'��������.��������.�� !�

CDEDFGDHIGFJ

KLMLNOLPQONRPSORTLUP P P P P P P P P P P
26



�����������	�
����
�����������
������������������

������������������������� ��!!"��������#�����$�%���& ������!�������'(����$������(�����)��*�(+,�-��!��$(��.�(��/0/12�
���������������'����($$�����!���34,/5�+������������$�+��!�������6�������7��8,��

9���!���".�(��+�+��(�8�+��!���8����(�8��*�:;<=>�!���������*���(��)����$�<����($��?�@8�$(�����$(+ (�*��'����
�������.��!�#(��(��:#(��(�>�(�8�A�����9�&(��;���$� (��B(����#�����$��:A9;B#>�'(������'�8����!��$(��.�(��/0/1�!���
(��(88�����(��C�.�(��,�D����#(��(��(�8�A9;B#�(*���8��������'�����)����$�<����($��?�@8�$(�����$(+ (�*�2�(����
E��'��(��FB(�������G'���+�2H�(������$���������8*����!�3CI52551��($�,��

9�����'�;<=�'����#(��(��(����$���(����(��(*���+�������$����������3/02000����)��*�(+�J�  ����!�������B��E�.�
B(�����*�G8��$�������$�,�G88�����(��.2�#(��(�2�A9;B#�(�8�=  ���9�����.�6�*���(��B(����#�����$���($��$����������
�������6�*���(��B(�����������(�����J.+ ����+,�9���#�����$��'����(������$�����3/12000�!��+� (���$� (���$���"��(���
!���9(��(��������.�;(�����K(�8�����G���$�(������(����(�����'��E��� ��'����$����+���$�����,�

�����������
�����L��M�N�	�
�����
OPQR
S���T�

OPQU�V�WM��
SXX��
�W

OPQY�V�WM��
L��X���W

)����$�<����($��?�@8�$(�����"����.��!�#(��(� 3� CZ[2IZC�3� CI52551�3� CI52551�

)����$�<����($��?�@8�$(�����"�A9;B# � CZ[2IZC�� CI52551�� CI52551�

)��*�(+�J�  ����:��(��2�'(�����*�(8��$�2���$,> � C2C15�� /02000�� /02000�

6(���D(�����?������+������.�B��E��� � � I245[�� /12400�� /12400�

6�*���(��J.+ ����+��"����.��!�#(��(� � 12414�� C2000�� C2000�

6�*���(��J.+ ����+��"�A9;B# � 52Z14�� C2000�� C2000�

6�*���(��J.+ ����+��"�=9B# � 5201Z�� C2000�� C2000�

6�*���(��J.+ ����+��6�*����(�����7��� � /2\0[�� 12000�� 12000�

]��T������������
�����L��M�N�	�
����� �̂_̀_a_̀QbR�̂� _̀QQc̀dba�̂� _̀QQc̀dba�

efgfhifjkihl

mnonpqnrsqptruqtvnwr r r r r r r r r r r
27



���������������	
������

�����������
��	�
������

��	�������
��������

��	
������
�������� ���������� ��������  ���

!�"�#������ $%&'('))(*''%$%+'(*,-(++.%$%+/(&0'(0&/%$%.(),+(*/'% %&1+*%2 3

��4�������5�� %*,(*&*(,'&%%0+(,,,(,,,%%0/(,,,(,,,%% 0(,,,(,,,% %)1).%2 	

6���������

789:;8<:%=%7>?9%@ABA8C< $%'(+/.(-0-%$%)('')(,,,%$%)(-/,(),,%$% 0))(),,% %*1/0%2

789:;8<:%DE:?8FB;G % 0(')-(++,%% *(*0,(,,,%% 0(+',(,,,%% H'+,(,,,I%%H0&10/I%2

JBF8;8A8:G%=%KLC><MG%NB8<A:<B<F: % 0(.)0(..0%% *(')*(.,)%% '(*/'(-',%% /-,(+*)% %'/1//%2

OP>89?:<A%=%J;::A % +/)(-.)%% /&+(*..%% 0(*-,(--,%% *.*(0&-% %*.1+,%2

NB8<A:<B<F:%@>99CLA % +*.(.,,%% /.-(/.)%% /&0(/),%% .(/+)% %,1&*%2

Q:<RLCCS%T:G:LUC8L%V=N % .&.(''/%% .),(,,,%% .),(,,,%% W% %W%2

@AL:B?%KB>X8<X%@ABA8C<G % 0&+(*,,%% 0/)(,,,%% '0)(,,,%% 0*,(,,,% %.01)-%2

YCAB;%NB8<A:<B<F:% /(-&/())/%%0*(.+)(+'.%%0'(&/0('*,%% 0(0,)(-+-% %+1&0%2 �

#Z��4�[4�����4����\��������
�]���4��

$%0'(&*/(&/&%$%0,()-.(/*/%$%0'(+&)(*-)%$%'('*+('0.% %'01).%2 �

^����_����Z�������4��\�
^����������������

`BA:L%DC<G:LUBA8C<%7LCXLB? $%*(.,.('/+%$%'(,/.(,,*%$%'(-0,(),*%$% '0-(),,% %0,10.%2 


`BA:LGE:M%7LCA:FA8C< % 0)-('0)%% -,)(.),%% -,)(.),%% W% %W%2

`BA:L%a>B;8Ab%7LCXLB?G % *//(.//%% -'&(/.,%% -0.(/.0%% H*,(///I% %H-1&/I%2

7>R;8F%V>AL:BFE%=%OU:<AG % &*(&,0%% +-(+-'%% 0',(-*/%% -)()+.% %)'1&'%2

YCAB;%̀BA:LGE:M%7LCA:FA8C<%=%
O<U8LC<?:<AB;%@A:cBLMGE89

% '(0''(000%% -(,*-(-))%% -('.'()-*%% ''/(,+&% %+1-'%2

#������#�������

O?9;Cb::%T:;BA:M $%*+(0*+(//,%$%''(+,0(-..%$%'.('),(/)'%$%*()-/(-+&% %&1)-%2 d

7LCe:GG8C<B;%@:LU8F:G % *('.&(&/0%% '(.00(/,'%% -(0'.(-,-%% )*-(),0% %0-1)*%2

fM?8<8GALBA8U:%@>99CLA % *()-/('.)%% *(/+*(*+*%% *(+-,(*-'%% H0-*(,'/I% %H-1&.I%2

g<eCL?BA8C<%Y:FE<C;CXb % *(0&)(.,/%% *(/,)(/''%% *()0)(,&-%% H'/,(+.,I%%H0'1-)I%2

YCAB;%@>99CLA%@:LU8F:G%')(**0(&))%%-'(',0()+-%%-)(+-*(.&'%% *()-0(,+/% %)1+&%2

h���������������i�3

j3k3j�k	�i�3l3jld�jdk3�i�3mdj
m
jkdn�i�3�jm		j	dk� �mod���

��������
��	�
������

��	��������
��������

��	
�������
�������� �������� ��������

@B;:%Ce%̀BA:L $%0-)(+,.(/'.%$%0.-(,/0('&-%$%0&.(-/,(/.,%$%0*('//()+.% %&1).%2

pB;;BG%̀BA:L%qA8;8Ab%r%g7s % *(**)(*)'%% '()/,()&+%% '(/&)(,,,%% '+-(-**% %0,1&0%2

g<A:L:GA%g<FC?: % '(&0+(*&+%% 0(.,,(,,,%% '(),,(,,,%% 0(/,,(,,,% %00+1&)%2 l

`BA:L%DC<G:LUBA8C<%DC<AL8R>A8C<G % 0(0&/(*/.%% 0(**/(&.+%% 0(**/(&.+%% W% %W%2

VAE:L%g<FC?: % *(*.0(&*/%% 0(*)0(/&0%% 0('/,(*'*%% 0'+(*.0% %001,-%2

h������������i�3

j3k3j�k	�i�3l3jld�jdk3�i�3mdj
m
jkdn�i�3�jm		j	dk� �mod���

tuvuwxuyzxw{

|}~}��}����������}�� � � � � � � � � � �
28



����������	
��������

��������������
�������������� !��!"#�$%���!�&�'(�%�#)�"���%�&*��( �(����+,,������ !�-,-.�' !&��%%*$!"��$!&�(���$!(�"�/$(�&�
�+�,������ !�-,-��' !&��%%*$!"��

0�123
��4�15��
����6�%(#�"(��%�#�" ���!&�!7�$��+�,������ !��!"#�$%��( �(���/*�/�!7�/ 8�#�'*&7�(�&*��( �$�%�7!�9�"$!(�
�!"#�$%���!�(���/#�"�� 9����"(#�"�(:�����

;�<����=����������
�����!"#�$%���%�� %(�:�&*��( �$!��!"#�$%���!�(���" %(� 9�� 8�!7�$!&��$�!($�!�!7�(���/�/���!��#�7�(� 9�8$:�
' (��&*��( ���7��#�/#�"�!7�$%�8����$%�$��$#7�#�$#�$�( ��$�!($�!�! 8�(�$(�(����!(�#��" #��%�"(� !� 9�(���>?@��%�
'��!7��$�!($�!�&A�#�%�#) �#�#���$%��8$#!�!7�%:%(���*/7#$&�%A�$!&�BCDE�#�/�$"���!(%�$(��*�(�/���
/�/���!��9$"���(��%��
�

F��G���3�H3
���3�����I�J�
������K2�
3���
E$/�($���L*�/��!(��!"#�$%�&�9 #�9�%"$��:�$#�-,-��/#��$#��:�&*��( ��MNN�(� *%$!&��!�" %(%�( �#�/�$"���
!�(8 #O�$!&�%�#)�#��L*�/��!(�$!&���.+�(� *%$!&�( �/*#"�$%��+��$&&�(� !$��/�"O*/�(#*"O%A�8��"��$#��
/#��$#��:�!��&�&�( ��L*�/�!�8�/�#% !!�����?*�/�$!&�)$�)��/# P�"(%��!"#�$%�&�/#��$#��:�&*��( �#�/$�#%�
!��&�&�( �QRS�/*�/�%($(� !�$!&�)$#�$'���9#�L*�!":�&#�)��*/&$(�%�$!&�/*�/�#�9*#'�%���!(%�!��&�&� !�
/*�/%�$(�R�!'#  O�$!&��!�(���T�(�$!&%���

U�V�����J����������1�4��3��	
��W��2���
�����S,,�(� *%$!&��!"#�$%��8����$�� 8�(���6�%(#�"(�( �*/&$(��(���" !%�#)$(� !�%(#$(�7�"�/�$!�8�(�����/�
9# ��$�" !%*�($!(�$%�8���!7$7��$!&��!) �)�� *#�"*%( ��#�"�(��%�(�# *7���*�(�/���/*'��"��!/*(����(�!7%�
$!&� (��#��!7$7���!(� // #(*!�(��%�

X��3
�G��YZ�����W
���� )�#$����!"#�$%���!�%$�$#��%�$!&�($[�%��%�&*���$�!�:�( �$&&�(� !%�( �/�/���!�� /�#$(� !%�\]̂A�
�!9#$%(#*"(*#���!7�!��#�!7�\.̂A�#�%O��$!$7���!(�\Ŝ�$!&�% ���$&��!�%(#$(�)��/ %�(� !%A�$��� 9�8��"��$#��
#��$(�&�( �7# 8(��$!&�$7�!7��!9#$%(#*"(*#�A�$!&�#$�%�%�$!&�/# � (� !%�

_�H��������H��3�
>!(�#�%(��!" ����%��[/�"(�&�( ��!"#�$%��" �/$#�&�( �(���9�%"$��:�$#�-,-.�'*&7�(�&*��( �$�#�%�!7��!(�#�%(�
#$(���!)�# !��!(��� �'��" !%�#)$(�)�A�(���6�%(#�"(��%�$%%*��!7�$�-��̀��!(�#�%(�#$(��9 #�%� #(a(�#��
�!)�%(��!(%��!�9�%"$��:�$#�-,-��

bcdcefcghfei

jklkmnkopnmqornqskto o o o o o o o o o o
29



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8 
 

DATE: September 17, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Management recommends approval of the Consent Agenda. 
             
 
Item:   Consider Approval of Joint-Funding Agreement with U.S. 

Geological Survey for Gage Network Support Services  
 

Vendor: U.S. Geological Survey 
 

Amount: Not-to-exceed $460,790 
Fiscal Year 2025 General Fund; Fiscal Year 2025 Revenue Fund  

 

Reviewed by: Construction and Operations Committee 
 

This agreement will fund stream gaging services provided by the U.S. Geological Survey 
(USGS) from October 1, 2024, through September 30, 2025.  District staff regularly 
makes decisions related to flood operations, water supply, and water quality based on 
data collected and published by the USGS. In addition, this data is utilized by other Trinity 
Basin partners for flood awareness, emergency evacuations, and water supply 
assessment, among other things.   
 

If approved and in addition to annual operation and maintenance of the existing stream 
gages in the agreement, a new streamflow gage on the West Fork Trinity River at the 
eastern-most Northside Drive bridge will be installed. This gage will replace the gage 
located at Nutt Dam once Central City construction is underway. This agreement will also 
add a rain gage to the Cedar Creek watershed, which currently has one publicly available 
recording gage. 
 

The agreement has a total cost of $494,540. The USGS contribution is $33,750 (7%). 
The District is responsible for the remaining $460,790 for services provided during the 
October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025 period. 
             
 
Item:   Consider Approval of Capital Expenditures   
 

Vendor: Caldwell Chevrolet, Silsbee Ford, Corsicana Welding, Kirby-Smith 
Machinery, Holt Caterpillar, Bane Machinery 

 

Amount: $1,594,377.28 



Reviewed by: Construction and Operations Committee 
 

(1) Caldwell Chevrolet 
• Seven (7) new fleet vehicles 
• Total expenditure amount: $464,962.00  

 
(2) Silsbee Ford 

• Five (5) new fleet vehicles 
• Total expenditure amount: $390,176.60 

 
(3) Corsicana Welding 

• One (1) 450-amp Welder 
• Total expenditure amount: $26,824.44 

 
(4) Kirby-Smith Machinery 

• One (1) Portable 185CFM Compressor 
• Total expenditure amount: $31,929.00 

 
(5) Holt Caterpillar 

• One (1) Heavy Duty Track Loader 
• Total expenditure amount: $420,936.19 

 
(6) Holt Caterpillar 

• One (1) Heavy Duty Compact Loader 
• Total expenditure amount: $117,811.71 

 
(7) Bane Machinery 

• One (1) Heavy Duty Mini Excavator 
• Total expenditure amount: $141,737.34  

             
 
Item:   Consider Approval of Contract for Annual Stand-by Generator 

Maintenance  
 

Vendor: kW Power Services, LLC 
 

Amount: Year 1: $81,327; Total Potential Spend: $406,635 
Fiscal Year 2025 General Fund; Fiscal Year 2025 Revenue Fund  

 

Reviewed by: Construction and Operations Committee  
 

Request for Proposals were solicited per statute (Texas Local Government Code 
Chapter 252) and 2 proposals were received. The evaluation team determined that kW 
Power Services, LLC is one of two vendors that will provide the best value to the District. 
This contract is for the annual stand-by generator maintenance. This contract is for one 
year (1) period with the option to renew for up to four (4) additional one (1) year periods. 
 



kW Power Services, LLC is a prime and will self-perform its portion of the project, 
resulting in 0% diverse participation. 
 

All statutory bidding requirements have been satisfied. 
             
 
Item:   Contract for Labor Services  
 

Vendor: Presbyterian Night Shelter/UpSpire 
 

Amount: $559,000 
Fiscal Year 2025 General Fund; Fiscal Year 2025 Revenue Fund  

 

Reviewed by: Construction and Operations Committee 
 

The District solicited proposals from temporary contract labor service agencies to provide 
light industrial personnel on an as-needed basis to perform general labor duties in support 
of Fort Worth and Eagle Mountain Operations Departments.  
 

The contract labor duties include picking up litter, brush and weed removal, unloading 
trucks, moving furniture and other similar tasks involving manual labor as required by 
the District. 
 

The Request for Proposal was advertised per statute and three compliant proposals were 
received in 2022. Presbyterian Night Shelter/UpSpire submitted the highest evaluated 
and best proposal. 
 

The contract commenced upon issuance of the Notice to Proceed and terminated on 
9/30/2023 with an option to renew for four (4) additional one-year periods with acceptable 
performance. This will be the second renewal. 
             
 
Item:   Contract for Grounds Maintenance   
 

Vendor:   Whitmore and Sons  
 

Amount:  Total for all locations:  $155,012 
Fiscal Year 2025 General Fund; Fiscal Year 2025 Revenue Fund  

 

Reviewed by: Construction and Operations Committee 
 

Grounds maintenance for District facilities at Eagle Mountain Park, Twin Points Park, and 
Fort Worth Floodway Trailheads expenditure amount: $57,457. 
 
Grounds maintenance for District facilities at the following locations: Law Enforcement 
Office/Compound and Fort Worth Operations Office/Compound expenditure amount: 
$70,649. 
 



Grounds maintenance for District facilities at the following locations: Eagle Mountain 
Office, Eagle Mountain Dam, Eagle Mountain Spillway, Eagle Mountain Outlet, R26 
Residence, Eagle Mountain Balancing Reservoir Electrical Building, Clear Fork Outlet, 
Eagle Mountain Connection Microwave Tower, Arlington Outlet, Benbrook BB2, 
Rolling Hills Pump Station RH2 expenditure amount: $26,906. 
 
The contract commenced upon issuance of Notice to Proceed and terminated on 
9/30/2023 with an option to renew for four (4) additional one-year periods with acceptable 
performance. This will be the second renewal. 
             

 
Item:   Contract for Dumpster Services   
 

Vendor:   Republic, 3-P Trash Services, Frontier, Waste Connections  
 

Amount:  Not to exceed $185,500 
Fiscal Year 2025 General Fund; Fiscal Year 2025 Revenue Fund  

 

Reviewed by: Construction and Operations Committee 
 

The District requests for quotes from waste management companies were solicited in 
support of numerous District locations. Each unit is to be serviced as needed and billed 
on a monthly cycle. 
  
Multiple vendors were selected based on location, serviceability, and cost.  
 
The contract(s) commenced upon issuance of Notice to Proceed and terminates on 
9/30/2024 with an option to renew for four (4) additional one-year periods with acceptable 
performance.  This will be the first renewal, 
 
 



United States Department of the Interior
U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

C Oklahoma-Texas Water Science Center
1505 Ferguson Lane
Austin, TX 78754

July 18, 2024

Mr. Craig Ottman
Tarrant Regional Water District
800 East Northside Drive
Fort Worth, TX 76102

Dear Mr. Ottman: 

Enclosed is our signed standard joint-funding agreement 25SJJFATX062000 between the U.S. Geological Survey
Oklahoma-Texas Water Science Center and Tarrant Regional Water District for negotiated deliverables (see 
attached), during the period October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025 in the amount of $460,790 from your 
agency. U.S. Geological Survey contributions for this agreement are $33,750 for a combined total of $494,540. 
Please sign and return one fully-executed original to Kandis Becher at GS-W-OT_OTFM@usgs.gov. 

Federal law requires that we have a signed agreement before we start or continue work. Please return the signed 
agreement by September 15, 2024. If, for any reason, the agreement cannot be signed and returned by the date shown 
above, please contact Marsha Gipson at (682) 444-6392 or email mgipson@usgs.gov to make alternative 
arrangements.

This is a fixed cost agreement to be billed quarterly via Down Payment Request (automated Form DI-1040). Please 
allow 30-days from the end of the billing period for issuance of the bill. If you experience any problems with your 
invoice(s), please contact Kandis Becher at phone number (682) 316-5051 or kkbecher@usgs.gov.  

The results of all work performed under this agreement will be available for publication by the U.S. Geological 
Survey. We look forward to continuing this and future cooperative efforts in these mutually beneficial water 
resources studies. 

Sincerely, 

                                                                                         
Meghan Roussel
Acting Director
  

Enclosure  
25SJJFATX062000

                                                
h l



 

Form 9-1366 
(May 2018) 

U.S. Department of the Interior 
U.S. Geological Survey 

Joint Funding Agreement 
FOR 

Water Resource Investigations 

Customer #: 6000000623 
Agreement #: 25SJJFATX062000 
Project #: SJ009ME 
TIN #: 75-6002584 
 

   

 Fixed Cost Agreement  YES[ X ] NO[   ] 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the October 1, 2024, by the U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, Oklahoma-Texas 
Water Science Center, UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, party of the first part, and the Tarrant 
Regional Water District party of the second part. 
 
1. The parties hereto agree that subject to the availability of appropriations and in accordance with their respective 
authorities there shall be maintained in cooperation for negotiated deliverables (see attached), herein called the 
program. The USGS legal authority is 43 USC 36C; 43 USC 50, and 43 USC 50b. 
 
2. The following amounts shall be contributed to cover all of the cost of the necessary field and analytical work 
directly related to this program. 2(b) include In-Kind-Services in the amount of $0.00 
 

(a) $33,750 by the party of the first part during the period 
October 1, 2024 to September 30, 2025 
 

(b) $460,790 by the party of the second part during the period 
October 1, 2024 to September 30, 2025 
 

(c) Contributions are provided by the party of the first part through other USGS regional or national programs, 
in the amount of: $0 
 
Description of the USGS regional/national program:  
 
 

(d) Additional or reduced amounts by each party during the above period or succeeding periods as may be 
determined by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters between the parties. 
 

(e) The performance period may be changed by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters 
between the parties. 
 

3. The costs of this program may be paid by either party in conformity with the laws and regulations respectively 
governing each party. 
 
4. The field and analytical work pertaining to this program shall be under the direction of or subject to periodic review 
by an authorized representative of the party of the first part. 
 
5. The areas to be included in the program shall be determined by mutual agreement between the parties hereto or 
their authorized representatives. The methods employed in the field and office shall be those adopted by the party of 
the first part to insure the required standards of accuracy subject to modification by mutual agreement. 
 
6. During the course of this program, all field and analytical work of either party pertaining to this program shall be 
open to the inspection of the other party, and if the work is not being carried on in a mutually satisfactory manner, 
either party may terminate this agreement upon 60 days written notice to the other party.  
 
7. The original records resulting from this program will be deposited in the office of origin of those records. Upon 
request, copies of the original records will be provided to the office of the other party. 
 
8. The maps, records or reports resulting from this program shall be made available to the public as promptly as 
possible. The maps, records or reports normally will be published by the party of the first part. However, the party of 
the second part reserves the right to publish the results of this program, and if already published by the party of the 
first part shall, upon request, be furnished by the party of the first part, at cost, impressions suitable for purposes of 
reproduction similar to that for which the original copy was prepared. The maps, records or reports published by 
either party shall contain a statement of the cooperative relations between the parties. The Parties acknowledge that 
scientific information and data developed as a result of the Scope of Work (SOW) are subject to applicable USGS 
review, approval, and release requirements, which are available on the USGS Fundamental Science Practices 
website (https://www.usgs.gov/office-of-science-quality-and-integrity/fundamental-science-practices). 
 
 



9. Billing for this agreement will be rendered quarterly.  Invoices not paid within 60 days from the billing date will bear
Interest, Penalties, and Administrative cost at the annual rate pursuant the Debt Collection Act of 1982, (codified at
31 U.S.C. § 3717) established by the U.S. Treasury.

USGS Technical Point of Contact 

Name: Marsha Gipson 
Branch Chief - North Texas 

Address: 501 W. Felix Street Bldg 24 
Fort Worth, TX 76115 

Telephone: (682) 444-6392
Fax: (682) 316-5022
Email: mgipson@usgs.gov

Customer Technical Point of Contact 

Name: Craig Ottman 

Address: 800 East Northside Drive 
Fort Worth, TX 76102 

Telephone: (817) 335-2491
Fax: (n/a) 
Email: Craig.Ottman@trwd.com 

USGS Billing Point of Contact 

Name: Kandis Becher 
Budget Analyst 

Address: 501 W. Felix Street Bldg 24 
Fort Worth, TX 76115 

Telephone: (682) 316-5051
Fax: (682) 316-5022
Email: kkbecher@usgs.gov

Customer Billing Point of Contact 

Name: Craig Ottman 

Address: 800 East Northside Drive 
Fort Worth, TX 76102 

Telephone: (817) 335-2491
Fax: (n/a) 
Email: Craig.Ottman@trwd.com 

U.S. Geological Survey 
United States 

Department of Interior 

Signature 

By_______________________ Date: 
Name: Meghan Roussel 
Title: Acting Director 

Tarrant Regional Water District 

Signatures 

By_______________________ Date: _________ 
Name: 
Title: 

By_______________________ Date: _________ 
Name: 
Title: 

By_______________________ Date: _________ 
Name: 
Title: 

Form 9-1366 
(May 2018) 

U.S. Department of the Interior 
U.S. Geological Survey 

Joint Funding Agreement 
FOR 

Water Resource Investigations 

Customer #: 6000000623 
Agreement #: 25SJJFATX062000 
Project #: SJ009ME 
TIN #:  75-6002584 

MEGHAN
ROUSSEL

Digitally signed by 
MEGHAN ROUSSEL 
Date: 2024.07.18 
19:10:33 -05'00'



TOTAL
STATION DESCRIPTION CODE NO. DIFF USGS TRWD GROSS
NUMBER UNITS FACTOR FUNDS FUNDS COST

 001: SURFACE WATER PROGRAM
08042600 West Fork Trinity River at Hwy 281 nr Windthorst, TX

Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $0 $16,800 $16,800
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $18,300 $18,300

08042800 W. Fork Trinity River near Jacksboro, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 0 1.00 $0 $0 $0
Funded by Federal Priority Streamgages
Rain Gage RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $1,500 $1,500

08042820 Lost Creek Reservoir near Jacksboro, TX
Reservoir Elevation RES-E 1 1.00 $0 $7,000 $7,000

$0 $7,000 $7,000

08042950 Big Ck nr Chico, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $0 $16,800 $16,800
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $18,300 $18,300
08043000 Bridgeport Reservoir above Bridgeport, TX

Reservoir Contents RES-C 1 1.05 $0 $8,925 $8,925
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $10,425 $10,425

08043950 Big Sandy Creek near Bridgeport, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 0 1.00 $0 $0 $0
Funded by Federal Priority Streamgages
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $1,500 $1,500

08044500 W. Fork Trinity River near Boyd, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 0 1.00 $0 $0
Funded by Federal Priority Streamgages
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $1,500 $1,500

08044800 Walnut Creek at Reno, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $5,700 $11,100 $16,800
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$5,700 $12,600 $18,300

08045000 Eagle Mountain Reservoir above Fort Worth, TX
Reservoir Contents RES-C 1 1.05 $0 $8,925 $8,925
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $10,425 $10,425Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Tarrant Regional Water District
25SJJFATX062000

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:



08045400 Lake Worth above Fort Worth, TX
Reservoir Contents RES-C 1 1.05 $0 $8,925 $8,925
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $10,425 $10,425

08045550 W. Fork Trininty River at White Settlement, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $5,700 $11,100 $16,800
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$5,700 $12,600 $18,300

08045800 Lake Weatherford near Weatherford, TX
Reservoir Elevation RES-E 1 1.00 $0 $7,000 $7,000

$0 $7,000 $7,000

08045995 Clear Fork Trinity River at Kelly Road near Aledo, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $5,700 $11,100 $16,800

$5,700 $11,100 $16,800

08047000 Clear Fork Trinity River near Benbrook, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.20 $0 $20,160 $20,160
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $21,660 $21,660

08047050 Mary's Creek at Benbrook, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $5,700 $11,100 $16,800

$5,700 $11,100 $16,800

08047500 Clear Fork Trinity River at Fort Worth, TX
Funded by Federal Priority Streamgages QCONT 0 1.00 $0 $0 $0
Site funded by NSIP

$0 $0 $0

08048000 W. Fork Trinity River at Fort Worth, TX QCONT 0 1.00 $0 $0 $0
Funded by Federal Priority Streamgages
Weather Station, Operation & Maintenance WSTAT 1 1.00 $0 $5,000 $5,000

$0 $5,000 $5,000

08048543 W. Fork Trinity River at Beach St. Fort Worth, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 0 1.00 $0 $0 $0
Site funded by Trinity River Compact
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $1,500 $1,500

08048970  Village Ck at Everman, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $5,250 $11,550 $16,800 

$5,250 $11,550 $16,800

08049200 Lake Arlington at Arlington, TX
Reservoir Elevation RES-E 1 1.20 $0 $8,400 $8,400
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $9,900 $9,900

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:



08062575 Trinity River at Dosser
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 0 1.00 $0 $16,800 $16,800

$0 $16,800 $16,800

08062700 Trinity River at Trinidad, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 0 1.00 $0 $0 $0
Funded by Federal Priority Streamgages

$0 $0 $0

08062800 Cedar Creek nr Kemp, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 0 1.00 $0 $0 $0
Funded by Federal Priority Streamgages

$0 $0 $0

08062895 Kings Creek at H 34 nr Kaufman, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.1 $5,700 $12,780 $18,480
Rain gage Station INSTALL 1 1 $0 $4,000 $4,000

RSTAD 1 1 $0 $750 $750
$5,700 $17,530 $23,230

08063010 Cedar Creek Reservoir near Trinidad, TX
Reservoir Contents RES-C 1 1.05 $0 $8,925 $8,925
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500
Wind Speed and Direction WIND 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $11,925 $11,925

08063100 Richland Creek near Dawson, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $0 $16,800 $16,800

$0 $16,800 $16,800

08063460 Richland Creek at CR 0030, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $0 $16,800 $16,800

$0 $16,800 $16,800

08063600 Lake Waxahachie near Waxahachie
Reservoir Elevation RES-E 1 1.00 $0 $7,000 $7,000

$0 $7,000 $7,000

08063800 Waxahacie Creek near Bardwell, TX
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $0 $16,800 $16,800

$0 $16,800 $16,800

08064510 Halbert Lake near Corsicana, TX
Reservoir Elevation RES-E 1 1.00 $0 $7,000 $7,000

$0 $7,000 $7,000

08064550 Richland-Chambers Reservoir near Kerens, TX
Reservoir Contents RES-C 1 1.00 $0 $8,500 $8,500
Rain Gage Station RSTAD 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500
Wind Speed and Direction WIND 1 1.00 $0 $1,500 $1,500

$0 $11,500 $11,500

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:



08064570 Trinity Rv at Hwy 287 nr Cayuga, TX 
Full Range Streamflow Station QCONT 1 1.00 $0 $16,800 $16,800

$0 $16,800 $16,800

**TBD** Install gage at W Fork Trinity at E Northside Dr
Install  INSTALL 1 1.00 $0 $49,000 $49,000

$0 $49,000 $49,000

QMEAS 1 1.00 $0 $10,250 $10,250
$0 $10,250 $10,250

SURFACE WATER TOTAL $33,750 $381,590 $415,340

8047050
Mary's Creek at Benbrook, TX
O&M of 5-parameter Water-Quality Monitor T, SC, DO, 
pH, Turb. WQMON5 1 1 $0 39,600$     $39,600

08048000
W. Fork Trinity River at Fort Worth, TX
O&M of 5-parameter Water-Quality Monitor T, SC, DO, 
pH, Turb. WQMON5 1 1 $0 $39,600 $39,600

WATER QUALITY TOTAL $0 79,200$     $79,200

PROJECT USGS TRWD TOTAL
FUNDS FUNDS COST

001: SURFACE WATER $33,750 $381,590 $415,340
003: WATER QUALITY $0 79,200$     $79,200

GRAND TOTAL $33,750 $460,790 $494,540

 003: WATER QUALITY PROGRAM

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Site Totals:

Streamflow Measurements Below Benbrook Waterworks
Streamflow Measurements Below the Water Supply Outlets



 
LIST OF SUBMITTING FIRMS  PAGE 1 OF 1 
RFP 24-164 ANNUAL STAND-BY GENERATOR MAINTENANCE CONTRACT  

  

 

List of Submitting Firms 
 

RFP No. 24-164 
Annual Stand-By Generator Maintenance Contract 

 

Due Date and Time: August 27, 2024, at 02:00 p.m. CT 

 

Name of Firm 

kW Power Services, LLC  

AMP GenPower Solutions  

 



kelly03
Snapshot



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9 
 

DATE: September 17, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for 
Design of Section 1D & 1E Pipelines and Arlington Outlet 
Improvements 

 
FUNDING: Bond Fund 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Management recommends approval of a contract in an amount not-to-exceed 
$5,239,279 with Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) for engineering design services for the 
Section 1D & 1E Pipelines and Arlington Outlet Improvements. These engineering 
services include preliminary design investigations, final design plans and specifications, 
and procurement phase services.  
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
The Section 1D and 1E Pipelines and Arlington Outlet Improvements Project includes 
three distinct, but interrelated subprojects that are intended to enhance the capacity, 
reliability, and redundancy of the District’s water transmission system. 
 
Section 1D is a proposed three-mile, 108-inch diameter pipeline that will connect to the 
existing 108-in Line J pipeline and parallel the existing Richland Chambers and Cedar 
Creek pipelines to the Rolling Hills Water Treatment Plant. It will include connections to 
existing lines, as well as crossover and mainline valves.  
 
Section 1E is a proposed 3,000-foot, 108-inch pipeline that will connect to the proposed 
Section 1D pipeline and to the Rolling Hills Booster Pump Station suction header.  
 
Both pipelines will increase flow capacity between the Kennedale Balancing Reservoir 
and Fort Worth’s Rolling Hills Water Treatment Plant and the District’s Rolling Hills 
Booster Pump Station. These new pipelines will also relieve pressure class constraints 
of the existing pipelines which will enable the Benbrook Lake Pump Station to pump to 
customers east of the Kennedale Balancing Reservoir. The 1E and 1D pipelines will also 
provide additional operational flexibility to move water during alternative operating 
scenarios often required by routine pipeline maintenance and unexpected events.   
 
Improvements at the Arlington Outlet are needed to replace at least five valves that are 
near the end of their useful life. The valves leak excessively and have mechanical 
malfunctions.  The new valves and adjoining supply lines between the main pipelines 
and the Arlington Outlet will also be upsized to increase discharge capacity. 



 
 
Request for Statement of Qualifications was solicited per statute (Texas Government 
Code Chapter 2254), and ten submittals were received. All ten submittals included in the 
attached list of submitting firms were reviewed and evaluated, and the top four scoring 
firms were interviewed in person. FNI was deemed to be the most qualified firm for this 
project.  
 
FNI is a prime, non-certified diverse business. It has subcontracted portions of the  
contract resulting in an overall Diverse Business, participation commitment of 20%. 
 
These engineering services will take place through the next two and half years with 
construction planned to begin in 2027. 
 

This item was reviewed by the Construction and Operations Committee on September 
12, 2024. 
 
Submitted By:       
 

Jason Gehrig, P.E. 
Infrastructure Engineering Director 



 
LIST OF SUBMITTING FIRMS  
RFSOQ 24-087 ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR CEDAR CREEK SECTION 2 REPLACEMENT, CEDAR CREEK SECTION 4 

REPLACEMENT, SECTION 1D & 1E PIPELINES AND ARLINGTON OUTLET IMPROVEMENTS 

  

  

 

List of Submitting Firms 
 

RFSOQ No. 24-087 
Engineering Services for Cedar Creek Section 2 Replacement, Cedar Creek Section 4 

Replacement, Section 1D & 1E Pipelines and Arlington Outlet Improvements 

 

Due Date and Time: March 26, 2024, at 2:00 p.m. CT 

 

Name of Firm 

Aurora Technical Services, 
LLC 

Black & Veatch 

Freese & Nichols 

Garver 

Hazen 

HDR 

Jacobs Engineering Group 

Kennedy Jenks 

Lockwood, Andrews, & 
Newman, Inc 

STV Infrastructure 

 

https://procurement.opengov.com/governments/4341/projects/80840/manage
https://procurement.opengov.com/governments/4341/projects/80840/manage


12770 Merit Drive, Suite 900 + Dallas, Texas 75251 + 214-217-2200 

 

 ATTACHMENT SC 

 

 SCOPE OF SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF OWNER 

 

ARTICLE I 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Tarrant Regional Water District (Owner) is proceeding with design and 

construction of the Section 1D Pipeline between the Lake Arlington Outlet (AO) Structure and Rolling Hills 

Water Treatment Plant, Section 1E Pipeline between the northeast corner of the RHWTP and Rolling Hills 

Booster Pump Station (RHBPS) and replacement of the yard pipe and valves at the AO facility.  The Section 1D 

Pipeline is approximately 16,700 linear feet of 108” pipeline. Section 1E is approximately 2,100 linear feet of 

108” pipeline. The Segment 1D/1E and AO Improvements (The Project) will include design and bid phase 

services. Construction phase services will be added by amendment at a later date and are not included in this 

scope.  

 

The purpose of this contract is to provide the following Engineering Services:  

 

Basic Services -  

TASK 1-  Project Management and Support  

TASK 2-  Preliminary Engineering Design  

TASK 3-  Final Engineering Design  

TASK 4-  Bid Phase Services  

TASK 5-  Geotechnical Inves@ga@on 

TASK 6-  Topographic Surveying Services  

TASK 7-  Easement Documenta@on  

TASK 8-  Subsurface U@lity Engineering Services 

TASK 9-  Staging, Accessibility and Phasing 

TASK 10-  Traffic Control  

 

Addi@onal Services 1 

TASK 11-  Geomorphology Analysis  

TASK 12-  Stormwater Review & Floodplain PermiDng  

TASK 13-  Exis@ng PCCP Pipe Analysis  

TASK 14-  Geotechnical Baseline Report 

TASK 15-  Bid Phase: Prepurchase of Valves 

TASK 16-  Con@ngency 

 

The Project will include the following bid packages: 

 

1. Sec@on 1D and 1E pipeline and AO Improvements 

2. Prepurchase of the valves needed for the 1D, 1E, and the AO Improvements.  

a. This is expected to also include valves for sec@ons 2 and 4. 

b. This bid package is an addi@onal service. 

If additional bid packages are included, then additional compensation will be discussed and mutually agreed 

upon.  

 

The Project will include the conventional design-bid-build delivery method utilizing Competitive Sealed 

Proposals (CSP) for procurement of construction services and Request for Proposals (RFP) for procurement of 

large diameter valves.   

www.freese.com 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

The following assumptions are made for the scope of work. 

 

a. FNI’s Construc@on Phase Engineering Services will be a separate contract amendment coinciding with 

the Bid Award. 

b. No value engineering is being considered. Sound design prac@ce will be used but specific value 

engineering analysis will not be provided. 

c. The design will use Envision Ra@ng System prac@ces; however, Envision cer@fica@on will not be 

acquired. 

d. No rehabilita@on of the AO facili@es and discharge header are being performed in this contract. AO 

facility impacts  are limited to the replacement of the outside piping and valves only. Valves to be 

replaced are R410, C412, C413, X415, and R411. 

e. No public outreach is required for this project. Any needed public outreach that may be needed will 

be handled by TRWD with the excep@on of Right of Entry leOers for survey and easement purposes. 

f. Project stakeholder coordina@on will be ini@ated by TRWD staff and con@nue as such unless TRWD 

request FNI to take over communica@ons in specified areas. This coordina@on effort is not included in 

the current scope of work and will be an addi@onal service. The current scope of work includes up to 

4-1 hour mee@ngs for the PM and Lead Design Engineer with outside stakeholders. Poten@al 

stakeholders are Fort Worth Water Department, Trinity River Authority, Lake Arlington Management, 

the City of Forest Hill, Kennedale, Tarrant County, TxDOT, and local businesses. This is not an exhaus@ve 

list and other stakeholders may be iden@fied during the design. 

g. Sec@on 1D and 1E needs to be able to maintain pig-ability. 

h. Valves will be manually operated.  

i. Planned factory valve tes@ng visits at the valve manufacturer’s facility will be handled by TRWD by 

separate IDIQ. 

j. TRWD will provide HGLs for steady state analysis and their consultant will provide surge envelopes 

related to FNI’s design for air valve placement. 

k. Pipeline 1D, 1E, and AO Improvements will be located within exis@ng easements; however, temporary 

construc@on easements may be required.  TCE’s will be acquired by TRWD.  

l. No electrical or communica@on appurtenances are included in this design package. 

m. No value engineering is included in this design package.  

n. No flood plain permiDng is included in this scope of work. 

 

The following services are not part of this contract scope of work with FNI, and will be provided by TRWD or 

other TRWD consultants, working in close coordination with the FNI design team: 

1. Environmental Studies and PermiDng, including Tree Surveys and wetland delinea@on 

2. Corrosion Engineering 

3. Surge Analysis 

4. Hydraulic Modeling 

5. Public Rela@ons 

6. Easement Acquisi@on 

Up to 15 mee@ngs with other TRWD consultants is included with this scope of work. 

  



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

ARTICLE II 

 

BASIC SERVICES:  Upon execution of this Agreement, FNI shall provide the following professional services in 

connection with the Project: 

A. TASK 1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

1. Conduct kickoff meeting to review scope, schedule, and budget; determine any special conditions 

that may affect design and/or construction; discuss administrative requirements of Owner; and to 

develop design criteria specific to the project. TRWD Design Criteria from the IPL project 

Specifications, and Details will be utilized for the project. 

2. Manage efforts of internal design team and sub-consultants on the Project and perform Quality 

Control review of all deliverables. FNI will provide a copy of FNI’s Quality Control Plan for the 

project within 30 days of receiving the signed contract. 

3. Prepare meeting agendas, attend, and prepare minutes for the following meetings: 

a. 32 monthly project coordination meetings with Owner.  These will be virtual unless prior 

notification is requested for an in-person meeting. 

b. Bi-weekly PM to PM check phone calls. 

c. 15 meetings with third parties, including other consultants providing services to Owner. 

d. 10 in-person workshops for review of milestone design submittals (Technical Memorandums, 

60%, 95%, 100%). 

4. Prepare a Microsoft Project schedule and provide monthly updates including revisions to bring 

the Project back on schedule if needed. FNI will coordinate with program wide consultants to 

confirm information needed to support the design and bid services is tracked in the overall project 

schedule. The project schedule will not be resource loaded. 

5. Utilize the Owner’s web-based Document Control System (DCS) (TRWD Project Portal – SharePoint 

Site).  Share documents through the DCS including deliverables, minutes, decision logs, action 

items, reports, construction submittals, and other pertinent documents. 

6. Prepare monthly repor@ng including status report, recent ac@vi@es, upcoming ac@vi@es, 

ac@on items log, decisions made log, budget updates, schedule updates, and scope changes.  

Prepare monthly invoices. 

7. Deliverables include the following: 

a. Quality Control Plan 

b. Project Organization Chart, including named project leads for FNI and Subconsultants 

c. Agendas and minutes for all meetings 

d. Project schedule updated monthly 

e. Planned cash flow 

f. Monthly reporting 

g. Monthly invoices and cash flow updates 

B. TASK 2 PRELIMINARY ENGINGEERING DESIGN PHASE: FNI and its Subconsultants shall provide 

professional services in this phase as follows: 

1. Collect and review existing data, reports, mapping, and records from Owner. Review documents 

associated with the project. Provide analyses of Owner’s requirements for the Project, including 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

planning, surveys, and site evaluations . Data request will be provided immediately upon Notice to 

Proceed. 

2. Conduct a workshop with Owner’s staff to discuss 20% pipeline layouts, Owner’s preferences, 

and alternatives to be studied. FNI will bring a strip map and lead designers from the major 

disciplines to the workshop.  

3. The pipeline studies shall include analysis of hydraulics, delivery point locations, construction costs, 

conflicts with existing infrastructure, easement requirements and acquisition, land costs (to be 

provided by Owner), environmental considerations, grading considerations, accessibility, permitting 

requirements, and identification of locations where trenchless crossings will be required. Study will 

include site visits to points of public access. Final deliverable for the pipe route will be provided as an 

11” x 17” GIS map book at 1” = 400’ scale. 

4. Analysis and recommendations for geomorphology around the stream crossing. See Task 5. 

5. Analysis and recommendations for storm drain channel in the existing pipeline easement corridor. See 

Task 6. 

6. The following studies will be conducted to confirm the preliminary design of the project components.  

Results of the studies will be presented in workshops with the meeting minutes and meeting materials 

serving as the documentation.   

a. Workshop # 1: Pipeline Alignment & Design: 

i. Pipeline Material & Manufacturer Review – a summary of pipeline material and 

manufacturer options for final design and bidding. 

ii. Pipeline Permitting Requirements – a summary of the various utility and road crossing 

requirements.  

iii. Evaluate proposed methods of pipeline construction, open cut vs. trenchless, along 

the proposed alignment  

iv. Hydraulic Grade Line based on TRWD modeling. 

v. 30% GIS alignment sheets to be included as the final Engineering Report. See Item 11 

below. 

b. Workshop # 2: Land Acquisition - a summary of permanent and temporary easement needs.  

A discussion on temporary staging, haul roads, and access needs will also be included. The 

easement needs will be shown on a mapbook for approval prior to moving forward with 

easement preparation. 

c. Workshop # 3: AO Pipe and Valve Replacement – a summary of identified hydraulic demand 

flows and operational requirements. FNI will analyze up to two (2) operational scenarios. 

TRWD will identify minimum acceptable flows at delivery locations. Project team will evaluate 

crossover and mainline valve options, yard piping configurations, and select preferred option. 

Project team will coordinate with separate consultant for hydraulic analysis. Analysis will also 

evaluate early procurement.  

d. Workshop # 4: Pipeline Connections and Valve Analysis at the Rolling Hills Booster Pump 

Station, and other potential areas of tie-in’s with existing TRWD pipelines (e.g. 1E/1D 

transition area).  

7. The design team will review the Project against the Envision Ra@ng System Checklist to 

determine if there are opportuni@es for increasing the resiliency and sustainability of the 

project. Discuss findings during a monthly project mee@ng. 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

8. Coordinate and incorporate informa@on from other TRWD consultants.  

a. Consultant will aOend the kick-off mee@ng with the environmental team, if requested, 

and up to 6 progress mee@ngs with the environmental team. 

b. Discuss the poten@al environmental permiDng requirements associated with a design 

component and how it could affect project schedule, alterna@ves analysis, and protected 

resources. Assist to determine what engineering deliverables are needed for the 

environmental team such that they can obtain all environmental permits for the Project. 

c. Provide data to the TRWD consultants as requested. 

d. Review draY data from program wide consultants and provide feedback on how it could 

affect alterna@ves analysis, design, and project schedule.  

9. At the conclusion of the preliminary design phase, the design, discussion and decisions from the 

four workshops will be assembled into one complete document with an Execu@ve Summary and 

OPCC for the Project. This document will serve as the Engineering Report and will not be 

updated as the project progresses. 

10. Furnish an electronic copy of the Engineering Report and present to Owner.  The Engineering Report 

will be presented to the Owner as a final document. There will be no comment review period for this 

document. 

11. Deliverables for the Preliminary Design Phase include the following: 

a. Design workshop discussing 15% pipeline strip map 

b. 30% GIS alignment plan view sheets 

c. Overall Hydraulic Grade Line 

d. Draft and Final Pipeline Alignment Map Books 

e. Arlington Outlet Process Diagram 

f. Final Engineering Report that includes an executive summary and OPCC. 

g. Agendas and minutes for all mee@ngs 

h. Project schedule updated monthly 

i. Monthly repor@ng 

 

D. TASK 3 FINAL ENGINEERING DESIGN PHASE: After approval of the Engineering Report for the 1D/1E 

pipeline and AO Improvements, FNI will provide professional services in this phase as follows: 

1. Prepare front end documents, including bid documents, general conditions, and special conditions 

for the one construction package, based upon Owner’s standard documents.  Meet with Owner 

to resolve review comments, and revise documents accordingly. 

2. Advise Owner of need for and recommend scope of Additional Services, not already included in 

this Scope of Work.  The cost of such Additional Services shall be paid by Owner and are not 

included in the services performed by FNI. 

3. Prepare applications for routine permits such as road crossing permits, gas line crossing permits, 

and Oncor crossing permits.  FNI to provide design documents that conform to local codes and 

meet with code officials as needed during design. Owner shall pay for fees if required. 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

4. Furnish such information necessary to utility companies whose facilities may be affected, or 

services may be required for the Project.  Easements for utility companies will be provided as a 

Additional Service. 

5. Storm Drain Design as required for replacement. 

6. Coordina@on with environmental team, easement acquisi@on team, surge modeling team, 

hydraulic modeling team, and corrosion design team.  

a. Provide data to the TRWD consultants as requested. 

b. Review draY environmental commitments from the permit to confirm these 

commitments are properly iden@fied in the contract documents.  

7. Prepare revised opinion of probable construc@on cost at the 60%, 95%, and 100% 

submiOals. 

8. 60% Review:  Upon approval of 30% submittal, prepare drawings, specification’s table of 

contents and non-standard TRWD specifications (as needed to supplement TRWD Standard 

Specifications), construction contract documents, designs, and layouts of improvements to be 

constructed. Furnish Owner digital drawings, 3D models, specifications, and bid proposals 

marked “60% Submittal” for review by Owner.  FNI will meet with the Owner to present the 

plans and specifications and receive comments.  Review documents will include dimensional 

layout drawings, plans, sections, and elevations for all the trades, typical details, and most 

special details.  Pipeline plans will include plan and profile sheets, pipeline appurtenances, and 

typical details.  FNI will address comments from Owner in the set prepared for 95% Review.  FNI 

will coordinate with the Owner and the Environmental Consultant to assist with information 

needed to submit the 404 Permit.  Review and comment tracking for 60% review will be 

conducted in Bluebeam Studio. 

9. 60% Design Submittal – Furnish Owner electronic (PDF) plans a 60% documents for the TRWD’s 

review. No hard copies will be provided. 

10. 95% Review:  Upon approval of 60% submittal, furnish Owner digital drawings, specifications, and 

bid proposals marked “95% Submittal” for approval by Owner.  For construction packages with 

CSP, prepare instructions to proposers, proposal evaluation criteria and proposal submittal 

requirements. Prepare bidder’s proposal forms (project quantities of the improvements to be 

constructed. FNI will meet with the Owner to present the plans and specifications and receive 

comments.  Review documents will include all plans and specifications with minor corrections and 

notes remaining.  FNI will receive comments from Owner and address comments in the Final Draft.  

Review and comment tracking for 95% review will be conducted in Bluebeam Studio. 

11. 95% Design Submittal – Furnish Owner electronic (PDF) plans 95% documents for the TRWD’s 

review. No hard copies will be provided. 

12. 100% Review: FNI will provide Owner “100%” before finalizing with signed and sealed plans and 

specifications. With Owner acceptance of final changes from 95% review, signed and sealed final 

plans will prepared and delivered to Owner. Review and comment tracking for 95% review will be 

conducted in Bluebeam Studio. 

13. 100% Design Submittal – Furnish Owner electronic (PDF) plans and a total of five (5) sets of half-

size (11”x17”) 95% documents for the TRWD’s review. 

14. Deliverables for the Final Design Phase include: 

a. Front end documents for construction 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

b. Routine Permit Applications (Road Crossing, TCEQ Approval, Gas Line Crossing, Oncor 

Crossing, Park Crossing) 

c. OPCC at PDR, 60% 95%, and 100%  

d. 60% submittal of Plans and Specifications 

e. 95% submittal of Plans and Specifications, and reconciled comment tracking log from 60% 

design review in Bluebeam Studio. 

f. 100% submittal of Plans and Specifications, and reconciled comment tracking log from 95% 

design review in Bluebeam Studio. 

g. Final signed and sealed Plans and Specifications 

E. TASK 4 BID PHASE:  Upon completion of the design services and approval of “Final” drawings and 

specifications by Owner, FNI will proceed with the performance of services in this phase as follows: 

1. Assist Owner in securing bids.  Edit the specifications Notice to Bidders and provide a copy of the 

notice to bidders for Owner to use in posting on the Owner’s procurement website.  The cost for 

publications shall be paid by Owner. 

2. Submit electronic copies of plans, specifications and bidding documents to Owner for 

advertisement on their OpenGov procurement portal. Prospective bidders may download and 

print documents from OpenGov, who will maintain plan holder list and post addenda.  FNI will also 

list bid projects on the FNI website.  

3. Assist Owner by responding to questions and interpreting bid documents.  Prepare and issue 

addenda to the bid documents to OpenGov if necessary. 

4. Assist the Owner in conducting a pre-bid conference for the construction projects and coordinate 

responses with Owner.  Response to the pre-bid conference will be in the form of addenda issued 

after the conference.  

5. After receipt of proposals, prepare preliminary tabulation of scoring criteria for the bidders, check 

references, review qualifications and experience, prepare a summary of observations and meet 

with Owner to review proposals.  If necessary, attend interviews with short-listed proposers and 

assist Owner with final scoring.  Prepare a recommendation of award of contracts or other actions 

as appropriate 

6. Assist Owner in the preparation of Construction Contract Documents for each of the construction 

contracts.  An “Issued for Construction” set of Contract Documents will be provided with 

addendum items posted.  Provide a digital PDF version of Construction Contract Documents for 

each of the construction contracts which include information from the selected bidders’ bid 

documents, legal documents, and addenda bound in the documents for execution by the Owner 

and construction contractor.   Five hard copies of half size (11”x17”) 100% plan set and three full 

size (22”x34”) will be provided. Additional printed sets of documents can be provided as an 

additional service. 

7. Furnish contractor digital copies of the drawings and specifications for construction pursuant to 

the General Conditions of the Construction Contract. 

8. Deliverables for the Bid or Negotiation Phase include: 

a. Notice to Bidders 

b. Electronic copies of plans, specifications, bidding documents, and addenda 

c. Tabulation of selection criteria for Proposers (CSP Only) 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

d. Recommendation of Award with tabulation of bids 

e. Notice of award to selected bidder 

f. Conformed contract documents for execution 

g. Electronic copies of conformed contract documents for Contractor and Owner 

 

F. TASK 5 GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION:   

 

Upon written notification and approval, the following activities will be included in this task. 

The proposed geotechnical scope of work for the project will consist of field exploration, 

laboratory testing, engineering analysis, and reporting, as presented below.  

1. Field Explora@on 

a. Select and mark up to 20 boring locations and notify Texas 811 and TRWD to request 

location and marking of existing underground utilities prior to the field exploration. 

b. One boring is anticipated to be drilled through the existing pavement on Anglin Road. 

Traffic control will be set up to close one lane of traffic and route vehicles around the 

drilling zone. All other borings are anticipated to be drilled within the easement except 

one boring will be drilled at the end of Ball Road which is a gravel road. Traffic control is 

not anticipated for this boring. 

c. Subcontract with a geotechnical drilling contractor to drill up to 20 borings to depths 

ranging from 20 to 45 feet. Samples will be collected intermittently using continuous 

flight augers and either split-spoon or tube samplers.  Rock and rock-like materials will 

be cored or tested insitu using a TxDOT Cone Penetration Test, as appropriate for the 

material. Five samples will be utilized for corrosion testing. 

d. Piezometers will be constructed in up to eight (8) of the borings to evaluate groundwater 

conditions for some of the trenchless crossings. Piezometers will be constructed and 

developed in accordance with the requirements of the Texas Department of Licensing 

and Regulation and reported to the State of Texas. Piezometers will remain in place 

through construction for use and monitoring by the contractor and ultimately will be 

removed and abandoned by the contractor. 

e. At completion, the boreholes will be backfilled with auger cuttings and the pavement 

patched (boring drilled through pavement). 

i. Provide an Engineer or Geologist experienced in logging borings to direct the 

drilling, log the borings, and handle and transport the samples. Visual 

classification of the subsurface stratigraphy shall be provided per the Unified Soil 

Classification System (USCS). 

2. Laboratory Tes@ng 

a. Testing shall be performed on samples obtained from the borings to determine soil 

classification and pertinent engineering properties of the subsurface materials. FNI will 

select samples for laboratory testing, assign tests, and review the test results. Testing will 

be performed by a geotechnical testing subcontractor. 

b. Laboratory tests will be assigned based on the specific subsurface materials encountered 

during exploration.  Test type and quantity may vary, but are expected to include: 

i. Classification tests (liquid and plastic limits and percent passing the no. 200 sieve 

or gradation) 

ii. Moisture content 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

iii. Dry unit weight 

iv. Unconfined compressive strength 

v. Corrositivity Testing (electrical resistivity/conductivity, pH, and sulfate/chloride 

content) 

vi. CERCHAR Abrasivity (Rock Only) 

vii. Splitting Tensile Strength – Brazilian 

viii. Slake Durability (Rock Only) 

3. Engineering Analysis 

a. Prepare a geotechnical data report (GDR) of the investigation to include: 

i. Appendix with the boring locations, boring logs, laboratory test results, and a key 

to the symbols used. 

ii. Discussion of subsurface conditions and soil properties indicated by the field and 

laboratory work, and the implications for design. 

iii. General discussion of expected construction related issues, including 

recommendations for backfill and excavation methods for the water pipeline. 

iv. Earthwork related recommendations for use during development of the plans 

and specifications. 

 

G. TASK 6 TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEYING PHASE:   

Upon wriOen no@fica@on and approval, FNI shall retain (as a subconsultant) and monitor the 

services of a surveying firm to perform surveying services for the project. The following survey 

shall be provided:   

1. Establish project control using Global Positioning System (GPS) methodology. Horizontal 

values will be based on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System, North American Datum of 

1983, North Central Zone (4202), and scaled to surface using a surface adjustment factor of 

1.00012. The vertical values will be based on GPS derived ellipsoid heights and adjusted to 

North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD88) elevations using Geoid 18. Control Points 

will also be tied into TRWD control monuments. 

2. Research current property owners and obtain copies of subdivision plats, ownership deeds, 

and existing easements within the project area.  

3. Locate existing property corners and right-of-way corners to establish property lines and street 

rights-of-way. 

4. Design survey to include pavement edges, curb and gutter, buildings, driveways, culverts, 

fences and gates, signs, mailboxes, tops and toes of slopes, spot elevations, trees six (6) inches 

and greater, surface locations of utilities and flowline elevations of sanitary and storm sewer 

manholes where accessible, and other surface features. Surveyor will also pick-up 

designations by the SUE sub and boring locations. The design survey will capture the following 

areas 

a. Pipeline route – 210’ wide 

5. Provide a digital design survey drawing in AutoCAD (.dwg) format prepared to FNI standards 

showing visible surface features located, an ASCII point file, and a copy of field notes and field 

sketches.  



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

6. Perform a one-time staking of the existing easements. The easements will be staked with 4’ 

laths at all PCs, PTs, PIs, and at intervals to accommodate line of sight for assessment of 

alignment location and impact. 

7. Perform a one-time staking of the proposed alignment. The alignment will be staked with 4’ 

laths at all PCs, PTs, PIs, and at intervals to accommodate line of sight for assessment of 

alignment location and impact. 

8. Perform a one-time staking of the proposed easements. The easements will be staked with 4’ 

laths at all PCs, PTs, PIs, and at intervals to accommodate line of sight for assessment of 

alignment location and impact. 

H. TASK 7 EASEMENT DOCUMENTATION SERVICES PHASE:   

Upon wriOen no@fica@on and approval, FNI shall retain (as a subconsultant) and monitor the 

services of a surveying firm to perform easement document services for the project. The 

following shall be provided:   

1. Prepare up to five parcel exhibits with legal descriptions for permanent easements associated 

with the 1D/1E Pipeline. 

2. Prepare up to thirty parcel exhibits with legal descriptions for temporary easements 

associated with the 1D/1E Pipeline. 

3. Prepare documents using the standard TRWD form for review by the TRWD GIS department. 

I. TASK 8 SUBSURFACE UTILITY ENGINEERING PHASE:   

Upon wriOen no@fica@on and approval, FNI shall retain (as a subconsultant) and monitor subsurface 

u@lity engineering (SUE) services. SUE work required for this project in general accordance with the 

recommended prac@ces and procedures described in ASCE Publica@on CI/ASCE 38-02 (Standard 

Guideline for the Collec@on and Depic@on of Exis@ng Subsurface U@lity Data):   

1. As described in the mentioned ASCE publication, four levels have been established to describe 

the quality of utility location and attribute information used on plans.  The four quality levels 

are as follows: 

a. Quality Level D (QL “D”) – Information derived from existing records.  

b. Quality Level C (QL”C”) – QL “D” information supplemented with information obtained by 

surveying visible above-ground utility features (i.e. valves, hydrants, meters, manhole 

covers, etc.).  

c. Quality Level B (QL “B”) – Two-dimensional (x, y) information obtained through the 

application and interpretation of non-destructive surface geophysical methods.  Also 

known as “designating” this quality level provides the horizontal position of subsurface 

utilities within approximately one foot.  

d. Quality Level A (QL “A”) – Also known as “locating”, this quality level provides precise 

three-dimensional (x, y, z) information at critical locations by exposing specific utilities.  

Non-destructive vacuum excavation equipment is used to expose the utilities at specific 

points which are then tied down by survey. 

2. For this project, QL’s “B” and “A” SUE, as previously defined, will be provided.  The QL “B” will 

be included along the entirety of the pipeline.  

3. The QL “A” will consist of up to 80 test holes, along the proposed water line alignment.  

4. FNI and subconsultant will attempt to place the test holes outside the paved areas wherever 

possible. However, some test holes may be needed in areas that may require traffic control 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

measures. Subconsultant will establish routine/ordinary traffic control (cones and free-

standing signage, etc.) whenever required as part of this scope. If non-routine traffic control 

measures are required (barricades, flag person, changeable message board, etc.) these 

services will be additional to the contract. 

 

J. TASK 9 STAGING, ACCESSIBILITY AND PHASING PHASE:   

Upon written notification and approval, the following activities will be included in this task. 

1. Determine easement availability for contractor staging based upon existing easement widths, 

current topography, trees and infrastructure, and results from task 11 above.  

2. Determine accessible routes for contractor during construction and determine temporary 

construction easement needs. Identify improvements needed for accessibility for construction 

and maintenance. 

3. Provide recommendations for practical construction phasing plan considering the full scope of 

1D/1E pipeline installation and AO Improvements. Develop specification identifying critical 

connections and operations and maximum time out of service for these operations. Up to two (2) 

operational scenarios will be considered. TRWD will identify minimum acceptable flows at delivery 

locations. Coordinate shutdowns with TRWD. TRWD will handle the coordination efforts with it’s 

customers for shutdowns. 

4. Conduct constructability review coordination and meetings with potential contractors for 

contractor feedback (up to four meetings with contractors). 

5. Deliverables will include: 

a. Technical memorandum documenting results of analysis. 

b. Plan sheets and specifications as required to communicate staging, accessibility and phasing 

requirements. 

K. TASK 10 TRAFFIC CONTROL:   

Upon wriOen no@fica@on and approval, the following ac@vi@es will be included in this task. 

1. Provide Traffic control and SWPPP for The Project. Deliverables will include: 

a. Traffic Control write-up and exhibits will be included in the Engineering Report. 

b. Traffic control drawings will be provided for the 60%, 95% and Final submiOals. Drawings will 

include the traffic control plans and details for the following road crossings: 

1. Wichita Street 

2. Forrest Hill Drive 

3. Ball Road 

4. Adglin Drive 

5. Unnamed drive off Everman Kennedale Road 

c. Stakeholder coordina@on for traffic control will begin with TRWD staff and con@nue that 

coordina@on unless TRWD request FNI to take over communica@ons in specified areas. This 

coordina@on effort is not included in the current scope of work and will be an addi@onal service.   

  



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

ARTICLE III 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 1:   

F. TASK 11 GEOMORPHOLOGY ASESSMENT: Upon written notification and approval, a geomorphic 

assessment will be performed on approximately 7,500 Linear Feet (LF) of South Creek and North Fork 

of South Creek between Forest Hill Circle upstream and ending near Griggs Street downstream. 

Approximately 1,500 LF of Chambers Creek starting at the confluence with Village Creek will be 

assessed. An additional five (5) discrete unnamed tributaries of South Creek and Chambers Creek 

where the proposed alignment crosses are anticipated. The purpose of this geomorphic assessment 

is to identify the potential risks related to erosion and geomorphic processes along the streams 

adjacent or crossing the proposed pipeline.   

 The following activities will be included in this assessment.  

1. Desktop Analysis 

a. Obtain and review available and relevant watershed studies, reports, and record 

drawings for the study area.   

b. Obtain and review available GIS data, including topographic maps, LiDAR data, geologic 

maps, soil maps, and historical aerial photos.  

c. Historical watershed development and drainage area will be assessed. The riparian 

seDng of South and Chambers Creek will be iden@fied and, if possible, changes in 

planform and long-term erosion trends will be iden@fied.  

2. Field Assessment 

a. Professionals from FNI will conduct a site assessment where the length of the study 

area (approximately 10,000 LF total) will be walked to observe and document the 

exis@ng geomorphic condi@on of streams within the proposed alignment. This includes, 

but is not limited to, iden@fying channel form, bankfull benches, slope instabili@es and 

knickpoints, areas of bank erosion/mass was@ng, channel substrate and sediment 

deposi@on paOerns.  

b. FNI will photo-document site condi@ons using GPS geotagged photographs.  

c. The poten@al erodibility of the stream banks along the creeks will be evaluated and 

mapped using the rapid assessment tool, the Bank Erosion Hazard Index (BEHI). A GIS 

file may then be created to indicate general erosion risk along the stream banks within 

the project area. Specific erosion threats to poten@al infrastructure will also be 

iden@fied.  

d. If feasible, cross-sec@ons may be measured at up to four (4) loca@ons:  

i. loca@ons with representa@ve geomorphic condi@ons,   

ii. where the channel morphology has poten@al to change through @me, 

e. The average water surface slope/longitudinal profile will be evaluated if feasible using a 

combina@on of field measurements and desktop data.  

f. If feasible, photos and/or videos will be taken using an unmanned aerial vehicle to 

document the visual condi@on of the stream.  

3. Erosion Risk Assessment Along Proposed Pipeline 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

The existing geomorphic conditions of streams and flow features adjacent to the 

proposed pipeline alignment will be evaluated via Desktop Analysis to safeguard the 

design against future erosion risks.  

a. Review of the proposed design will be evaluated to provide future design 

recommenda@ons related to poten@al impacts due to erosion and/or future 

geomorphic condi@ons.  

4. Design 

This task shall include design of erosion protec@on and armoring for up to five (5) loca@ons 

where the proposed Sec@on D pipelines crosses unnamed tributaries of South Creek and 

Chambers Creek.  

a.  The design will address poten@al concerns regarding erosion and instability due to 

the proposed pipeline crossing as iden@fied in Risk Assessment. 

b.  Tributary flows will not be analyzed and capacity improvements will not be included 

in the design scope; any work of this type shall be considered an Addi@onal Service. 

5. Deliverables: 

a. FNI will provide a technical memorandum that compiles the data and analyses 

performed. This technical memorandum will contain the following:  

i. A descrip@on of exis@ng baseline condi@ons and the geomorphic characteris@cs 

of the streams assessed.  

ii. A discussion of poten@al future geomorphic changes within the study area.  

iii. Iden@fica@on of areas where erosion could threaten exis@ng infrastructure or 

cause significant land loss. This may be done through the crea@on of a map 

detailing erosion and instability loca@ons.  

iv. Provide the field data, GIS data, and the geotagged photos of the study site.  

Assump@ons: 

1. FNI will perform field measurements using an R12 survey grade GPS if feasible. Field 

measurements of stream geometry will be supplemented with available topographic 

and GIS data. 

2. These analyses are con@ngent upon the availability of relevant data, such as record 

drawings, HEC-RAS models, etc.  

3. Field efforts for each of the tasks described will be conducted in a way that most 

effec@vely u@lized personnel.  

These tasks do not include permitting efforts associated with Waters of the United States or any other 

environmental regulations.  

G. TASK 12 STORM WATER REVIEW & Permitting:   

Upon written notification and approval, the following ac@vi@es will be included in this task. 

1. A stormwater channel replacement plan will be developed for approximately 1,700 linear 

feet (LF) of the exis@ng concrete channel located on South Creek, northeast of Cobblestone 

Dr in Forest Hill, Texas. The extents of the channel to be replaced begin at the concrete 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

channel ou\all approximately 2,400 LF downstream of the Forest Hill Dr crossing and extend 

upstream to a point approximately 750 LF downstream of the Forest Hill Dr crossing, where 

the concrete channel transi@ons to natural channel. The proposed Sec@on D pipeline is 

an@cipated to be installed under or adjacent to the concrete channel through this area. 

2. The stormwater design will also include replacement of the approximately 150 LF concrete 

sec@on of channel located on North South Creek approximately 530 LF upstream of Forest 

Hill Dr, where the proposed Sec@on D pipeline is an@cipated to cross under the channel.  

FNI will provide professional services in this phase as follows: 

1. Design Management and Data Collec@on 

a. Collect and review exis@ng data, including GIS data, studies, reports, mapping, and 

records rela@ng to the exis@ng stormwater infrastructure within the project area. 

b. Conduct four (4) site visits to assess and document exis@ng condi@ons of the concrete 

channel within the project extents. 

c. It is assumed that environmental and floodplain permiDng tasks will be performed by 

Others. FNI will coordinate with Client and other Consultants to provide relevant design 

data as needed for these tasks. 

2. Hydraulic Modeling and Documenta@on 

a. This task shall include modeling of approximately 4,000 LF of the South Creek Channel. 

The extents of the modeling will begin at Griggs Park and extend upstream to the Forest 

Hill Dr channel crossing. 

b. A technical memorandum will be prepared to document the modeling effort and discuss 

the findings for proposed condi@ons. The memorandum will include exhibits as needed 

to illustrate the modeling results. 

3. Storm Channel Design:  South Creek Channel  

d. This task includes design for removal and replacement of the existing concrete channel for 

the purpose of installing the proposed Section D pipeline.  

e. The design will include reconstruction of the downstream channel outfall at Leo Spicer Park 

as well as the transitions to natural channels.  

f. The intent of the proposed design is to match the general dimensions of the existing channel 

and to maintain existing stormwater flows and environmental conditions. The proposed 

design will aim to restore the project area to previous or better conditions where flows are 

disrupted.  

g. The channel outfall at Leo Spicer Park will be analyzed for impacts to channel stability. 

Reconstruction of the channel outfall may require changes to existing geometry and 

materials. It is anticipated that riprap will be installed at the reconstructed outfall. Impacts of 

reconstruction will be evaluated as part of the modeling task described in Item 2. 

h. Channel capacity will not be analyzed and capacity improvements will not be included in the 

design scope; any work of this type shall be considered an Additional Service. 

4. Floodplain PermiDng: Prepare applica@on and exhibits for floodplain permiDng in the 

associated Ci@es and Coun@es of Construc@on. 

 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

5. Deliverables 

a. Deliverables for this task consist of the follow design plan sheets:  

i. Layout Sheet 

ii. Proposed Plan & Profile  

iii. Grading Plans 

iv. Erosion Control Plan 

v. Detail Sheets 

b. A technical memorandum detailing the modeling process and findings. 

c. Deliverables will be incorporated into the overall project plan sets and submiOal 

packages and will be submiOed at the 30%, 60%, 95%, and Final Milestones. 

Assumptions: 

1. Capacity improvements will not be included in the project. Alterna@ves analysis for proposed 

improvements are not included in this scope and will be considered an addi@onal service. 

2. Structural design is not included in this scope of work. Any work of this kind will be considered an 

addi@onal service. 

3. Geotechnical analysis is not included in this scope of work. Any work of this kind will be considered 

an addi@onal service. 

4. It is assumed the project will cause no adverse impacts to the floodplain and will not require 

floodway modeling or development of a LOMR/CLOMR. Any work of this kind will be considered 

an addi@onal service. 

5. It is assumed all proposed pipe crossings at channels will be buried beneath the channel flowline 

and will not be exposed. 

6. Environmental and floodplain permiDng tasks will be performed by others as part of a separate 

contract with TRWD.  

7. Relevant hydrologic/hydraulic models will be provided by TRWD and will be u@lized as-is for the 

modeling efforts described in this task. 

H. TASK 13 EXISTING PCCP ANALYSIS PHASE:   

Upon wriOen no@fica@on and approval, the following ac@vi@es will be included in this task. 

 

1. The purpose of our work is to evaluate exis@ng RC, CC, and Benbrook pipelines based on available 

pipeline design and condi@on assessment data and to make recommenda@ons as to the maximum 

allowable construc@on load that can be operated over the exis@ng pipelines.  The scope of our 

work includes structural evalua@on of the por@ons of the exis@ng PCCP lines that parallel the 

Sec@on 1D and 1E pipelines. Our ini@al review of the exis@ng pipeline documents indicate that 

sixteen pipe classes of 72, 90, and 108 in. diameter require evalua@on based on the AWWA C304 

design standard Unified Design Procedure (UDP).   

a. Data Review and Planning. Review available documents related to the pipeline and an@cipated 

construc@on project above it, including plan and profile drawings, pipe design sheets, pipeline 

pressures, geotechnical reports, reports of pipeline inspec@ons, and other relevant 

informa@on.   



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

b. Analysis of Connec@on to Exis@ng Pipe. Perform a soil structure interac@on (SSI) analysis of 

the new and exis@ng pipe connec@on using finite element analysis (FEA). Model the pipeline 

3D geometry, the mechanical proper@es of the pipes, the joints and support saddles, and the 

soil resistance to the lateral and longitudinal mo@on of the pipe. The model will include 

por@ons of the exis@ng pipeline and the new pipeline, including substan@al por@ons of the 

new pipeline away from the Rolling Hills WTP. Internal pressure loads and thermal loads will 

be considered. Based on the soil proper@es from past analyses along IPL, Type V soil from 

AWWA M9 will be considered to model the soil support for the new pipeline, and the 

geotechnical data will be reviewed to confirm this assump@on.  

i.  A Power Point summary including the FEA model inputs and results will be provided. 

c. Conceptual design of Thrust Restrain. Conceptual design of addi@onal supports to resist the 

demands at the connec@on loca@on. Two conceptual design op@ons will be developed for 

review by the design team. 

i. Op@on 1 – Adding extra saddle supports on the exis@ng pipeline to resist the addi@onal 

loads imposed from the new pipeline. 

ii. Op@on 2 – Adding a thrust block on the new pipeline or at the connec@on to resist the 

addi@onal loads imposed from the new pipeline. The thrust block may need to @e into the 

founda@ons of the exis@ng pipeline. 

iii. Results will be added to the Power Point summary of the SSI analysis. 

d. Calcula@on of Allowable Construc@on Live Loads. Perform a structural evalua@on of the pipe 

designs using the computer program UDP, which follows the current AWWA C304 standard for 

the design of PCCP. We will check the serviceability, elas@c, and strength limit states specified 

in AWWA C304 for the combined internal and external loads. We will quan@fy the available 

capacity of the pipe to resist temporary construc@on loads. Our analysis will be based on the 

assumed good condi@on of the pipe, and we will iden@fy any loca@ons of known distress. The 

results of our analysis will determine whether any of the current PCCP design limit states are 

exceeded. The working and transient pressures provided by Freese & Nichols (FNI) or TRWD 

will be considered as well as the exis@ng soil cover from the as-built profile drawings. 

e. Prepare a draY and final leOer report including the results of calcula@ons for sixteen pipe 

classes and recommenda@ons regarding the maximum allowable construc@on loading over the 

PCCP. The recommenda@ons may include inspec@on to assess the pipeline condi@on. 

I. TASK 14 Geotechnical Baseline Report: This addi@onal service will be provided with the approval TRWD and at 

the fee noted in the compensa@on sec@on. 

1. Prepare a Geotechnical Baseline Report (GBR).  

i. A GBR will be prepared to describe the geotechnical conditions anticipated to be encountered 

for the construction of up to ten (10) of the trenchless crossings along the pipeline alignment.  

2. The GBR will focus on the more significant trenchless crossings along the pipeline such as the 

longer crossings through wetland areas, underneath creeks or other areas where groundwater is 

a concern, or otherwise areas where the geology is complex.  

3. The GBR will be only the geotechnical interpretive document upon which the contractor may rely 

for bidding and construction. The GBR will be limited to interpretive discussion and baseline 

statements of information contained in the GDR.  

4. The GBR will be prepared in accordance with the ASCE’s Suggested Guidelines for Geotechnical 

Baseline Reports for Construction.  

5. The GBR will be considered a contract document. 

 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

J. TASK 15 BID PHASE: Prepurchase of Valves:  This addi@onal service will be provided with  TRWD approval and 

at the fee noted in the compensa@on sec@on. 

Upon completion of the design services and approval of “Final” drawings and specifications by Owner, FNI will 

proceed with the performance of services in this phase as follows: 

1. Assist Owner in securing bids.  Prepare a Notice to Bidders and provide a copy of the notice to bidders for 

Owner to use in posting on the Owner’s procurement website.  The cost for publications shall be paid by 

Owner. 

2. Submit electronic copies of plans, specifications and bidding documents to Owner for advertisement on 

their OpenGov procurement portal. Prospective bidders may download and print documents from 

OpenGov, who will maintain plan holder list and post addenda.  FNI will also list bid projects on the FNI 

website.  

3. It is an@cipated addi@onal valves may be added to prepurchase valve package. TRWD will provide size, 

flange type, and pressure class needed for addi@onal valve procurement.  

4. Assist Owner by responding to questions and interpreting bid documents.  Prepare and issue addenda to 

the bid documents to OpenGov if necessary. 

5. Assist the Owner in conducting a pre-bid conference for the Bid Packages and coordinate responses with 

Owner.  Response to the pre-bid conference will be in the form of addenda issued after the conference. 

6. After receipt of proposals, prepare preliminary tabulation of scoring criteria for the bidders, check 

references, review qualifications and experience, prepare a summary of observations and meet with 

Owner to review proposals.  If necessary, attend interviews with short-listed proposers and assist Owner 

with final scoring.  Prepare a recommendation of award of contracts or other actions as appropriate.   

7. Assist Owner in the preparation of Contract Documents for each of the  contracts.  An “Issued for 

Construction” set of Contract Documents will be provided with addendum items posted.  Provide a digital 

PDF version of Contract Documents for each of the  contracts which include information from the selected 

bidders’ bid documents, legal documents, and addenda bound in the documents for execution by the 

Owner and equipment supplier.  Printed sets of documents can be provided as an additional service. 

8. Furnish digital copies of the drawings and specifications pursuant to the General Conditions of the 

Contract. 

9. Deliverables for the Bid or Negotiation Phase include: 

a. Notice to Bidders 

b. Electronic copies of plans, specifications, bidding documents, and addenda 

c. Tabulation of selection criteria for Proposers (CSP Only) 

d. Recommendation of Award with tabulation of bids 

e. Notice of award to selected bidder 

f. Conformed contract documents for execution 

g. Electronic copies of conformed contract documents for Equipment Supplier and Owner 

 

K. TASK 16 Con@ngency:  Con@ngency funds are included in the contract to pay for work not defined specifically 

by the Agreement that is essen@al to the comple@on of the Project. Con@ngency funds will be as described 

in the Agreement. The con@ngency funds may be used for costs incurred by consultant, provided these costs 

are approved by TRWD. 

 

  



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

ARTICLE IV 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 2:  Additional Services to be performed by FNI, if authorized by Owner, which are 

not included in the above Basic Services. The below services do not have a pre-agreed upon price and 

will need to be negotiated. The services are described as follows: 

A. Field layouts or the furnishing of construction line and grade surveys.   

B. Providing services to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or to make measured drawings 

thereof, or to verify the accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by Owner. 

C. Providing renderings, model, and mock-ups requested by the Owner. 

D. Making revisions to drawings, specifications or other documents when such revisions are 1) not 

consistent with approvals or instructions previously given by Owner or 2) due to other causes 

not within the control of FNI. This does not exclude revision of work done based upon unverified 

data or unverified assumptions of Owner's preferences. FNI shall inform Owner of the impact to 

changing previous decisions before work is done to implement the new decision. 

E. Providing consultation concerning the replacement of any Work damaged by fire or other cause 

during the Project and providing services as may be required in connection with the 

replacement of such Work.  Performing investigations, studies, and analysis of work proposed 

by Construction Contractor(s) to correct defective work.  Any services required as a result of 

default of the Contractor(s) or the failure, for any reason, of the Contractor(s) to complete the 

work within the Contract time.  Providing services after the completion of the construction 

phase not specifically listed in Article II, III and IV.  Visits to the site in excess of the number of 

trips included in Article II, III and VI for periodic site visits, coordination meetings, or contract 

completion activities.  Providing services made necessary because of unforeseen, concealed, or 

differing site conditions or due to the presence of hazardous substances in any form.  Providing 

services to review or evaluate construction contractor(s) claim(s), provided said claims are 

supported by causes not within the control of FNI.  Providing value engineering studies or 

reviews of cost savings proposed by Construction Contractor(s).  Provide professional services 

during Contractor’s warranty period. 

F. Professional services involving consideration of operation, maintenance and overhead expenses, 

and the preparation of rate schedules, earnings and expense statements, feasibility studies, 

appraisals, evaluations, assessment schedules, and material audits or inventories required for 

certification of force account construction performed by Owner. 

G. Preparing applications and/or supporting documents for government grants, loans, or planning 

advances and/or providing data for same. 

H. Conducting pilot or bench studies or tests. 

I. Preparing data and reports for assistance to Owner in preparation for hearings before 

regulatory agencies, courts, arbitration panels or any mediator, giving testimony, personally or 

by deposition, and preparations therefore before any regulatory agency, court, arbitration panel 

or mediator. 

J. Assisting Owner in preparing for, or appearing at litigation, mediation, arbitration, dispute 

review boards, or other legal and/or administrative proceedings in the defense or prosecution of 

claims disputes with Contractor(s). 

K. Assisting Owner in the defense or prosecution of litigation in connection with or in addition to 

those services contemplated by this Agreement.  Such services, if any, shall be furnished by FNI 

on a fee basis negotiated by the respective parties outside of and in addition to this Agreement. 



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

L. Providing archeological or environmental support services including the design and 

implementation of ecological baseline studies, environmental monitoring, impact assessment 

and analyses, permitting assistance, and other assistance required to address environmental 

issues. 

M. Design, contract modifications, studies or analysis required to comply with local, State, Federal 

or other regulatory agencies that become effective after the date of this agreement. 

N. Services required to resolve bid protests or to rebid the Project(s) for any reason. 

O. Providing Basic Services on an accelerated time schedule.  The scope of this service includes cost 

for overtime wages of employees and consultants, inefficiencies in work sequence and plotting 

or reproduction costs directly attributable to an accelerated time schedule directed by the 

Owner. 

P. Recreation of existing H&H models if digital files of the effective models are not available. 

Q. The preparation of Electrical, Instrumentation & Control, structural, or HVAC specifications or 

plan sheets. 

R. The preparation of SWPP and erosion control documents including plan and specification 

requirements.  

 

  



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

ARTICLE V 

 

TIME OF COMPLETION:  FNI is authorized to commence work on the Project upon execution of this 

Agreement and agrees to complete the services in accordance with the following schedule: 

• Preliminary Design Phase will be completed within 14 months from the Notice to Proceed. 

• 60% Design will be completed within 5 months from approval of preliminary design 

• 95% design will be completed within 4 months of approval of 60% design 

• 100% design will be completed within 3 months of approval of 95% design  

If FNI’s services are delayed through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to adjust contract schedule 

consistent with the number of days of delay. FNI is responsible for delays related to management of its 

retained subs for any of the tasks listen herein and is not permitted to adjust the contract schedule or 

additional compensation unless agreed to in writing by TRWD. Other delays may include but are not 

limited to delays in Owner or regulatory reviews, delays on the flow of information to be provided to 

FNI, governmental approvals, weather delays on scheduled activities, etc.  These delays may result in an 

adjustment to compensation as outlined on the face of this Agreement and in Attachment CO.  

 

  



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

ARTICLE VI  

 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF Owner:  Deleted. 

  



 

 

[OFF24050] T:\T\TRWD\1D1E+AO 

ARTICLE VII 

 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES: FNI and Owner designate the following representatives: 

 

Owner’s Designated Representative – Alan Thomas  

 

 

Owner’s Accounting Representative – Veronica Enriquez 

 

 

FNI’s Designated Representative – Scott Maughn, PE, asm@freese.com, 214-217-2260.   

 

 

FNI’s Accounting Representative – Lisa Broussard 

 

 
 



12770 Merit Drive, Suite 900 + Dallas, Texas 75251 + 214-217-2200 

 

COST SUMMARY TABLE Cost 
Basic Services Fee 

Task 1 - Project Management  $         581,462.00  
Task 2 - Preliminary Design  $      1,095,216.00  
Task 3 - Final Design  $      1,566,783.00  
Task 4 - Bid Submittal  $         106,543.00  
Task 5 - Geotechnical Investigation  $         147,184.00  
Task 6 - Topographic Survey  $         266,108.00  
Task 7 - Easement Documents  $         131,342.00  
Task 8 - Subsurface Utility Engineering  $         298,480.00  
Task 9 - Staging, Accessibility and Phasing  $         234,529.00  
Task 10 - Traffic Control  $         147,529.00  

Basic Services Total  $      4,575,176.00  

    
Additional Services   

Task 11 - Geomorphology Analysis  $          68,354.00  
Task 12 - Stormwater Review & Floodplain Permitting  $         185,004.00  
Task 13 - Existing PCCP Pipe Analysis  $         121,656.00  
Task 14 - Geotechnical Baseline Report   $          34,804.00  
Task 15 - Bid/Negotiation for Prepurchase of AO Valves  $          54,285.00  
Task 16 - Contingency  $         200,000.00  

Additional Services Total  $         664,103.00  

Total  $      5,239,279.00  
 

www.freese.com 



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 10 
 
DATE: September 17, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Contract with V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

for Corrosion Control Engineering Design Services for the Section 1D 
and 1E Pipeline and Arlington Outlet Valve Improvements Project 

 
FUNDING: Bond Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Management recommends approval of a contract in an amount not-to-exceed $272,725 
with V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. for corrosion control engineering design services for 
approximately 3 miles of the proposed Section 1D pipeline and adjacent existing 
Richland-Chambers and Cedar Creek pipelines, approximately 3,000 feet of the proposed 
Section 1E pipeline and adjacent Benbrook pipeline, and improvements at Arlington 
Outlet. These corrosion control engineering services include project management, 
preliminary design investigations, final design plans and specifications, and procurement 
phase services.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District has identified the need to advance engineering design for the newly proposed 
108” pipeline for Sections 1D and 1E and Arlington Outlet improvements intended to 
enhance the capacity, reliability, and redundancy of the District’s western water 
transmission system. To achieve the expected one-hundred-year service life of these new 
108-inch steel pipelines, corrosion control measures need to be incorporated, including 
proper exterior coating and cathodic protection.  
 
The District recommends a contract with V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. to design the 
cathodic protection of the new Section 1D and 1E pipelines as well as planned 
improvements at Arlington Outlet including new valves and yard piping. Additionally, V&A 
Consulting Engineering will design cathodic protection of the existing Richland Chambers 
and Cedar Creek pipelines in areas that parallel the approximately three-mile Section 1D 
pipeline, and 3,000 feet of the Benbrook pipeline in areas that parallel Section 1E. The 
existing Richland-Chambers, Cedar Creek, and Benbrook pipelines that parallel the new 
Sections 1D & 1E will be heavily impacted by the construction of the new pipelines being 
installed within the same right of way. Since the existing cathodic protection system for 
these existing pipelines is over 25 years old, exceeding its original expected useful life, it 
is in the District’s interest to renew the galvanic anode cathodic protection system at this 
same time.   
 



The Request for Statement of Qualifications was solicited per statute (Texas Government 
Code Chapter 2254) and six submittals were received. Attached is the list of submitting 
firms that were evaluated. All six submittals were reviewed and evaluated, and the top 
three scoring firms were interviewed in person. V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. was 
determined to be the most qualified firm to perform the design of this project.   
 
V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc., is a prime, non-certified business. It has subcontracted 
portions of the contract resulting in an overall Diverse Business participation commitment 
of 18%. 
 
These corrosion control engineering services will take place over the next two years with 
construction planned to begin in 2027. 
 
This item was reviewed by the Construction and Operations Committee on September 
12, 2024. 
 
Submitted By: 
 
Jason Gehrig, P.E. 
Infrastructure Engineering Director 
 

 
 



 
LIST OF SUBMITTING FIRMS  

RFSOQ 24-107 CORROSION CONTROL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR CEDAR CREEK SECTION 2 REPLACEMENT 

(PHASE 2), CEDAR CREEK SECTION 4 REPLACEMENT, SECTION 1D & 1E PIPELINES AND ARLINGTON OUTLET 

IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 

List of Submitting Firms 

 
RFSOQ 24-107  

CORROSION CONTROL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR CEDAR CREEK SECTION 2 REPLACEMENT (PHASE 

2), CEDAR CREEK SECTION 4 REPLACEMENT, SECTION 1D & 1E PIPELINES AND ARLINGTON OUTLET 

IMPROVEMENTS 

 

Due Date and Time: APRIL 22, 2024, AT 2:00 PM CT 

 
Name of Firm 

A-Line Corrosion Services LLC 

Hazen and Sawyer 

HDR 

Lockwood, Andrews, and Newman, Inc. 

M/S Sietricon 

V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

 



 

15720 Park Row  713.568.9067 

Suite 500 vaengineering.com 

Houston, TX 77084  

 

     |     Project No. 24-0087    

V&A Project No. 24-0087 

July 24, 2024 

Courtney Jalbert 

Infrastructure Integrity Manager | Meteorologist 

Tarrant Regional Water District 

808 E. Northside Drive 

Fort Worth, TX 76102 

Subject: Tarrant Regional Water District Contract 24-107 Cedar Creek Section 1D, 1E, and 

Arlington Outlet Cathodic Protection  

Proposal for Corrosion Engineering Services 

Dear Mrs. Jalbert: 

Thank you for requesting a proposal for the Cedar Creek Section 1D, 1E, and Arlington Outlet Cathodic 

Protection Project located near Fort Worth, TX. The project consists of designing new cathodic 

protection (CP) systems for the proposed pipelines between the Arlington Outlet and Rolling Hills, and 

the design of replacement CP systems for existing pipe between the same sites. Specifically, each 

Section includes the following: 

• Section 1D 

o New CP galvanic anode CP (GACP) system for approximately 3 miles of proposed 108-

inch polyurethane coated, mortar-lined spiral welded-steel pipe. 

o Replacement GACP system for existing Richland Chambers pipeline consisting of 

approximately 3 miles of 108-inch prestressed concrete cylinder pipe (PCCP) 

o Replacement GACP system for existing Cedar Creek pipeline consisting of 

approximately 3 miles of 84-inch PCCP 

o Isolation between 1D and existing PCCP parallel CP systems 

• Section 1E 

o New CP galvanic anode CP (GACP) system for approximately 3,000 linear feet (LF) of 

proposed 108-inch polyurethane coated, mortar-lined spiral welded-steel pipe. 

o Replacement GACP system for existing Benbrook pipeline consisting of approximately 

3,000 LF of 90-inch prestressed concrete cylinder pipe (PCCP) 

o Isolation between each parallel CP system 

• Arlington Outlet 

o Replacement CP system for yard piping 

o Tie-in five proposed butterfly valves into the replacement CP system 

o Isolation between the site and  Line J, Richland Chambers, and Cedar Creek Pipelines 

 

V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. (V&A) is prepared to conduct all necessary field testing and data 

gathering to prepare the design, and manage the construction phase associated with the CP systems. 

Per your request, the following is our proposal and detailed scope of work for the subject services: 

Scope of Work 

Task | Description 

1. Project Management: Monitor and report project progress and changes, manage the quality of all 

work activities and project deliverables, and execute the project per the defined scope, schedule, 



|     Project No. 24-0087     

and budget. Submit monthly invoices and communicate project updates. This task includes the 

following project management work activities: 

a. Develop and/or implement a Quality Assurance and Quality Control (QA/QC) plan that 

addresses how the quality of information will be managed before incorporating into the design, 

and how each deliverable will be reviewed. Submit the plan at the beginning of the project. Only 

submit documents that have been reviewed according to the plan. 

b. Prepare a project schedule in Microsoft Project format. Submit a baseline of the schedule and 

update schedule at all phases and as often as necessary to be meaningful. At a minimum, the 

schedule should include: monthly meetings, 30% and 60% preliminary design, permitting, 90% 

and final design, procurement, construction, and startup. The schedule from the pipeline design 

consultant will be shared monthly to align critical milestones.  Include two weeks for TRWD to 

review each deliverable.   

c. Utilize TRWD’s project portal site.  Share all documents through the project portal site including 

deliverables, reports, and other pertinent documents. All invoicing will be handled through the 

project site as well.   

d. Based on the fee and the proposed schedule, submit a spending plan that can be compared to 

the earned value and actual cost to indicate that the project is on track. The spending plan will 

also be given to TRWD’s Finance Department to plan for cash flow. 

e. Submit a monthly status report with each invoice that indicates work completed and the value 

of the work completed based upon the fee estimate. Indicate upcoming tasks and include tasks 

that TRWD will need to perform to assist with project development. 

f. Coordinate and attend meetings as needed to interact with TRWD, the Pipeline Design Team, 

the Project Geotechnical Engineer, and other consultants for the duration of the project. At a 

minimum attend the kickoff meeting, design review meetings for each submittal, and monthly 

meetings, including consultant coordination meetings, as needed. 

g. Attend monthly or regularly scheduled progress meetings to review project status and upcoming 

milestones.  Attend meetings and workshops for major milestones and decision points, 

including: 

i. Project kickoff 

ii. Design criteria review and confirmation 

iii. Preliminary Engineering Report and 30% Design draft submittal 

iv. Preliminary Engineering Report and 30% Design final submittal 

v. 60%, 90%, and Issue for Bid (IFB)%final design submittals 

vi. Construction Initiation 

vii. Project Closeout 

h. Prepare and maintain an Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (OPCC). Prepare a conceptual 

OPCC during the scoping phase. Update the OPCC at each design milestone, and at other times 

that are appropriate during design, with corresponding quantities, prices, and contingencies. 

Identify the construction critical path. 

i. Project Closeout:  Collect all outstanding inspection documents and information from the 

resident representative, vendors, and contractor and add to the project portal site.  Assist 

TRWD personnel with application of proper metadata to all project documents.  Record 

drawings to be provided in both pdf and drawing format, as well as GIS data records including 

lay sheets, survey data, SUE data etc.  Conduct meeting with project stakeholders to review and 

document lessons learned and any contract changes. 



|     Project No. 24-0087   

2. Design Criteria Confirmation: TRWD will provide V&A with GIS data and any cathodic protection 

historical records and documents for the purposes of review and recommendation of the proposed 

project scope and pipeline replacement plan.  

a. A Field Testing Plan will be provided and agreed upon for gathering all data needed to achieve 

the design criteria set. The field testing plan will include: 

i. Current demand testing on all existing lines 

ii. Depolarization testing on the Benbrook and Line J pipelines 

iii. Soil resistivity testing for the proposed Section 1D and 1E pipelines 

3. Preliminary Design: V&A will provide a Corrosion Control Preliminary Engineer Report (PER) that 

shall include their own investigation and evaluation.  Preliminary design tasks will include the 

following: 

a. Coordinate collection of soil samples obtained by the Project Geotechnical Engineering 

Consultant under the Pipeline Design contract. 

b. Test and analyze soil samples for the following properties: resistivity, pH, electrical conductivity, 

chemical analysis, and any other tests as needed. Coordinate shipping of soil samples with the 

geotechnical engineer for the pipeline design team. 

c. Coordinate with TRWD to conduct Wenner 4-pin testing. Measure soil resistivity using the 

Wenner four-electrode method along the proposed alignment. The resistivity testing will be 

conducted at 800- to 1,000-foot intervals to a depth of 20 feet below grade or the proposed 

pipeline depth, whichever is shallower. 

d. Perform evaluation testing on existing Richland Chambers, Cedar Creek, and Benbrook 

pipelines that parallel the 1E/1D pipelines. Testing will include current demand testing, 

attenuation, isolation confirmation at City of Fort Worth WTP connection points, and AC stray 

current interference. 

e. Perform evaluation testing of existing CP system at Arlington Outlet to determine extents of 

replacement. 

f. Coordinate with the Pipeline Design Team and TRWD to implement the corrosion protection 

plan and monitoring that will be required for the new 1E/1D/AO Improvement pipelines, and 

the existing adjacent Richland Chambers and Cedar Creek PCCP pipelines. Corrosion protection 

plan should include protection during construction of all projects. 

g. Review and provide recommendations for revisions to TRWD’s cathodic protection technical 

specifications and standard details employed with the IPL project. 

h. Prepare preliminary corrosion protection plan and drawings (30% level) 

i. Foreign Utility Investigation: TRWD will provide all updated utility information near the project 

limits. V&A will use the information gathered by TRWD and the contracted pipeline design team 

to identify pipelines that could potentially impact the corrosion control system for the project 

pipeline. V&A will request further information about the cathodic protection systems on foreign 

pipelines through TRWD in order to provide proper mitigation during the design of the corrosion 

control system for the project pipeline. This task does not include field work for V&A. 

j. Preparation of Preliminary Engineering Report. A draft electronic copy of the report will be 

submitted for review on the TRWD project portal. Comments will be incorporated, and a final 

electronic copy will be provided. 

4. Final Design: Prepare plans and technical specifications associated with the CP system. Plans will 

be prepared in AutoCAD Civil 3D in an 11”x17” format.  V&A will provide the pipeline designer the 

station numbering/GIS files so that the location of the CP beds and test stations are shown on the 



|     Project No. 24-0087    

same pipeline plan and profile sheets.  Any required survey data will be provided by the pipeline 

design team. A two-week review period for TRWD will occur at every submittal. One round of 

comments will be addressed at each submittal.  

a. 60% Design Phase 

i. Prepare 60% design plans and specifications utilizing TRWD’s standard specifications and 

details. Deliverables will include electronic (.pdf) version which will include Corrosion 

Protection System Drawings, Technical Specification Table of Contents (TOC), and OPCC.  

ii. Attend 60% workshop to review and discuss comments 

b. Coordinate with pipeline designer to meet overall deliverable schedule90% Design Phase 

i. Prepare 90% plans and specifications. Deliverables will include electronic (.pdf) version 

which will include Corrosion Protection System Drawings, Technical Specification Table of 

Contents (TOC), and OPCC.   

ii. Address all 60% design review comments from TRWD 

iii. Attend 90% workshop to review and discuss comments 

iv. Coordinate with pipeline designer to meet overall deliverable schedule 

c. Final Not-for-Construction (NFC) Phase 

i. Prepare Final NFC plans and specifications.  Deliverables will include electronic (.pdf) 

version which will include Corrosion Protection System Drawings, Technical Specification 

Table of Contents (TOC), and OPCC. 

ii. Address all 90% design review comments from TRWD 

iii. Coordinate with pipeline designer to meet overall deliverable schedule 

d. Final Bidding Documents 

i. Prepare final bidding documents. Deliverables will include electronic (.pdf) version which 

will include Corrosion Protection System Drawings, Technical Specification Table of 

Contents (TOC), and OPCC. 

ii. Address any remaining review comments from Final NFC review. 

iii. Coordinate with pipeline designer to meet overall deliverable schedule 

5. Procurement Phase Services: Bidding assistance includes preparing conformed documents and 

responding to questions from potential bidders for the CP system.  

a. Assist TRWD in answering cathodic protection-related questions and, as necessary, issue 

addenda to clarify the design documents. 

b. Attend procurement evaluation conference. Review submitted proposals for technical input and 

project approach and provide input to advise evaluation team in their review of proposals in 

regards to CP. 

c. Prepare a “Conformed” submittal incorporating the changes made during the procurement 

phase for the CP plans and specifications. 

Assumptions 

The following is a list of additional assumptions used to develop V&A’s scope of work. 

 V&A will submit monthly invoices in electronic format in electronic format via the designated client 

portal. 



|     Project No. 24-0087    

 Design documents will utilize TRWD’s standard specifications and details. Any revisions will be 

agreed upon between TRWD and V&A. 

 The schedule of deliverables will be dependent on the overall pipeline design contracts. 

Exclusions and Limitations 

The following items, unless otherwise indicated, are not included in the scope of work: 

 Traffic Control Plans and Permits 

 Traffic Control Measures, including but not limited to sign boards, cones, and flaggers 

 Project Specific Health and Safety Plan 

 Encroachment Permits 

 Permitting 

 Notification 

 Bonds 

 Shutdown, Dewatering, and Cleaning of Structures 

 Excavations 

 Structure Access, including but not limited to ladders, scaffolding, and cranes 

 Confined Space Entry 

 Supplied Air 

 

Fee Proposal 

V&A proposes to complete this work on a cost plus not to exceed $272,725 basis with terms of Net 30 

days This fee is valid for 90 days from the date of this proposal (after which the total cost may be 

adjusted to reflect annual updates to the attached Fee Schedule). The scope of work was developed as 

a result of our discussions and represents our mutual understanding.  

If unforeseen circumstances should arise which indicate that more work is required, V&A will provide a 

written estimate of additional required work and cost. The attached Fee Schedule (subject to annual 

adjustments) will serve as the basis for developing future cost estimates. V&A will not proceed with 

work beyond the not-to-exceed figure without written authorization from your office. 

We are prepared to begin work on your project upon receiving written approval, a notice to proceed 

(NTP), or a purchase order from your office.  

On behalf of our staff and myself, I would like to thank you for the opportunity to be of service to you, 

and TRWD. We look forward to working with you. 

Sincerely,  

V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

 



|     Project No. 24-0087   

Cory R. Dow, P.E. 

Regional Manager 
Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-9154 

 

Accepted:         Date:     

Tarrant Regional Water District 

 

  



 

15720 Park Row  713.568.9067 

Suite 500 vaengineering.com 

Houston, TX 77084  

 

     |     Project No. 24-0087   

Summary of Cost per Task  

Task Amount 

1. Project Management $48,959 

2. Design Criteria Confirmation $8,822 

3. Preliminary Design $58,896 

4. Final Design $65,608 

5. Procurement Phase Services $16,066 

Subtotal $198,351 

Subconsultant Fees  

• Farwest Corrosion Control Company $13,674 

• Proghorn Flats Consulting $34,200 

• SGH $26,500 

Total: $272,725 

 



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11 
 

DATE: September 17, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of a Pre-Purchase of HVAC Equipment from Texas 

Air Systems for Benbrook Lake Pump Station Electrical Room 
Cooling Improvements 

 
FUNDING: Bond Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Management recommends approval for the pre-purchase of HVAC equipment in an 
amount not-to-exceed $215,572 from Texas Air Systems for Benbrook Lake Pump 
Station Electrical Room Cooling Improvements. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Benbrook Lake Pump Station is a critical component of the District’s water delivery 
system. The existing cooling infrastructure for the pump station electrical and server 
rooms has experienced issues since 2011. In 2022 and 2023, the lake water-cooled air 
conditioning units suffered compressor failures during periods of critical customer 
demand. The existing cooling units are old, resulting in limited parts availability and 
higher maintenance costs. In addition, the reliance of the existing cooling system on lake 
water for heat exchange leads to biofouling of system components during summer 
operation requiring extensive ongoing maintenance to keep functional. Due to its age, 
the cooling system is near the end of its useful life.  
 
Azcarate & Associates Consulting Engineers, LLC is currently under contract to design 
cooling improvements for the Benbrook Lake Pump Station electrical room. In addition to 
replacing the deficient existing HVAC equipment with new equipment requiring less 
maintenance, the entire cooling system is being updated for more redundancy and 
operational efficiency. Due to space constraints in the pump station, platforms are being 
designed to attach to the face of the building where the air conditioning units will be placed 
as part of a future construction project. 
 
To reduce the cost and complexity of the electrical room cooling system, District staff 
recommends that the Board approve the pre-purchase of the HVAC equipment.  
Purchasing the HVAC equipment in advance of the construction contract reduces the time 
to achieve the necessary cooling improvements while also procuring equipment 
compatible with current refrigerants frequently in use prior to upcoming regulatory 
changes. 
 
Texas Air Systems is the authorized rep for AAON. This equipment purchase will be made 



utilizing The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) cooperative purchasing contract 
230104. Texas Government Code 791 enables the District to participate in this program. 
 
Texas Air Systems is not a certified diverse business. There are no other subcontracting 
opportunities.  
 
This item was reviewed by the Construction and Operations Committee on September 
12, 2024. 
 
Submitted By:  
 
Jason Gehrig 
Infrastructure Engineering Director  



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 13 
 
DATE: September 17, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Executive Session 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, for Private Consultation with its Attorney 
about Pending or Contemplated Litigation or on a Matter in which the Duty of the Attorney 
to the Governmental Body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of 
the State Bar of Texas Clearly Conflicts with this Chapter; and 
 
Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, to Deliberate the Purchase, Exchange, 
Lease or Value of Real Property; and 
 
Section 551.074 Regarding Personnel Matters Related to the Annual General Manager 
Performance Review 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 

• Pending litigation 

• Real property issues 

• Personnel matters 
 
Submitted By: 
 
Stephen Tatum 
General Counsel 



 

 

TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 14 
 
DATE: September 17, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Authorization to Acquire Real Property 

Interests by Purchase for the Cedar Creek Pipeline Rehab Project 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
This agenda item is pending negotiations and is subject to review and approval by the 
TRWD Board of Directors.  
 



Next Scheduled Board Meeting 
 

 
October 15, 2024 at 9:00 AM 

 
 

 


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. FY25 General Fund Budget
	5. Tax Rate for Tax Year 2024
	6. FY25 Special Projects/Contingency Fund Budget
	7. FY25 Revenue Fund Budget 
	8. Consent Agenda
	9. Freese and Nichols, Inc. 
	10. V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. 
	11. Texas Air Systems 
	13. Executive Session
	14. Authorization to Acquire Real Property Interests
	16. Next Board Meeting

